THE LAST TWELVE PROPHETS OF THE GREAT DAY OF THE LORD

The Biblical Text in Outline of Hosea, Joel, Amos, Obadiah, Jonah, Micah, Nahum, Habakkuk, Zephaniah, Haggai, Zechariah, and Malachi

Oliver McMahan

This page intentionally left blank

Introduction

The Last Twelve Prophets in the Bible to prophesy, focusing ultimately on the Great Day of the Lord are Hosea, Joel, Amos, Obadiah, Jonah, Micah, Nahum, Habakkuk, Zephaniah, Haggai, Zechariah, and Malachi. Although, they are traditionally referred to as the "Minor Prophets" because their prophecy books, generally, are not as long as Isaiah, Jeremiah, Ezekiel, and Daniel, their message is major, "the Great Day of the Lord is Coming." Also, this major message is also the major message of the other, "Major Prophets," which is, "the Great Day of the Lord is Coming."

In each of these prophets, both "major" and "minor," the essential and primary prophecy from the Lord is stated in the first few verses of each book. These messages range from judgment, burden, the Lord's might, God's work to tear down and rebuild His people, etc. In each prophetic book, the key to the prophecy is the Great Day of the Lord. The major prophecies are Hosea - The End is Like Tenacious Love for an Unfaithful Bride Returning to Her Husband Joel - Blessing to Restore in the Midst of Battle Amos - The Roar of God that Bids Us to Come Obadiah - Knowing Which Side to Rise Up With in Battle Jonah - Obedience, Mercy and Anger Micah - The Lord Treading Upon the High Places Nahum - The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power - God Brings Down Bullies Habakkuk - The Just Shall Live by Faith, No Matter How Long Zephaniah - The Day of the Lord's Consuming Haggai - Building and Shaking Zechariah - Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You Malachi - Why Do You Question God's Love When Your Worship, Offerings, and Service are Corrupt

The Great Day of the Lord is the work of the Lord, in process, continuing, and completed, to completely change the Heavens and Earth, bring a New Heaven and New Earth, and create a completely transformed people to live with Him forever (Revelation 21-22). Whether religious corruption, political bullying, outcasting of people, deceived hearts, alliances with ungodly empires, economic evil, or self-centered lifestyles, the answer in all the prophets is the Great Day of the Lord.

This volume presents the entire Bible text of each of the Last Twelve Prophets in outlines. The outlines demonstrate the

- initial and primary prophecy,
- persons being addressed,
- historical insights, and
- central role of the Great Day of the Lord.

May you be blessed and the Holy Spirit guide you and fill you with the knowledge and inspiration of the Lord as you work through the outlines and read the Bible text.

This page intentionally left blank

Hosea - The End is Like Tenacious Love for an Unfaithful Bride Returning to Her Husband Joel - Blessing to Restore in the Midst of Battle Amos - The Roar of God that Bids Us to Come Obadiah - Knowing Which Side to Rise Up With in Battle Jonah - Obedience, Mercy and Anger Micah - The Lord Treading Upon the High Places Nahum - The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power - God Brings Down Bullies Habakkuk - The Just Shall Live by Faith, No Matter How Long Zephaniah - The Day of the Lord's Consuming Haggai - Building and Shaking Zechariah - Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You Malachi - Why Do You Question God's Love When Your Worship, Offerings, and Service are Corrupt

The Twelve in Chiastic Structure

Hosea - Malachi - Restoration of Relationships

Joel - Zecharaiah - The Messiah and the Spirit

Amos - Haggai - The Shaking of the House

Obadiah - Zephaniah - Nations Will Fall Before the Lord

Jonah - Habakkuk - True Faith

Micah - Nahum - The Lord Great in Power to Change Everything

| Restored Relationships |
|------------------------|
| Malachai |
| Messiah |
| Zechariah |
| God's House |
| Haggai |
| Nations Fall |
| Zephaniah |
| atient FaithTrue Faith |
| ah Habakkuk |
| PowerChange |
| Michah Nahum |
| |

Table of Contents

| Introduction | 3 |
|---|-----------|
| Table of Contents | 5 |
| Hosea - The End is Like Tenacious Love for an Unfaithful Bride Returning to Her Husba Chps 1-14 | and 17 |
| 1. Hosea Takes a Harlot as Wife to Illustrate the Lord's Love for His People and the Latter Return of His People to Him 1-3 | r 17 |
| A. Days of Uzziah, Jotham, Ahaz, and Hezekiah, kings of Judah, and in the days of Jeroboam the son of Joash, king of Israel 1:1 | 17 |
| B. Whoredom as Wife and the Land 1:2 | 17 |
| C. Jezreel, Son of Vengeance Over Israel 1:3-5 | 17 |
| D. Loruhamah, Daughter of No Mercy for Israel but Mercy for Judah 1:6-7 | 17 |
| E. Loammi, Son of Not My People Israel but Children of the Living God, One People i the Day of Jezreel 1:8-10 | in 17 |
| F. Judah and Israel One 1:11 | 18 |
| G. Plea from Her Children for Gomer to Repent of Unfaithfulness 2:1-5 | 18 |
| H. Return of Gomer to Her First Husband 2:6-8 | 18 |
| I. The Lord's Return/Visitation to Stop Gomer 2:9-13 | 18 |
| J. The Day Gomer Calls the Lord "Husband" and Not "Baali" 2:14-16 | 18 |
| K. The Covenant of the New Heaven and New Earth, the City Prepared for the Bride a Fulfillment of Jezreel 2: 17-22 | as 19 |
| L. As the Bride Once Again "My People" by/with the Lord 2:23 | 19 |
| M. Gomer Takes a Harlot for His Wife Who then Does Not Have Other Lovers 3:1-3 | 19 |
| N. Israel Goes Without "Lovers" and then Seeks the Lord in the Latter Days 3:4-5 | 19 |
| 2. When the Deceived Think They Know Everything 4:1-14 | 20 |
| A. God Confronts No Truth, No Mercy and No Knowledge of God in the Land 4:1-3 | 20 |
| B. Don't Argue With Them 4:4 | 20 |
| C. Rejected by God Because They Think They Know it All 4:5-6 | 20 |
| D. False Self-Glory that is Shame 4:7-10 | 20 |
| E. When the Heart is Taken 4:11-14 | 20 |
| 3. Working Together Against God Does Not Work 4:15-5:14 | 21 |
| A. The Defilement of the Northern Kingdom, Israel 4:15-5:4 | 21 |
| B. Judah, the Southern Kingdom, Falls with Israel, the Northern Kingdom 5:5-12 | 21 |
| C. The Peril of Entanglement - When the Northern Kingdom tried to "Help" the Southe Kingdom and the Southern Kingdom Worked Together 5:13-14 | ern 21 |
| 4. In Their Affliction They Will Seek Me Early 5:15 - 6:6 | 22 |
| A. The Resurrection and the Spirit Poured Out 5:15-6:3 | 22 |
| B. God Desires Mercy and Knowledge [Truth] of Him 6:4-6 | 22 |
| 5. Israel and Judah's Response of Treachery 6:7-7:15 | 22 |
| A. The Broken Covenant 6:7-10 | 22 |

| B. When God Would Have Healed Them, They Thought God Would Not Remember Their Wickedness 6:11-7:2 | 22 |
|--|---------|
| C. Catering to Power and Political Might, The Fall Comes Like a Forgotten, Overheat Oven 7:3-8 | |
| D. Feeble and Not Knowing It 7:9-10 | 23 |
| E. A Heatless Dove Calling for Others to Help 7:11-12 | 23 |
| F. I Have Redeemed Them, Yet They Have Spoken Lies Against Me 7:13-15 | 23 |
| 6. The Deceit and Downfall of Dependence on Power 7:16-8:15 | 23 |
| A. The Rage of the Tongue Destroyed by the Eagle (Nebuchadnezzar) 7:16-8:4 | 23 |
| B. Not Giving Up the "Calf" 8:5-6 | 23 |
| C. Reaping the Whirlwind, When Dependence on Political Alliances Fails 8:7-8 | 24 |
| D. "Hiring" Lovers 8:9-11 | 24 |
| E. When Truth Becomes "Strange" 8:12-15 | 24 |
| 7. Israel Becomes a Whore by Rejecting God 9:1- 10:1 | 24 |
| A. Loving a "Reward" More than God and Eating from the Floor Rather than From Go 9:1-6 | d 24 |
| B. Rejection of God's Word and Work 9:7-8 | 24 |
| C. The Self-Corrupting of Leaving God 9:9 | 25 |
| D. The Glory of Israel and Ephraim Departs 9:10-11 | 25 |
| E. Ephraim and Israel Will Bear No Children 9:12-10:1 | 25 |
| 8. Consequences of a Divided Heart 10:1- 11 | 26 |
| A. Divided Loyalties, Kings versus God 10:2-4 | 26 |
| B. The Glory Departs, Crying for the Mountains and Hills to Fall on Us 10:5-8 | 26 |
| C. Israel Plowed Up for Sins Since the Battle of Gibeah 10:9-11 | 26 |
| 9. The Northern Kingdom Cut Off Because of What They Forgot 10:12 - 11:7 | 27 |
| A. Cutoff Because of Forgetting Mercy 10:12-15 | 27 |
| B. God's Lament of Israel: When Israel was a Child, God Loved Him, "Calling My Son | |
| Out of Egypt" 11:1-4 | 27 |
| C. The Destruction of the Northern Kingdom 11:5 | 27 |
| D, Worshiping but Not Exalting God 11:6 - 7 | 27 |
| 10. The Southern Kingdom Spared Despite Her Sins 11:8 - 12 | 28 |
| 11. God's Love Despite the Deceptions of Judah 12:2 - 13:16 | 28 |
| A. Use Your Power with God for Mercy 12:2 - 6 | 28 |
| B. History of Deceit 12:7-14 | 28 |
| C. God's Tenacious Love for His People 13:1 - 16 | 28 |
| 12. Call to Return to God's Love 14:1 - 9 | 29 |
| Joel: Blessing to Restore in the Midst of Battle | 30 |
| 1. A Message for the Generations 1:1-3 | 30 |
| 2. Complete Destruction 1:4 | 30 |
| 3. Respond Because of Destruction by A Nation Without Number: Lament 1:5-14 | 30 |
| A. Awake and Weep 1:5-7 | 30 |
| B. Lament Priests 1:8-9 | 30 |

| | C. Be Ashamed and Howl Farmers - the Whithering of Joy 1:10-12 | 31 |
|-----|--|----|
| | D. The Resulting Effect on the Altar 1:13 | 31 |
| | E. Sanctify a Fast, Gather, and Cry 1:14 | 31 |
| 4 | 4. The Day of the Lord is at Hand 1:15-20 | 31 |
| | A. Effect on Worship and God's House 1:16 | 31 |
| | B. Barns are Broken 1:17 | 31 |
| | C. Beasts Cry, Rivers Dry Up, and Pastures are on Fire 1:18-20 | 31 |
| Ę | 5. Sound the Alarm and Tremble: Get Ready for the Day of the Lord 2:1-14 | 32 |
| | A. Darkness 2:2 | 32 |
| | B. Fire 2:3 | 32 |
| | C. Appearance of Horses, Noise of Chariots, Noise of Fire, and a Battle 2:4-5 | 32 |
| | D. Faces of War 2:6-10 | 32 |
| | E. The Army of the Lord 2:11 | 32 |
| | F. Turn With All Your Heart 2:12 | 32 |
| | G. Change Your Heart and Not Your Garments 2:13-14 | 33 |
| (| 6. As Devastation Gathers, Gather the People of the Lord, Call a Solemn Assembly 2:15 | 33 |
| 7 | 7. Then the Lord will be Jealous for His Land and Pity His People 2:18-27 | 33 |
| | A. The Lord Sends Nourishment 2:19 | 33 |
| | B. The Removal of the Enemy 2:20 | 33 |
| | C. Fear Not Land 2:21-22 | 33 |
| | D. Be Glad and Rejoice Children of God for the Former Rain and the Latter Rain 2:23 | 34 |
| | E. Assurance of the Harvest 2:24 | 34 |
| | F. Assurance of Restoration from the Devasting Army 2:25 | 34 |
| | G. Plenty, Satisfaction and Praise from God's Wonderous Work 2:26 | 34 |
| | H. No More Shame 2:27 | 34 |
| 8 | The Endtime Pouring Out of the Spirit of God 2:28-32 | 34 |
| | A. The Spirit Pour Out on Everyone Despite Gender, Age, or Status 2:28-9 | 34 |
| | B. The Wondrous Signs in the Heavens 2:30-1 | 34 |
| | C. A Remnant that Is Delivered 2:32 | 35 |
| ę | The Battle, Blessing, and Judgment is for All Nations 3:1-21 | 35 |
| | A. Judah and Jerusalem Will Experience Captivity 3:1 | 35 |
| | B. All Nations will be in the Valley Jehoshaphat/Decision to Judged by the Lord for the Eternal Establishment of God's People 3:2-3 | 35 |
| | A. Commerce [Tyre & Sidon] will be Judged 3:4-8 | 35 |
| | B. Preparation Among the Gentiles-Let the Weak Say, I am Strong 3:9-10 | 35 |
| | C. All the Heathen will Be Judged in the Valley of Jehoshaphat/Decision 3:11-12 | 36 |
| | D. The Harvest of the Lord will Come in the Valley of Decision/Jehoshaphat Upon all | |
| | Nations 3:13-14 | 36 |
| | E. The Entire Earth is Affected by the Lord in Day of the Lord's Holy Mountain 3:15-18 | 36 |
| | F. The Eternal Cleansing of the Lord 3:19-21 | 36 |
| Amo | os - The Roar of God that Bids Us to Come | 36 |

| 1. Who is Amos? 1:1 | 36 |
|--|----|
| 2. The Lord will Roar 1:1-2:5 | 37 |
| A. For the Transgressions of Damascus 1:3-5 | 37 |
| B. For the Transgressions of Gaza 1:6-8 | 37 |
| C. For the Transgressions of Tyrus 1:9-10 | 37 |
| D. For the Transgressions of Edom 1:11-12 | 37 |
| E. For the Transgressions of Ammon 1:13-15 | 37 |
| F. For the Transgressions of Moab 2:1-3 | 38 |
| G. For the Transgressions of Judah 2:4-5 | 38 |
| 3. For the Transgressions of Israel 2:6-16 | 38 |
| A. They Sold the Righteous and the Poor 2:6b-7a | 38 |
| B. Sexual Profanity 2:7b-8 | 38 |
| C. Though Delivered from Egypt to Conquer the Amorites 2:9-10 | 38 |
| D. Though Raised Up Prophets and Nazarites that You Corrupted 2:11-12 | 38 |
| E. Profanity Running Over God 2:13 | 39 |
| F. The Mighty Will Not Deliver Himself 2:14-16 | 39 |
| 4. God is Against the Whole Family of Israel 3:1 | 39 |
| A. You Were Family to God 3:1-2 | 39 |
| B. Consequences of Knowing but Not Doing the Right - Not Fleeing Danger 3:3-12 | 39 |
| 1. Not Walking and Agreeing with God 3:3 | 39 |
| 2. Not Fleeing Danger 3:4-6 | 39 |
| 3. The Lord Has Warned His People and the Did Not Heed 3:7 | 39 |
| 4. The People Know but Do Not Right 3:9-10 | 39 |
| 5. The People Will Be Devoured 3:11-12 | 40 |
| 5. Visitation of God's Judgment on Israel 3:13-4:11 | 40 |
| A. Horns of the Altar Cut Off - The Day When Appeals are Over 3:13-14 | 40 |
| B. Luxury is Over 3:15 | 40 |
| C. Oppression is Over 4:1-3 | 40 |
| D. Eventual Sacrifice of Thanksgiving 4:4-5 | 40 |
| E. God Sends Want of Bread but Israel Does Not Turn 4:6-11 | 40 |
| 6. Prepare to Meet Thy God 4:12-5:27 | 41 |
| A. Prepare to Meet Thy God 4:12-13 | 41 |
| B. Lamentation for Unresponsive Israel 5:1-3 | 41 |
| C. Seek the Lord, Not a Place 5:4-6 | 41 |
| D. The Creator Judges Those Who Create Judgment to Wormwood 5:7-12 | 41 |
| E. Instructions to the Prudent 5:14-15 | 42 |
| F. Wailing In the Streets 5:16-17 | 42 |
| G. Woe to Those that Desire the Day of the Lord 5:18-20 | 42 |
| H. God Despises False Worship 5:21-23 | 42 |
| I. Call for Judgment to Run Down as Waters Upon Ungodly Worship 5:24-7 | 42 |
| 7. Woe to Those At Ease in Zion 6:1-11 | 43 |

| A. Woe to Those at Ease in Zion, Trusting in Their Own Power 6:1-2 | 43 |
|--|----|
| B. Woe to Those at Ease in Zion Who Do Not Believe the Evil of the Day 6:3-7 | 43 |
| C. God Abhors the Excellency of Jacob's Palaces 6:8- | 43 |
| 8. A Nation Will Rise Against Your Strength 6:12-14 | 43 |
| 9. The Prophet Prophesies Against the Authority of the King 7:1-8:14 | 44 |
| A. By Whom Did Jacob/Israel Arise, God 7:1-6 | 44 |
| B. The Lord Sets a Measuring Plumbline for Judgment 7:7-9 | 44 |
| C. The Priest and King Rebuke Amos 7:10-13 | 44 |
| D. Amos' Authority of a Prophet, the Lord Took Me and Said to Me 7:14-16 | 44 |
| E. Judgment and Captivity 7:17 | 45 |
| F. Judgment as a Basket of Summer Fruit 8:1-2 | 45 |
| G. Worship Songs Become Howlings 8:3 | 45 |
| H. Swallowing Up the Needy by Deceit and Religion 8:4-6 | 45 |
| I. Their Works Bring on Judgment 8:7 | 45 |
| J. Trembling of the Land at the Day of the Lord 8:8-9 | 45 |
| K. Feasts Turned Into Mourning 8:10 | 45 |
| L. Famine of the Word of God 8:11-13 | 45 |
| M. The End of False Religion 8:14 | 46 |
| 10. Amos Sees the Authority of the Lord on the Altar 9:1-10 | 46 |
| A. The Lord Standing on the Altar 9:1 | 46 |
| B. Though They Dig Into Hell, the Lord Will Bring them Down 9:2-4 | 46 |
| C. The Lord Touches the Land and It Melts 9:5-7 | 46 |
| D. The Sinful Kingdom Removed from the Face of the Earth 9:8-10 | 46 |
| 11. The Tabernacle of David at the Day of the Lord 9:11-15 | 47 |
| Obadiah - Knowing Which Side to Rise Up With in Battle | 47 |
| 1. A Rumor and An Ambassador to Arise for the Battle 1:1 | 47 |
| 2. You Are Small and Despised 1:2 | 47 |
| 3. Deceived by Pride in Your Heart 1:3 | 47 |
| 3. You Have Been Robbed - The Things of Esau 1:5-6 | 48 |
| 4. Deceived by Those You Align With 1:7 | 48 |
| 5. God's Judgment and Destruction of the Wicked 1:8-9 | 48 |
| 6. Destroyed with the Wicked 1:10-11 | 48 |
| 7. Destroyed for Not Caring for Your Brother 1:12-14 | 48 |
| 8. Your Own Reward with the Heathen 1:15-16 | 48 |
| 9. Deliverance is With the Lord-Fire and Not Stubble 1:17-19 | 49 |
| 10. The Captivity Shall Possess, Be Saved, and the Kingdom is the Lord's 1:20-21 | 49 |
| Jonah - Obedience, Mercy and Anger | 49 |
| 1. Arise, Cry Against for Wickedness is Great 1:1-2 | 49 |
| 2. But, Jonah's Disobedience 1:3 | 49 |
| 3. But, God Responds to Jonah's Disobedience 1:4-2:10 | 49 |
| A. Storm Sent by God 1:4-5 | 49 |

| B. Thrown Out of His Own Safety 1:6-16 4 | |
|---|---|
| C. Swallowed to Cry and Be Saved 1:17-2:9 5 | 0 |
| D. The Fish Obeys God and Jonah is Saved 2:10 5 | 0 |
| 4. Command a Second Time to Cry Against Wickedness 3:1-2 5 | 0 |
| 5. Jonah's Obedience 3:3a 5 | 0 |
| 6. Jonah's Journey of Obedience to Nineveh 3:3b-4 5 | 1 |
| 7. Obedience of Nineveh 3:5-95 | 1 |
| 8. God Sees the Works of Repentance of Nineveh and Responds in Forgiveness and Turns Calamity and Judgment Away from Them 3:10 | |
| 9. Jonah's Anger and Disagreement with God, Choosing Condemnation Rather than Mercy and Power of Forgiveness 4:1-11 5 | |
| A. Jonah Wants to Hurt Nineveh Because of Anger 4:1-2 5 | 1 |
| B. Jonah Wants to Hurt Himself Because of Anger 4:3 5 | 1 |
| C. God's Response to Anger 4:4 5 | 2 |
| D. Jonah's Anger Contines by "Pouting" 4:5 5 | 2 |
| E. God "Knocks" the Anger Out of Jonah and Wakes Him Up from His Anger to Understand God's Way of Mercy, Judgment and Salvation 4:6-11 5 | 2 |
| Micah - The Lord Treading Upon the High Places 5 | 2 |
| 1. The Lord Will Tread Down the High Places of the Earth 1:1-16 5 | 2 |
| A. The Lord Will Tread Down the High Places of the Earth 1:1-3 5 | 2 |
| B. Earth Affected 1:4 5 | 2 |
| C. Judah (Southern Kingdom) and Samaria (Northern Kingdom) Judged1:5 5 | 3 |
| D. Judgment on Samaria 1:6-8 5 | 3 |
| E. Judgment on Judah 1:9-12 5 | 3 |
| F. Bind the Chariot Lachish 1:13-16 5 | 3 |
| 2. Woe to Those that Work Evil Upon Their Beds 2:1-13 5 | 3 |
| A. Working Evil from Their Beds 2:1 5 | 3 |
| B. Covetousness 2:1-3 5 | 3 |
| C. Doleful Lament 2:4-5 5 | 4 |
| D. Prophesy Not That Shame Will Not Come 2:6-9 5 | 4 |
| E. This is Not Your Rest - Spirit, Falsehood and False Prophets 2:10- 5 | 4 |
| F. God's Assembly Gathering of the Remnant for the Breaker is Come 2:12-13 5 | 4 |
| 3. You Should Know Judgment is Coming 3:1-12 5 | 4 |
| A. You Should Know Because of What You Do 3:1-3 5 | 4 |
| B. When the Lord Doesn't Hear 3:4 5 | 5 |
| C. The Fate of False Prophets 3:5-7 5 | 5 |
| D. True Spirit-Filled Prophecy 3:8-12 5 | 5 |
| 4. The Last Days Established in the Mountain and House of the Lord 4:1-13 5 | 5 |
| A. Power in the Mountain/House/Presence of the Lord 4:1-3 5 | 5 |
| B. Healing and Pease 4:4-8 5 | 5 |
| C. A Time of Travail 4:9-10 5 | 6 |

| D. The Lord's People Will Arise 4:11-13 | 56 |
|---|----|
| 5. Gather for the Judge is Destroyed but the Messiah Will Rise 5:1-15 | 56 |
| A. The Judge is Smitten 5:1 | 56 |
| B. The Ruler Arises Out of Such a Small Place 5:2-4 | 56 |
| C. The Ruler of Peace when the Assyrians and Evil Come 5:5-6 | 56 |
| D. The Remnant of God's People Overcoming 5:7- | 57 |
| 6. The Lord Pleads With His People 6:1-16 | 57 |
| A. The Lord Pleads with His People 6:1-5 | 57 |
| B. In What Way Should I Come Before the Lord 6:6-8 | 57 |
| C. The Lord Cries to His People 6:9-16 | 57 |
| 7. Woe, Wait & Who is Like God 7:1-20 | 58 |
| A. Woe is Me 7:1-6 | 58 |
| B. What Waiting on the Lord is Like 7:7-10 | 58 |
| C. What the Day of Waiting is Like 7:11-13 | 58 |
| D. A Plea to God While Waiting 7:14-17 | 59 |
| E. God Responds Because of Who He Is 7:18-20 | 59 |
| Nahum - The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power - God Brings Down Bullies | 59 |
| 1. The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power 1:1-6 | 59 |
| 2. The Lord, the Stronghold Who Knows Those That Trust in Him 1:7-13 | 60 |
| A. You Cannot Imagine Against the Lord 1:9-10 | 60 |
| B. The Wicked Counselor 1:11-14 | 60 |
| 3. Behold, the One Who Brings Good Tidings 1:15-2:13 | 60 |
| A. He is Come Before Your Face 2:1 | 60 |
| B. Your "Excellency" is "Emptied" 2:2-7 | 60 |
| C. The Pool is Emptied 2:8-10 | 61 |
| D. Where are Your Lions 2:11-13 | 61 |
| 4. The Bloody Prey City is Over 3:1-19 | 61 |
| A. Woe to the Bloody City 3:1-4 | 61 |
| B. The Lord is Against the Bully 3:5-7 | 61 |
| C. They Thought They Were Better than Others 3:8 | 62 |
| D. What You Thought Was Your Strength is Gone 3:9-11 | 62 |
| E. The Bully is Destroyed 3:12-19 | 62 |
| Habakkuk - The Just Shall Live by Faith, No Matter How Long | 62 |
| 1. O, Lord, How Long? 1:1-17 | 62 |
| A. The Burden of Habakkuk 1:1-2 | 62 |
| B. Why Do You Cause Me to Grieve 1:3 | 63 |
| C. Law is Slacked and Judgment Does not Go Out 1:4 | 63 |
| D. God Speaks of the Work He Will Do and You Will Not Believe Though It be Told | |
| | 63 |
| E. Habakkuk Declares God Establishes Mighty Correction 1;12-17 | 63 |
| 2. Lord, I will Watch 2:1 | 64 |

| 3. The Lord Answered: Write for Vision Is Appointed and Will not Tarry 2:2-3 | 64 |
|---|-------|
| 4. The Just Shall Live by Faith 2:4 | 64 |
| 5. The Drunken as Death - A Parable 2:5-8 | 64 |
| 6. Woe to the Covetous 2:9-14 | 64 |
| 7. Woe to the One Who Causes Other to Tempts Others 2:15-17 | 65 |
| 8. Woe to the Idol Maker 2:18-20 | 65 |
| 9. Habakkuk's Summary Prayer - Lord, Revive Me 3:1-17 | 65 |
| A. Lord, In Wrath Remember Mercy 3:1-2 | 65 |
| B. The Coming of the Lord 3:3-6 | 65 |
| C. By the Word of the Lord the Earth is Changed 3:7-12 | 65 |
| D. The Lord's Salvation 3:13 | 66 |
| E. Rest in the Day of Trouble 3:14- | 66 |
| 10. Yet, I will Rejoice to the God of My Salvation Who Helps Me Overcome 3:17-19 | 66 |
| Zephaniah - The Day of the Lord's Consuming | 66 |
| 1. The Lord will Consume All Things From the Land 1:1-3 | 66 |
| 2. The Great Day of the Lord 1:4-18 | 67 |
| A. Consume False Worship 1:4-7 | 67 |
| B. Punish Power 1:8-10 | 67 |
| C. Bring Down Commerce and Deception 1:11-13 | 67 |
| D. The Mighty Voice and Sounds of the Great Day of the Lord 1:14 | 67 |
| E. Helpless Helpless at the Great Day of the Lord 1:15-18 | 68 |
| 2. Seek the Lord Ye Meek for the Mighty will Fall 2:1-3:4 | 68 |
| A. Gather and Seek the Lord Ye Meek Before Destruction Comes 2:1-3 | 68 |
| B. The Mighty Nations will Fall 2:4-13a | 68 |
| C. The Mighty City will Fall 2:13b-3:4 | 68 |
| 3. The Just Lord Is In the Middle of All of Your the Wickedness and Will Bring His Day 3 69 | 3:5-7 |
| 4. Wait Upon the Lord Until His Day Arises 3:8 | 69 |
| 5. God's Work Among His People in that Day 3:9-13 | 69 |
| A. Worship with Pure Language 3:9-10 | 69 |
| B. Removal of the Proud 3:11 | 70 |
| C. The Remnant the Afflicted and Poor will Trust in the Lord 3:12-13 | 70 |
| 6. Be Glad and Rejoice in the Day of the Lord With All Your Heart 3:14-17 | 70 |
| 7. The Great Gathering of the Lord in that Day 3:18-20 | 70 |
| Haggai - Building and Shaking | 71 |
| 1. God's House Versus Your House 1:1-11 | 71 |
| A. Time to Build God's House 1:1-4 | 71 |
| B. Consider Your House You Have Sown Into 1:5-6 | 71 |
| C. Consider God's House that is Waste 1:7-9 | 71 |
| D. God Will Judge You with the House of Heaven 1:10-11 | 71 |
| 2. The People Obey and Then God Is With Them 1:12-13 | 71 |

| 3. The Lord Stirs the Spirit of the People to Build as With the Tabernacle in the Wilderness 1:14 (rf Exodus 35) | s 72 |
|---|----------|
| 4. The Lord Gives Strength for Building 1:15-2:4 (rf Exodus 35) | 72 |
| 5. The Lord's Endtime Covenant About His People and His House 2:5-9 | 72 |
| 6. Remain Holy 2:10-19 | 72 |
| A. The Requirement of Holiness 2:10-13 | 72 |
| B. Holiness in Your Labour 2:15-17 | 73 |
| C. Consider the Blessing of the Lord 2:18-19 | 73 |
| 7. The Shaking of the Heavens and the Earth in the Day of the Lord 2:20-23 | 73 |
| Zechariah - Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You | 73 |
| 1. Turn for the Harvest and Judgment of the Lord is Coming 1:1-2:13 | 73 |
| A. Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You 1:1-3 | 73 |
| B. Be Not as Your Fathers 1:4-6 | 74 |
| C. Vision of the Man on the Red Horse Among the Myrtle Trees (Sign of the Feast of | |
| Tabernacles and the Harvest) 1:7-11 | 74 |
| D. The Lord's Mercy and Words of Comfort 1:12-13 | 74 |
| E. God's Jealousy and Mercy for His People and the Building of His House 1:14-17 | 74 |
| F. Vision of Four Horns 1:18-19 | 75 |
| G. Vision of Four Carpenters 1:20-21 | 75 |
| H. Vision of a Man With a Measuring Line and the Habitation of the Jerusalem and Presence of the Lord 2:1-5 | 75 |
| I. Call to God's People to Come Out and Be Delivered 2:6-9 | 75 |
| J. Rejoice for the Lord Will Dwell With You 2:10-13 | 75 |
| 2. The Branch/Messiah Replaces the High Priest 3:1-10 | 76 |
| 3. The King/Governor Replaced by the Branch/Messiah Ruling All the Earth 4:1-6:8 | 76 |
| A. The King/Governor is Replaced - Vision of the Branch Flowing to the Candlesticks, Bowl, Lamps and Pipes 4:1-14 | 76 |
| 1. The Vision 4:1-3 | 76 |
| The Governor/King Used Temporarily But Ultimately by the Spirit of the Lord 4:4-10 | 77 |
| 3. The Anointed Branches 4:11-14 | 77 |
| B. Vision of the Flying Roll Over All the Earth Judging the Thief 5:1-4 | 77 |
| C. Vision of the Ephah Judging Wickedness and Idolatry Through All the Earth 5:5-11 | 78 |
| D. Vision of the Four Chariots Judging All the Earth 6:1-8 | 78 |
| 4. The Temple Replaced by the Branch 6:9-9:15 | 79 |
| A. The Branch will Build the Temple, Receive the Glory, and Rule from His Throne Wit | h |
| B. Seek the Lord and Not the Temple 7:1-7 | 79 |
| C. Scattered Hearts of Stone, You Didn't Seek the Lord 7:8-14 | 79 |
| D. The Lord Returns to Zion, It's Not About the Temple and the People Will Be Joyous | in |
| the City 8:1-17 E. Many Nations Shall Come to Seek the Lord in the New Jerusalem 8:18-23 | 80 81 |
| E. Many realistic chair come to cook the Lord in the new octubation 0.10-25 | 01 |

| F. All the Tribes of the Lord Will Turn to the Lord and Not the Temple 9:1 | 81 |
|--|-----------|
| G. Tyre and Sidon will Fall 9:2-4 (Rev. 17-18 The Harlot/Commerce) | 81 |
| H. Philistines will Follow the Lord 9:5-7 | 81 |
| I. The House/Camp of the Lord will Prevail Against the Army of the Deceived 9:8-15 | 82 |
| 5. Rise of the Shepherd Messiah to Replace Ungodly Shepherds (Completes Christ as Kin | ng, |
| Priest, Temple &Shepherd) 9:16-11:17 | 82 |
| A. The Lord Saves His Flock 9:16-17 | 82 |
| B. The Latter Rain Will Provide Pasture 10:1-2 | 82 |
| C. God's Anger at Evil Shepherds Turning His Flock Into His Horse for Battle 10:3-5 | 83 |
| D. God Strengthens His House 10:6-8 | 83 |
| E. God Gathers His People from Far Countries 10:9-11:2 | 83 |
| F. Evil Shepherds Howl But Their Slaughtered Flock is Fed by the Lord as Shepherd 11:3-17 | 83 |
| 1. The Howling Shepherds Removed 11:3-6 | 83 |
| God Feeds the Slaughtered Flock with Two Staffs, Beauty (the Cut Staff) and Bands, that Cut Off the Evil Shepherds 11:7-9 | 84 |
| The Cutting of Both Staffs - The Messiah is Crucified by the Betrayer for 30 Piec of Silver 11:10-14 | ces 84 |
| Foolish Shepherd AntiChrist Idol Shepherd Arises but Will be Destroyed 10:15- 84 | 17 |
| 6. The Day When All Nations of the Earth Rise Against the City of God and Are Defeated 12:1-14:4 | 84 |
| A. The Burden of the Lord of All the Earth and Forming of the Spirit of Man 12:1 | 84 |
| B. The Day of the Lord When the City of God Will Be a Cup of Trembling to all People the Earth 12:2-13:7 | of 85 |
| The Day When All Nations Gather Against God's People in His City and Are Destroyed (Rev 20:7-10 Battle of Armageddon) 12:2-9 | 85 |
| The Day of Grace, Mourning, and Bitterness Providing a Fountain for Sin and Uncleanness (Prophetic of the Cross) 12:10-13:6 | 85 |
| 3. The Day When the Shepherd of the Lord is Smitten 13:7 | 86 |
| C. The Day of the Lord, the Final Battle, and Fire 13:8-14:4 | 86 |
| 7. Second Coming of the Lord, the Day of the Lord, and the New Heaven and New Earth 14:5-11 | 87 |
| A. The Lord Coming with the Saints 14:5 | 87 |
| B. The Day of the Lord, the Lord is the Light 14:6-7 | 87 |
| C. The Day of the Lord, Living Waters Flowing (rf Rev 22 New Heaven and New Earth and Isaiah 65) 14:8-10 | 87 |
| 8. The Final Judgment (Rev 16 and 20) 14:12-15 | 87 |
| 9. The Worship of the Lord in the New Heaven and New Earth - Return to the Myrtle Trees 14:16-21 | s 88 |
| Malachi - Why Do You Question God's Love When Your Worship, Offerings, and Service | |
| are Corrupt | 88 |
| 1. Why Do You Question God's Love? 1:1-2a | 88 |

| 2. God's Love for Jacob and Not Esau 1:2b-4 | 88 |
|---|-----|
| 3. The Glory of the Lord Revealed Despite Unfaithful Priests and Polluted Sacrifices 1:5- 89 | -14 |
| 4. Commandment and Curse to the Priests Who Do Not Hear and Obey 2:1-9 | 89 |
| 5. Have We Not All One Father-Why Are You Treacherous to One Another 2:10-12 | 90 |
| 6. Tears On the Altar but Not What the Lord Requires 2:13- | 90 |
| A. Tears but Insincere Offerings of Worship 2:13 | 90 |
| B. Tears but Mistreatment of Spouses 2:14-16 | 90 |
| C. The Lord is Tired of Excuses 2:17 | 91 |
| 7. The Lord and His Messenger Comes, Insincere Tears are Over 3:1-5 | 91 |
| A. To Preserve His Covenant 3:1 | 91 |
| B. To Refine and Purify 3:2-4 | 91 |
| C. For Swift Judgment 3:5 | 91 |
| 8. Being God's People 3:6-15 | 91 |
| A. Are not Consumed 3:6 | 91 |
| B. God's People Must Return Unto the Lord 3:7 | 92 |
| C. Not "Rob" God of His Tithes and Offering 3:8-12 | 92 |
| 1. Cursed for Robbing God 3:9 | 92 |
| 2. Tithe for God's Storehouse 3:10a | 92 |
| 3. God's Blessings for Tithers 3:10b-12 | 92 |
| D. Not Use "Stout" Words Against the Lord 3:13-15 | 92 |
| 9. The Day of the Lord is the Day of the Book of Remembrance 3:16-4:5 | 92 |

This page intentionally left blank

Hosea - The End is Like Tenacious Love for an Unfaithful Bride Returning to Her Husband Chps 1-14

1. Hosea Takes a Harlot as Wife to Illustrate the Lord's Love for His People and the Latter Return of His People to Him 1-3

A. Days of Uzziah, Jotham, Ahaz, and Hezekiah, kings of Judah, and in the days of Jeroboam the son of Joash, king of Israel 1:1

1:1 The word of the Lord that came unto Hosea, the son of Beeri, in the days of Uzziah, Jotham, Ahaz, and Hezekiah, kings of Judah, and in the days of Jeroboam the son of Joash, king of Israel.

B. Whoredom as Wife and the Land 1:2

2 The beginning of the word of the Lord by Hosea. And the Lord said to Hosea, Go, take unto thee a wife of whoredoms and children of whoredoms: for the land hath committed great whoredom, departing from the Lord.

C. Jezreel, Son of Vengeance Over Israel 1:3-5

3 So he went and took Gomer the daughter of Diblaim; which conceived, and bare him a son. 4 And the Lord said unto him, Call his name Jezreel; for yet a little while, and I will avenge the blood of Jezreel upon the house of Jehu, and will cause to cease the kingdom of the house of Israel.5 And it shall come to pass at that day, that I will break the bow of Israel, in the valley of Jezreel.

D. Loruhamah, Daughter of No Mercy for Israel but Mercy for Judah 1:6-7

6 And she conceived again, and bare a daughter. And God said unto him, Call her name Loruhamah: for I will no more have mercy upon the house of Israel; but I will utterly take them away. 7 But I will have mercy upon the house of Judah, and will save them by the Lord their God, and will not save them by bow, nor by sword, nor by battle, by horses, nor by horsemen.

E. Loammi, Son of Not My People Israel but Children of the Living God, One People in the Day of Jezreel 1:8-10

8 Now when she had weaned Loruhamah, she conceived, and bare a son. 9 Then said God, Call his name Loammi: for ye are not my people, and I will not be your God. 10 Yet the number of the children of Israel shall be as the sand of the sea, which cannot be measured nor numbered; and it shall come to pass, that in the place where it was said unto them, Ye are not my people, there it shall be said unto them, Ye are the sons of the living God.

F. Judah and Israel One 1:11

11 Then shall the children of Judah and the children of Israel be gathered together, and appoint themselves one head, and they shall come up out of the land: for great shall be the day of Jezreel.

G. Plea from Her Children for Gomer to Repent of Unfaithfulness 2:1-5

2:1 Say ye unto your brethren, Ammi [Loammi]; and to your sisters, Ruhamah. 2 Plead with your mother, plead: for <u>she is not my wife, neither am I her husband</u>: let her therefore put away her whoredoms out of her sight, and her adulteries from between her breasts; 3 Lest I strip her naked, and set her as in the day that she was born, and make her as a wilderness, and set her like a dry land, and slay her with thirst. 4 And I will not have mercy upon her children; for they be the children of whoredoms. 5 For their mother hath played the harlot: she that conceived them hath done shamefully: for she said, I will go after my lovers, that give me my bread and my water, my wool and my flax, mine oil and my drink.

H. Return of Gomer to Her First Husband 2:6-8

6 Therefore, behold, I will hedge up thy way with thorns, and make a wall, that she shall not find her paths. 7 And <u>she shall follow after her lovers, but she shall not overtake them; and she shall seek them, but shall not find them: then shall she say, I will go and return to my first husband; for then was it better with me than now. 8 For she did not know that I gave her corn, and wine, and oil, and multiplied her silver and gold, which they prepared for Baal.</u>

I. The Lord's Return/Visitation to Stop Gomer 2:9-13

9 Therefore <u>will I return</u>, and take away my corn in the time thereof, and my wine in the season thereof, and will recover my wool and my flax given to cover her nakedness. 10 And now <u>will I discover her lewdness in the sight of her lovers</u>, and none shall deliver her out of mine hand. 11 <u>I will also cause all her mirth to cease</u>, her feast days, her new moons, and her sabbaths, and all her solemn feasts. 12 And <u>I will destroy her vines and her fig trees</u>, whereof she hath said. <u>These are my rewards</u> that my lovers have given me: and I will make them a forest, and the beasts of the field shall eat them. 13 And <u>I will visit upon her the days of Baalim</u>, wherein she burned incense to them, and she decked herself with her earrings and her jewels, and she went after her lovers. and forgat me, saith the Lord.

J. The Day Gomer Calls the Lord "Husband" and Not "Baali" 2:14-16

14 Therefore, behold, <u>I will allure her</u>, and bring her into the wilderness, and <u>speak comfortably</u> <u>unto her</u>. 15 And <u>I will give her</u> her vineyards from thence, and the valley of Achor for a door of hope: and she shall sing there, as in the days of her youth, and as in the day when she came up

out of the land of Egypt. 16 And it shall be at that day, saith the Lord, that thou shalt call me Ishi; and shalt call me no more Baali.[Prophetic of the Marriage of the Lamb and the Church]

K. The Covenant of the New Heaven and New Earth, the City Prepared for the Bride as Fulfillment of Jezreel 2: 17-22

17 For <u>I will take away the names of Baalim out of her mouth</u>, and they shall no more be remembered by their name. 18 And <u>in that day will I make a covenant for them with the beasts</u> of the field and with the fowls of heaven, and with the creeping things of the ground: and I will <u>break the bow and the sword and the battle out of the earth</u>, and will make them to lie down <u>safely</u>.

[Fulfillment of the Marriage of the Lamb and the Church]

19 And I will betroth thee unto me for ever; yea, I will betroth thee unto me in righteousness, and in judgment, and in lovingkindness, and in mercies. 20 I will even betroth thee unto me in faithfulness: and thou shalt know the Lord.

21 And it shall come to pass in that day, I will hear, saith the Lord, I will hear the heavens, and they shall hear the earth; 22 And the earth shall hear the corn, and the wine, and the oil; and they shall hear Jezreel.

L. As the Bride Once Again "My People" by/with the Lord 2:23

23 And I will sow her unto me in the earth; and I will have mercy upon her that had not obtained mercy; and I will say to them which were not my people. Thou art my people; and they shall say. Thou art my God.

M. Gomer Takes a Harlot for His Wife Who then Does Not Have Other Lovers 3:1-3

3:1 Then said the Lord unto me, <u>Go yet, love a woman beloved of her friend, yet an adulteress, according to the love of the Lord toward the children of Israel, who look to other gods</u>, and love flagons of wine. 2 So I bought her to me for fifteen pieces of silver, and for an homer of barley, and an half homer of barley: 3 And I said unto her, Thou shalt abide for me many days; <u>thou shalt not play the harlot</u>, and thou shalt not be for another man: so will I also be for thee.

N. Israel Goes Without "Lovers" and then Seeks the Lord in the Latter Days 3:4-5

4 For the children of <u>Israel shall abide many days without a king</u>, and without a prince, and <u>without a sacrifice</u>, and without an image, and without an ephod, and without teraphim:

5 Afterward shall the children of Israel return, and seek the Lord their God, and David their king [Prophetic of Christ]; and shall fear the Lord and his goodness in the latter days.

2. When the Deceived Think They Know Everything 4:1-14

A. God Confronts No Truth, No Mercy and No Knowledge of God in the Land 4:1-3

4:1 Hear the word of the Lord, ye children of Israel: for the Lord hath a **controversy** with the inhabitants of the land, because there is no truth, nor mercy, nor knowledge of God in the land. 2 By swearing, and lying, and killing, and stealing, and committing adultery, they break out, and blood toucheth blood. 3 Therefore shall the land mourn, and every one that dwelleth therein shall languish, with the beasts of the field, and with the fowls of heaven; yea, the fishes of the sea also shall be taken away.

B. Don't Argue With Them 4:4

4 Yet let no man strive, nor reprove another: for thy people are as they that strive with the priest.

C. Rejected by God Because They Think They Know it All 4:5-6

5 Therefore shalt thou fall in the day, and the prophet also shall fall with thee in the night, and I will destroy thy mother. 6 My people are destroyed for lack of knowledge: because thou hast rejected knowledge, I will also reject thee, that thou shalt be no priest to me: seeing thou hast forgotten the law of thy God, I will also forget thy children.

D. False Self-Glory that is Shame 4:7-10

7 <u>As they were increased, so they sinned against me: therefore will I change their glory into</u> shame. 8 <u>They eat up the sin of my people, and they set their heart on their iniquity</u>. 9 And <u>there</u> shall be, like people, like priest: and I will punish them for their ways, and reward them their doings. 10 For <u>they shall eat, and not have enough</u>: they shall commit <u>whoredom</u>, and shall not increase: because <u>they have left off to take heed to the Lord</u>.

E. When the Heart is Taken 4:11-14

11 Whoredom and wine and new wine take away the heart.

12<u>My people ask counsel</u> at their stocks, and their staff declareth unto them: for the spirit of whoredoms hath caused them to err, and they have gone a whoring from under their God.

13 <u>They sacrifice</u> upon the tops of the mountains, and burn incense upon the hills, under oaks and poplars and elms, because the shadow thereof is good: therefore your daughters shall commit whoredom, and your spouses shall commit adultery.

14 I will not punish your daughters when they commit whoredom, nor your spouses when they <u>commit adultery</u>: for themselves are separated with whores, and they sacrifice with harlots: therefore the people that doth not understand shall fall.

3. Working Together Against God Does Not Work 4:15-5:14

A. The Defilement of the Northern Kingdom, Israel 4:15-5:4

15 Though thou, <u>Israel, play the harlot</u>, yet <u>let not Judah offend</u>; and come not ye unto Gilgal, neither go ye up to Bethaven, nor swear, The Lord liveth. 16 For Israel slideth back <u>as a backsliding heifer</u>: now the Lord will <u>feed them as a lamb in a large place</u>. 17 <u>Ephraim</u> [the religious center of the Northern Kingdom located in the south of the Northern Kingdom Israel] <u>is</u> joined to idols: let him alone. 18 Their drink is sour: they have committed whoredom continually: her rulers with shame do love, Give ye. 19 <u>The wind hath bound her up in her wings</u>, and they shall be ashamed because of their sacrifices. 5:1 Hear ye this, O priests; and hearken, ye house of Israel; and give ye ear, O house of the king; for judgment is toward you, because ye have been a snare on Mizpah, and a net spread upon Tabor. 2 And the revolters are profound to make slaughter, though I have been a rebuker of them all. 3 I know <u>Ephraim</u>, and Israel is not hid from me: for now, O Ephraim, thou committest whoredom, and Israel is defiled. 4 They will not frame their doings to turn unto their God: for the spirit of whoredoms is in the midst of them, and they have not known the Lord.

B. Judah, the Southern Kingdom, Falls with Israel, the Northern Kingdom 5:5-12

5 And the pride of Israel doth testify to his face: therefore shall Israel and Ephraim fall in their iniquity: Judah also shall fall with them. 6 They shall go with their flocks and with their herds to seek the Lord; but they shall not find him; he hath withdrawn himself from them. 7 They have dealt treacherously against the Lord: for they have begotten strange children: now shall a month devour them with their portions.

8<u>Blow ye the cornet in Gibeah, and the trumpet in Ramah: cry aloud</u> at Bethaven, after thee, O Benjamin [the Southern Kingdom]. 9 Ephraim shall be desolate in the day of rebuke: among the tribes of Israel have I made known that which shall surely be. 10 The <u>princes of Judah were like</u> them that remove the bound: therefore I will pour out my wrath upon them like water. 11 Ephraim is oppressed and broken in judgment, because he willingly walked after the commandment. 12 Therefore will I be unto Ephraim as a moth, <u>and to the house of Judah</u> as rottenness.

C. The Peril of Entanglement - When the Northern Kingdom tried to "Help" the Southern Kingdom and the Southern Kingdom Worked Together 5:13-14

13 When Ephraim saw his sickness, and Judah saw his wound, then went Ephraim to the Assyrian, and sent to king Jareb: yet could he not heal you, nor cure you of your wound. 14 For I will be unto Ephraim as a lion, and <u>as a young lion to the house of Judah</u>: I, even I, will tear and go away; I will take away, and none shall rescue him.

4. In Their Affliction They Will Seek Me Early 5:15 - 6:6

A. The Resurrection and the Spirit Poured Out 5:15-6:3

15 I will go and return to my place, till they acknowledge their offence, and seek my face: in their affliction they will seek me early. 6:1 Come, and let us return unto the Lord: for he hath torn, and he will heal us; he hath smitten, and he will bind us up. 2 After two days will he revive us: in the third day he will raise us up, and we shall live in his sight. 3 Then shall we know, if we follow on to know the Lord: his going forth is prepared as the morning; and he shall come unto us as the rain, as the latter and former rain unto the earth.

B. God Desires Mercy and Knowledge [Truth] of Him 6:4-6

4 O Ephraim, what shall I do unto thee? O Judah, what shall I do unto thee? for <u>your goodness</u> is as a morning cloud, and as the early dew it goeth away. 5 Therefore have I hewed them by the prophets; <u>I have slain them by the words of my mouth</u>: and thy judgments are as the light that goeth forth. 6 For I desired mercy, and not sacrifice; and the knowledge of God more than <u>burnt offerings</u>.

5. Israel and Judah's Response of Treachery 6:7-7:15

A. The Broken Covenant 6:7-10

7 But they like men have transgressed the covenant: there have <u>they dealt treacherously</u> <u>against me.</u> 8 Gilead [religious center of Northern Kingdom] is a city of them that <u>work iniquity</u>, <u>and is polluted with blood</u>. 9 And as troops of robbers wait for a man, so <u>the company of priests</u> <u>murder in the way by consent</u>: for they commit lewdness. 10 I have seen an horrible thing in the house of Israel: there is the whoredom of Ephraim, Israel is defiled.

B. When God Would Have Healed Them, They Thought God Would Not Remember Their Wickedness 6:11-7:2

11<u>Also, O Judah, he hath set an harvest for thee</u>, when I returned the captivity of my people. 7:1 <u>When I would have healed Israel, then the iniquity of Ephraim was discovered</u>, and the wickedness of Samaria: for they commit falsehood; and the thief cometh in, and the troop of robbers spoileth without. 2 And <u>they consider not in their hearts that I remember all their</u> <u>wickedness</u>: now their own doings have beset them about; they are before my face.

C. Catering to Power and Political Might, The Fall Comes Like a Forgotten, Overheated Oven 7:3-8

3<u>They make the king glad with their wickedness, and the princes with their lies</u>. 4 They are all adulterers, <u>as an oven heated by the baker</u>, who ceaseth from raising after he hath kneaded the dough, until it be leavened. 5 In the day of our king the princes have made him sick with bottles

of wine; he stretched out his hand with <u>scorners</u>. 6 For <u>they have made ready their heart like an</u> <u>oven</u>, whiles they lie in wait: <u>their baker sleepeth all the night; in the morning it burneth as a</u> <u>flaming fire</u>. 7 They are all <u>hot as an oven</u>, and have devoured their judges; all their kings are fallen: there is none among them that calleth unto me.8 Ephraim, he hath mixed himself among the people; <u>Ephraim is a cake not turned</u>.

D. Feeble and Not Knowing It 7:9-10

9 Strangers have devoured his strength, and he knoweth it not: yea, gray hairs are here and there upon him, <u>yet he knoweth not</u>. 10 And the pride of Israel testifieth to his face: and they do not return to the Lord their God, nor seek him for all this.

E. A Heatless Dove Calling for Others to Help 7:11-12

11 Ephraim also is like a <u>silly dove without heart: they call to Egypt, they go to Assyria</u>. 12 When they shall go, <u>I will spread my net upon them</u>; I will bring them down as the fowls of the heaven; I will chastise them, as their congregation hath heard.

F. I Have Redeemed Them, Yet They Have Spoken Lies Against Me 7:13-15

13 Woe unto them! for they have fled from me: destruction unto them! because they have transgressed against me: though I have redeemed them, yet they have spoken lies against me. 14 And they have not cried unto me with their heart, when they howled upon their beds: they assemble themselves for corn and wine, and they rebel against me. 15 Though I have bound and strengthened their arms, yet do they imagine mischief against me.

6. The Deceit and Downfall of Dependence on Power 7:16-8:15

A. The Rage of the Tongue Destroyed by the Eagle (Nebuchadnezzar) 7:16-8:4

16 <u>They return, but not to the most High</u>: they are like a <u>deceitful bow</u>: their princes shall fall by the sword <u>for the rage of their tongue</u>: this shall be their derision in the land of Egypt. 8:1 <u>Set the trumpet to thy mouth</u>. <u>He shall come as an eagle against the house of the Lord</u>, because they have transgressed my covenant, and trespassed against my law. 2 Israel shall cry unto me, <u>My</u> <u>God</u>, we know thee. 3 Israel hath cast off the thing that is good: the enemy shall pursue him. 4 <u>They have set up kings</u>, <u>but not by me</u>: they have made princes, and I knew it not: of their silver and their gold have they made them idols, that they may be cut off.

B. Not Giving Up the "Calf" 8:5-6

5 <u>Thy calf</u>, O Samaria, hath cast thee off; mine anger is kindled against them: how long will it be ere they attain to innocency? 6 For from Israel was it also: the workman made it; therefore it is not God: but <u>the calf of Samaria shall be broken in pieces</u>.

C. Reaping the Whirlwind, When Dependence on Political Alliances Fails 8:7-8

7 For they have sown the wind, and they shall reap the whirlwind: it hath no stalk; the bud shall yield no meal: if so be it yield, the strangers shall swallow it up. 8 Israel is swallowed up: now shall they be among the Gentiles as a vessel wherein is no pleasure.

D. "Hiring" Lovers 8:9-11

9 For they are gone up to Assyria, a wild ass alone by himself: <u>Ephraim hath hired lovers</u>. 10 Yea, though <u>they have hired among the nations</u>, now will I gather them, and they shall sorrow a little for the burden of the king of princes. 11 Because <u>Ephraim hath made many altars</u> to sin, altars shall be unto him to sin.

E. When Truth Becomes "Strange" 8:12-15

12<u>I have written to him the great things of my law, but they were counted as a strange thing</u>. 13 They sacrifice flesh for the sacrifices of mine offerings, and eat it; but the Lord accepteth them not; now will he remember their iniquity, and visit their sins: <u>they shall return to Egypt</u>. [prophetic of the remnant after the Fall of Jerusalem fleeing to Egypt] 14 For Israel hath forgotten his Maker, and buildeth temples; and Judah hath multiplied fenced cities: but <u>I will</u> <u>send a fire upon his cities, and it shall devour the palaces thereof</u>.[Nebuchadnezzar destroyed Jerusalem by fire]

7. Israel Becomes a Whore by Rejecting God 9:1-10:1

A. Loving a "Reward" More than God and Eating from the Floor Rather than From God 9:1-6

9:1 Rejoice not, O Israel, for joy, as other people: for thou hast gone a whoring from thy God, thou hast loved a reward upon every cornfloor. 2 The floor and the winepress shall not feed them, and the new wine shall fail in her. 3 They shall not dwell in the Lord's land; but <u>Ephraim shall return to Egypt</u>, and they shall <u>eat unclean things in Assyria.</u> [prophetic of Bablylonian captivity] 4 They shall not offer wine offerings to the Lord, neither shall they be pleasing unto him: their sacrifices shall be unto them as the bread of mourners; all that eat thereof shall be polluted: for their bread for their soul shall not come into the house of the Lord. 5 What will ye do in the solemn day, and in the day of the feast of the Lord? 6 For, lo, they are gone because of destruction: Egypt shall gather them up, Memphis shall bury them: the pleasant places for their silver, nettles shall possess them: thorns shall be in their tabernacles.

B. Rejection of God's Word and Work 9:7-8

7 The <u>days of visitation are come</u>, the <u>days of recompence are come</u>; <u>Israel shall know it: the</u> prophet is a fool, the spiritual man is mad, for the multitude of thine iniquity, and the great <u>hatred</u>. [the perspective of the people about God speaking and being spiritually devoted to God]

8 The watchman of Ephraim was with my God: but the prophet is a snare of a fowler in all his ways, and hatred in the house of his God.

C. The Self-Corrupting of Leaving God 9:9

9 **They have deeply corrupted themselves**, as in the days of Gibeah: therefore he will remember their iniquity, he will visit their sins.

The Days of Gibeah -There are four candidates for events that happened in Gibeah:

- Joshua 10.1-28. At Gilgal, Joshua made peace with men from Gibeon who cunningly tricked him; afterwards war came when the surrounding tribes attacked, and Joshua marched through the night to Gibeon and attacked the attackers. Stones fell from heaven to destroy them, the sun and moon stopped above Gibeah, and the five kings were hanged on trees until evening, then placed in a cave with a stone against it.
- 2. Judges 19-21. The Levite rides up at night to Gibeah, men surround the house where he shelters, and his concubine is killed, leading to war where the other tribes attack Gibeon, reducing Benjamin to 600 men hiding on the rock of Rimmon.
- 3. 1 Sam 10-11. Saul is at his home in Gibeah when the messengers arrive of the threats against the city of Jabesh-Gilead. Like the Levite's concubine, Saul cuts up two oxen, sends them out, and then wages war to relieve the city.
- 4. "Days of Gibeah" could refer to the kingship of Saul as a whole.from: <u>https://hermeneutics.stackexchange.com/questions/68526/the-meaning-of-hosea-1</u> <u>0-9-the-days-of-gibeah</u>

D. The Glory of Israel and Ephraim Departs 9:10-11

10<u>I found Israel like grapes in the wilderness</u>; I saw your fathers as the firstripe in the fig tree at her first time: but they went to Baalpeor, and separated themselves unto that shame; and their abominations were according as they loved. 11 As for <u>Ephraim</u>, their glory shall fly away like a <u>bird</u>, from the birth, and from the womb, and from the conception.

E. Ephraim and Israel Will Bear No Children 9:12-10:1

12 Though they bring up their children, yet will I bereave them, that there shall not be a man left: yea, woe also to them <u>when I depart from them!</u> 13 Ephraim, as I saw Tyrus, is planted in a pleasant place: but <u>Ephraim shall bring forth his children to the murderer</u>. 14 Give them, O Lord: what wilt thou give? <u>give them a miscarrying womb</u> and dry breasts. 15 All their wickedness is in Gilgal: for there I hated them: for the wickedness of their doings I will drive them out of mine house, I will love them no more: all their princes are revolters. 16 <u>Ephraim is smitten, their root is dried up, they shall bear no fruit</u>: yea, though they bring forth, yet will I slay even the beloved fruit of their womb. 17 My God will cast them away, because they did not hearken unto him: and they shall be wanderers among the nations. 10:1 <u>Israel is an empty vine</u>, he bringeth forth fruit unto himself: according to the multitude of his fruit he hath increased the altars; according to the goodness of his land they have made goodly images.

8. Consequences of a Divided Heart 10:1-11

A. Divided Loyalties, Kings versus God 10:2-4

2 <u>Their heart is divided</u>; now shall they be found faulty: he shall break down their altars, he shall spoil their images. 3 For now they shall say, We have no king, because we feared not the Lord; what then should a king do to us? 4 They have spoken words, <u>swearing falsely in making a covenant</u>: thus judgment springeth up as hemlock in the furrows of the field.

B. The Glory Departs, Crying for the Mountains and Hills to Fall on Us 10:5-8

5 The inhabitants of Samaria shall fear because of the calves of Bethaven: for the people thereof shall mourn over it, and the priests thereof that rejoiced on it, for the glory thereof, because it is departed from it. 6 It shall be also carried unto Assyria for a present to king Jareb: Ephraim shall receive shame, and Israel shall be ashamed of his own counsel. 7 As for Samaria, her king is cut off as the foam upon the water. 8 The high places also of Aven, the sin of Israel, shall be destroyed: the thorn and the thistle shall come up on their altars; and they shall say to the mountains. Cover us: and to the hills. Fall on us.

Aven - Meaning "empty," another name for Bethel. Jeroboam had set up there (1 Kings 12:28) a false temple in an effort to replace the Temple in Jerusalem.

"Fall on us" - Perhaps prophetic of the End Times Luke 23:30 Then shall they begin to say to the mountains, Fall on us; and to the hills, Cover us. Revelation 6:16 And said to the mountains and rocks, Fall on us, and hide us from the face of him that sitteth on the throne, and from the wrath of the Lamb:

C. Israel Plowed Up for Sins Since the Battle of Gibeah 10:9-11

9 **O Israel, thou hast sinned from the days of Gibeah**: there they stood: **the battle in Gibeah** against the children of iniquity did not overtake them.

[The Battle of Gibeah is an episode in the Book of Judges (chps19-20). The battle was triggered by an incident of gross inhospitality on part of the Tribe of Benjamin, in which a concubine belonging to a man from the Tribe of Levi was raped to death by a rowdy mob. The Levite had offered his concubine to the mob in place of himself (whom the mob originally sought to "be intimate with"), saying "bring out the man that came into your house, so that we may be intimate with him" and then locked the door for the night. In the morning the Levite found his dead concubine at the door, and butchered her into twelve pieces, and sent the pieces throughout all the territory of Israel. The outraged tribes of Israel sought justice, and asked for the miscreants to be delivered for judgment. The Benjamites refused, so the tribes then sought vengeance, and in the subsequent war, the members of Tribe of Benjamin were systematically killed, including women and children; when Benjamin was nearly 'extinguished', it was decided that the tribe

should be allowed to survive, and all the men from another town, Jabesh Gilead, that had refused to take part in the punishment of the Tribe of Benjamin, were killed, so that their daughters could be wed to the surviving men of Benjamin. The first king of Israel, Saul, descended from these men. Due to this war, the Tribe of Benjamin was subsequently referred to as "the smallest of all the tribes." (from

https://military-history.fandom.com/wiki/Battle_of_Gibeah#:~:text=The%20Battle%20of%20Gibeah%20is,death%20by%20a%20rowdy%20mob.)]

10 It is in my desire that <u>I should chastise them; and the people shall be gathered against them</u>, when they shall bind themselves in their two furrows. 11 And Ephraim is as an heifer that is taught, and loveth to tread out the corn; but I passed over upon her fair neck: <u>I will make</u> <u>Ephraim to ride</u>; <u>Judah shall plow</u>, and <u>Jacob shall break his clods</u>.

9. The Northern Kingdom Cut Off Because of What They Forgot 10:12 - 11:7

A. Cutoff Because of Forgetting Mercy 10:12-15

12 Sow to yourselves in righteousness, reap in mercy; break up your fallow ground: for it is time to seek the Lord, till he come and rain righteousness upon you. 13 Ye have plowed wickedness, ye have reaped iniquity; ye have eaten the fruit of lies: because thou didst trust in thy way, in the multitude of thy mighty men.14 Therefore shall a tumult arise among thy people, and all thy fortresses shall be spoiled, as Shalman spoiled Betharbel in the day of battle: the mother was dashed in pieces upon her children. 15 So shall Bethel do unto you because of your great wickedness: in a morning shall the king of Israel utterly be cut off.

B. God's Lament of Israel: When Israel was a Child, God Loved Him, "Calling My Son Out of Egypt" 11:1-4

11:1 <u>When Israel was a child, then I loved him, and called my son out of Egypt</u>. 2 As they called them, so they went from them: they sacrificed unto Baalim, and burned incense to graven images. 3 <u>I taught Ephraim also to go, taking them by their arms; but they knew not that I healed them</u>. 4 I drew them with cords of a man, <u>with bands of love</u>: and I was to them as they that take off the yoke on their jaws, and I laid meat unto them.

C. The Destruction of the Northern Kingdom 11:5

5<u>He shall not return into the land of Egypt, and the Assyrian shall be his king</u>, because they refused to return.6 And the sword shall abide on his cities, and shall consume his branches, and devour them, because of their own counsels.

D, Worshiping but Not Exalting God 11:6 - 7

7 And <u>my people are bent to backsliding from me</u>: though they called them to the most High, <u>none at all would exalt him.</u>

10. The Southern Kingdom Spared Despite Her Sins 11:8 - 12

8 <u>How shall I give thee up, Ephraim</u>? how shall I deliver thee, Israel? how shall I make thee as Admah? how shall I set thee as Zeboim? [two cities destroyed with Sodom and Gomorrah] <u>mine</u> heart is turned within me, my repentings are kindled together. 9 I will not execute the fierceness of mine anger, I will not return to destroy Ephraim: for I am God, and not man; the Holy One in the midst of thee: and I will not enter into the city. 10 They shall walk after the Lord: he shall roar like a lion: when he shall roar, then the children shall tremble from the west. 11 They shall tremble as a bird out of Egypt, and as a dove out of the land of Assyria: and I will place them in their houses, saith the Lord. 12 Ephraim compasseth me about with lies, and the house of Israel with deceit: but Judah yet ruleth with God, and is faithful with the saints. 12:1 Ephraim feedeth on wind, and followeth after the east wind: he daily increaseth lies and desolation; and they do make a covenant with the Assyrians, and oil is carried into Egypt.

11. God's Love Despite the Deceptions of Judah 12:2 - 13:16

A. Use Your Power with God for Mercy 12:2 - 6

2 The Lord hath also a <u>controversy with Judah</u>, and <u>will punish Jacob</u> according to his ways; according to his doings will he recompense him. 3 He took his brother by the heel in the womb, and <u>by his strength he had power with God</u>: 4 <u>Yea, he had power over the angel, and prevailed</u>: <u>he wept, and made supplication unto him: he found him in Bethel, and there he spake with us; 5</u> <u>Even the Lord God of hosts; the Lord is his memorial. 6 Therefore turn thou to thy God: keep mercy and judgment and wait on thy God continually.</u>

B. History of Deceit 12:7-14

7 He is a merchant, the balances of deceit are in his hand: he loveth to oppress.

8 And Ephraim said, <u>Yet I am become rich, I have found me out substance: in all my labours</u> they shall find none iniquity in me that were sin. 9 And I that am the Lord thy God from the land of Egypt will yet make thee to dwell in tabernacles, as in the days of the solemn feast. 10 I have also spoken by the prophets, and I have multiplied visions, and used similitudes, by the ministry of the prophets. 11 Is there iniquity in Gilead? surely they are vanity: they sacrifice bullocks in Gilgal; yea, their altars are as heaps in the furrows of the fields.

12 And Jacob fled into the country of Syria, and Israel served for a wife, and for a wife he kept sheep. 13 <u>And by a prophet the Lord brought Israel out of Egypt, and by a prophet was he preserved.</u> 14 Ephraim provoked him to anger most bitterly: therefore shall he leave his blood upon him, and <u>his reproach shall his Lord return unto him</u>.

C. God's Tenacious Love for His People 13:1 - 16

13:1 When Ephraim spake trembling, he exalted himself in Israel; but when he offended in Baal, <u>he died.</u>

2 And <u>now they sin more and more</u>, and have made them molten images of their silver, and idols according to their own understanding, all of it the work of the craftsmen: they say of them, Let the men that sacrifice kiss the calves.3 Therefore they shall be as the morning cloud and <u>as the early dew that passeth away</u>, as the chaff that is driven with the whirlwind out of the floor, and as the smoke out of the chimney.

4 <u>Yet I am the Lord thy God from the land of Egypt</u>, and thou shalt know no god but me: for <u>there is no saviour beside me</u>. 5 I did know thee in the wilderness, in the land of great drought. 6 According to their pasture, so were they filled; they were filled, and <u>their heart was</u> <u>exalted; therefore have they forgotten me.</u>

7 Therefore I will be unto them as a lion: as a leopard by the way will I observe them: 8 I will meet them as a bear that is bereaved of her whelps, and will rend the caul of their heart, and there will I devour them like a lion: the wild beast shall tear them. 9 O Israel, thou hast destroyed thyself; but in me is thine help.

10<u>I will be thy king:</u> where is any other that may save thee in all thy cities? and thy judges of whom thou saidst, Give me a king and princes? 11 I gave thee a king in mine anger, and took him away in my wrath. 12 The iniquity of Ephraim is bound up; his sin is hid. 13 The sorrows of a travailing woman shall come upon him: he is an unwise son; for he should not stay long in the place of the breaking forth of children.

[Prophetic of the Resurrection]

14<u>I will ransom them from the power of the grave; I will redeem them from death: O</u> death, I will be thy plagues; O grave, I will be thy destruction: repentance shall be hid from mine eyes.

15 Though he be fruitful among his brethren, <u>an east wind shall come</u>, the wind of the Lord shall <u>come up from the wilderness</u>, and his spring shall become dry, and his fountain shall be dried <u>up</u>: he shall spoil the treasure of all pleasant vessels. 16 Samaria shall become desolate; for she hath rebelled against her God: they shall fall by the sword: their infants shall be dashed in pieces, and their women with child shall be ripped up.

12. Call to Return to God's Love 14:1 - 9

14:1<u>O Israel</u>, <u>return unto the Lord thy God</u>; for thou hast fallen by thine iniquity. 2 <u>Take with</u> <u>you words, and turn to the Lord</u>: say unto him, <u>Take away all iniquity</u>, and receive us <u>graciously</u>: so will we render the calves of our lips.

3<u>Asshur shall not save us</u>; we will not ride upon horses: <u>neither will we say any more to the</u> work of our hands, Ye are our gods: for in thee the fatherless findeth **mercy.** 4 **I will heal their backsliding, I will love them freely**: for mine anger is turned away from him. 5 I will be as the dew unto Israel: he shall grow as the lily, and cast forth his roots as Lebanon. 6 His branches shall spread, and his beauty shall be as the olive tree, and his smell as Lebanon. 7 They that dwell under his shadow shall return; they shall revive as the corn, and grow as the vine: the scent thereof shall be as the wine of Lebanon. 8 Ephraim shall say, What have I to do any more with idols? I have heard him, and observed him: I am like a green fir tree. From me is thy fruit found.

9 Who is wise, and he shall understand these things? prudent, and he shall know them? for the ways of the Lord are right, and the just shall walk in them: but the transgressors shall fall therein.

Joel: Blessing to Restore in the Midst of Battle

1. A Message for the Generations 1:1-3

1 The word of the Lord that came to Joel the son of Pethuel. 2 Hear this, ye old men, and give ear, all ye inhabitants of the land. Hath this been in your days, or even in the days of your fathers? 3 Tell ye your children of it, and let your children tell their children, and their children another generation.

2. Complete Destruction 1:4

4 That which the palmerworm hath left hath the locust eaten: and that which the locust hath left hath the cankerworm eaten; and that which the cankerworm hath left hath the caterpiller eaten.

3. Respond Because of Destruction by A Nation Without Number: Lament 1:5-14

A. Awake and Weep 1:5-7

5 Awake, ye <u>drunkards</u>, and <u>weep</u>; and howl, all ye drinkers of wine, because of the new wine; for it is cut off from your mouth. 6 For <u>a nation is come up</u> upon my land, strong, and without number, whose teeth are the <u>teeth of a lion</u>, and he hath the cheek teeth of a great lion. 7 He hath <u>laid my vine waste</u>, and barked my fig tree: he hath made it clean bare, and cast it away; the branches thereof are made white.

B. Lament Priests 1:8-9

8 Lament like a virgin girded with sackcloth for the husband of her youth. 9 The meat offering and the drink offering is cut off from the house of the Lord; the priests, the Lord's ministers, mourn.

C. Be Ashamed and Howl Farmers - the Whithering of Joy 1:10-12

10 The <u>field is wasted, the land mourneth; for the corn is wasted: the new wine is dried up, the oil languisheth</u>. 11 Be ye ashamed, O <u>ye husbandmen; howl, O ye vinedressers</u>, for the wheat and for the barley; because the harvest of the field is perished.12 The vine is dried up, and the fig tree languisheth; the pomegranate tree, the palm tree also, and the apple tree, even all the trees of the field, are withered: because joy is withered away from the sons of men.

D. The Resulting Effect on the Altar 1:13

13 Gird yourselves, and lament, ye priests: howl, ye ministers of the altar: come, <u>lie all night in</u> <u>sackcloth, ye ministers of my God: for the meat offering and the drink offering is withholden from</u> <u>the house of your God.</u>

E. Sanctify a Fast, Gather, and Cry 1:14

14 <u>Sanctify ye a fast. call a solemn assembly</u>, gather the elders and all the inhabitants of the land into the house of the Lord your God, and <u>cry unto the Lord</u>.

4. The Day of the Lord is at Hand 1:15-20

<u>15 Alas for the day! for the day of the Lord is at hand, and as a destruction from the Almighty shall it come</u>.

A. Effect on Worship and God's House 1:16

16 Is not the meat cut off before our eyes, yea, joy and gladness from the house of our God?

B. Barns are Broken 1:17

17 The seed is rotten under their clods, the garners are laid desolate, the <u>barns are broken</u> down; for the corn is withered.

C. Beasts Cry, Rivers Dry Up, and Pastures are on Fire 1:18-20

18 How do the <u>beasts groan!</u> the herds of cattle are perplexed, because they have no pasture; yea, the flocks of sheep are made desolate.19 O Lord, to thee will I cry: for the <u>fire hath</u> <u>devoured the pastures</u> of the wilderness, and the flame hath burned all the trees of the field. 20 The beasts of the field cry also unto thee: for the rivers of waters are dried up, and the fire hath devoured the pastures of the wilderness.

5. Sound the Alarm and Tremble: Get Ready for the Day of the Lord 2:1-14

2:1 <u>Blow ye the trumpet in Zion, and sound an alarm in my holy mountain: let all the inhabitants</u> of the land tremble: for the day of the Lord cometh, for it is nigh at hand;

A. Darkness 2:2

2 <u>A day of darkness</u> and of gloominess, a day of clouds and of thick darkness, as the morning spread upon the mountains: a great people and a strong; there hath not been ever the like, neither shall be any more after it, even to the years of many generations.

B. Fire 2:3

3 A fire devoureth before them; and behind them a flame burneth: the land is as the garden of Eden before them, and behind them a desolate wilderness; yea, and nothing shall escape them.

C. Appearance of Horses, Noise of Chariots, Noise of Fire, and a Battle 2:4-5

4 The appearance of them is as the <u>appearance of horses</u>; and as horsemen [cf Revelation 6], so shall they run.5 Like the <u>noise of chariots</u> [cf Ezekiel 1-2] on the tops of mountains shall they leap, like the <u>noise of a flame of fire</u> [cf Acts 2] that devoureth the stubble, as a strong people set in battle array [cf Rev 19].

D. Faces of War 2:6-10

6 Before their face the people shall be much pained: all faces shall gather blackness. 7 They shall run like mighty men; they shall climb the wall like men of war; and they shall march every one on his ways, and they shall not break their ranks: 8 Neither shall one thrust another; they shall walk every one in his path: and when they fall upon the sword, they shall not be wounded. 9 They shall run to and fro in the city; they shall run upon the wall, they shall climb up upon the houses; they shall enter in at the windows like a thief. <u>10 The earth shall quake before them; the heavens shall tremble: the sun and the moon shall be dark, and the stars shall withdraw their shining:</u>

E. The Army of the Lord 2:11

11 And the Lord shall utter his voice before <u>his army: for his camp is very great</u>: [perhaps Armegaddon, Rev 19] for he is strong that executeth his word: for the day of the Lord is great and very terrible; and who can abide it?

F. Turn With All Your Heart 2:12

12 Therefore also now, saith the Lord, turn ye even to me with all your heart, and with fasting, and with mourning:

G. Change Your Heart and Not Your Garments 2:13-14

13 And rend your heart, and not your garments, and turn unto the Lord your God: for he is gracious and merciful, slow to anger, and of great kindness, and repenteth him of the evil.
14 Who knoweth if he will return and repent, and leave a blessing behind him; even a meat offering and a drink offering unto the Lord your God?

6. As Devastation Gathers, Gather the People of the Lord, Call a Solemn Assembly 2:15

15 Blow the trumpet in Zion, <u>sanctify a fast, call a solemn assembly</u>: 16 Gather the people, sanctify the congregation, assemble the elders, gather the children, and those that suck the breasts: let the bridegroom go forth of his chamber, and the bride out of her closet. 17 Let the priests, the ministers of the Lord, weep between the porch and the altar, and let them say, Spare thy people, O Lord, and give not thine heritage to reproach, that the heathen should rule over them: wherefore should they say among the people, Where is their God?

7. Then the Lord will be Jealous for His Land and Pity His People 2:18-27

18 Then will the Lord be jealous for his land, and pity his people.

[The prophecy to the God's land as well as His people is fulfilled with the New Heaven and New Earth along with the people of God inhabiting it (Rev. 20)].

A. The Lord Sends Nourishment 2:19

19 Yea, the Lord will answer and say unto his people, Behold, I will send you corn, and wine, and oil, and ye shall be satisfied therewith: and I will no more make you a reproach among the heathen:

B. The Removal of the Enemy 2:20

20 But I will remove far off from you the northern army, and will drive him into a land barren and desolate, with his face toward the east sea, and his hinder part toward the utmost sea, and his stink shall come up, and his ill savour shall come up, because he hath done great things.

C. Fear Not Land 2:21-22

21 Fear not, O land; be glad and rejoice: <u>for the Lord will do great things</u>. 22 Be not afraid, ye beasts of the field: for the pastures of the wilderness do spring, for the tree beareth her fruit, the fig tree and the vine do yield their strength.

D. Be Glad and Rejoice Children of God for the Former Rain and the Latter Rain 2:23

[The former rain was the rain at the beginning of the planting of seed and the latter rain was the rain in the second half of the growing season to assure the harvest.]

23 Be glad then, ye children of Zion, and rejoice in the Lord your God: for he hath given you the former rain moderately, and **he will cause to come down for you the rain, the former rain, and the latter rain in the first month.**

E. Assurance of the Harvest 2:24

24 And the floors shall be full of wheat, and the vats shall overflow with wine and oil.

F. Assurance of Restoration from the Devasting Army 2:25

25 And I will restore to you the years that the locust hath eaten, the cankerworm, and the caterpiller, and the palmerworm, my great army which I sent among you.

G. Plenty, Satisfaction and Praise from God's Wonderous Work 2:26

26 And ye shall eat in plenty, and be satisfied, and praise the name of the Lord your God, that hath dealt wondrously with you: and my people shall never be ashamed.

H. No More Shame 2:27

27 And ye shall know that I am in the midst of Israel, and that I am the Lord your God, and none else: and my people shall never be ashamed.

8. The Endtime Pouring Out of the Spirit of God 2:28-32

A. The Spirit Pour Out on Everyone Despite Gender, Age, or Status 2:28-9

28 And it shall come to pass afterward, that I will pour out my spirit upon all flesh; and your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, your old men shall dream dreams, your young men shall see visions: 29 And also upon the servants and upon the handmaids in those days will I pour out my spirit.

B. The Wondrous Signs in the Heavens 2:30-1

30 And I will shew wonders in the heavens and in the earth, blood, and fire, and pillars of smoke. 31 The sun shall be turned into darkness, and the moon into blood, before the great and terrible day of the Lord come.

C. A Remnant that Is Delivered 2:32

32 And it shall come to pass, that whosoever shall call on the name of the Lord shall be delivered: for in mount Zion and in Jerusalem shall be deliverance, as the Lord hath said, and in the remnant whom the Lord shall call.

9. The Battle, Blessing, and Judgment is for All Nations 3:1-21

A. Judah and Jerusalem Will Experience Captivity 3:1

3:1 For, behold, in those days, and in that time, when <u>I shall bring again the captivity of Judah</u> and Jerusalem.

B. All Nations will be in the Valley Jehoshaphat/Decision to Judged by the Lord for the Eternal Establishment of God's People 3:2-3

2<u>I will also gather all nations, and will bring them down into the valley of Jehoshaphat</u>, and will plead with them there for my people and for my heritage Israel, whom they have scattered among the nations, and parted my land. 3 And they have cast lots for my people; and have given a boy for an harlot, and sold a girl for wine, that they might drink.

[The Valley of Jehoshaphat is thought to be Kidron next to Jerusalem but may have some relationship to the Battle of Armageddon, though Armegaddon is located to the North of Jerusalem.]

A. Commerce [Tyre & Sidon] will be Judged 3:4-8

4 Yea, and what have ye to do with me, O Tyre, and Zidon, and all the coasts of Palestine? will ye render me a recompence? and if ye recompense me, swiftly and speedily will I return your recompence upon your own head; 5 Because ye have taken my silver and my gold, and have carried into your temples my goodly pleasant things: 6 The children also of Judah and the children of Jerusalem have ye sold unto the Grecians, that ye might remove them far from their border. 7 Behold, I will raise them out of the place whither ye have sold them, and will return your recompence upon your own head: 8 And I will sell your sons and your daughters into the hand of the children of Judah, and they shall sell them to the Sabeans, to a people far off: for the Lord hath spoken it.

B. Preparation Among the Gentiles-Let the Weak Say, I am Strong 3:9-10

9 Proclaim ye this among the Gentiles; Prepare war, wake up the mighty men, let all the men of war draw near; let them come up: 10 Beat your plowshares into swords and your pruninghooks into spears: let the weak say. I am strong.

C. All the Heathen will Be Judged in the Valley of Jehoshaphat/Decision 3:11-12

11 Assemble yourselves, and come, all ye heathen, and gather yourselves together round about: thither cause thy mighty ones to come down, O Lord. 12 Let the heathen be wakened, and come up to the valley of Jehoshaphat: for there will I sit to judge all the heathen round about.

D. The Harvest of the Lord will Come in the Valley of Decision/Jehoshaphat Upon all Nations 3:13-14

13 Put ye in the sickle, for the harvest is ripe: come, get you down; for the press is full, the fats overflow; for their wickedness is great. 14 <u>Multitudes, multitudes in the valley of decision: for the day of the Lord is near in the valley of decision.</u>

E. The Entire Earth is Affected by the Lord in Day of the Lord's Holy Mountain 3:15-18

15 The <u>sun and the moon shall be darkened</u>, and the stars shall withdraw their shining. 16 The <u>Lord also shall roar out of Zion</u>, and utter his voice from Jerusalem; and the heavens and the <u>earth shall shake</u>: but the Lord will be the hope of his people, and the strength of the children of Israel. 17 So shall ye know that I am the Lord your God dwelling in Zion, <u>my holy mountain</u>: then shall Jerusalem be holy, and there shall no strangers pass through her any more.

18 And it shall come to pass in that day, that the mountains shall drop down new wine, and the hills shall flow with milk, and all the rivers of Judah shall flow with waters, and <u>a fountain shall</u> <u>come forth out of the house of the Lord (ref EZ 47]</u> and shall water the valley of Shittim.

F. The Eternal Cleansing of the Lord 3:19-21

19 Egypt shall be a desolation, and Edom shall be a desolate wilderness, for the violence against the children of Judah, because they have shed innocent blood in their land.

20 But Judah shall dwell for ever, and Jerusalem from generation to generation.

21 For I will cleanse their blood that I have not cleansed: for the Lord dwelleth in Zion.

Amos - The Roar of God that Bids Us to Come

1. Who is Amos? 1:1

1 The words of Amos, who was among the herdmen of Tekoa, which he saw concerning Israel in the days of Uzziah king of Judah, and in the days of Jeroboam the son of Joash king of Israel, two years before the earthquake.

2. The Lord will Roar 1:1-2:5

2 And he said, The Lord will roar from Zion, and utter his voice from Jerusalem; and the habitations of the shepherds shall mourn, and the top of Carmel shall wither.

A. For the Transgressions of Damascus 1:3-5

3 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Damascus, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because they have threshed Gilead with threshing instruments of iron: 4 But I will send a fire into the house of Hazael, which shall devour the palaces of Benhadad. 5 I will break also the bar of Damascus, and cut off the inhabitant from the plain of Aven, and him that holdeth the sceptre from the house of Eden: and the people of Syria shall go into captivity unto Kir, saith the Lord.

B. For the Transgressions of Gaza 1:6-8

6 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Gaza, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because they carried away captive the whole captivity, to deliver them up to Edom: 7 But I will send a fire on the wall of Gaza, which shall devour the palaces thereof: 8 And I will cut off the inhabitant from Ashdod, and him that holdeth the sceptre from Ashkelon, and I will turn mine hand against Ekron: and the remnant of the Philistines shall perish, saith the Lord God.

C. For the Transgressions of Tyrus 1:9-10

9 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Tyrus, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because they delivered up the whole captivity to Edom, and remembered not the brotherly covenant: 10 But I will send a fire on the wall of Tyrus, which shall devour the palaces thereof.

D. For the Transgressions of Edom 1:11-12

11 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Edom, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because he did pursue his brother with the sword, and did cast off all pity, and his anger did tear perpetually, and he kept his wrath for ever:

12 But I will send a fire upon Teman, which shall devour the palaces of Bozrah.

E. For the Transgressions of Ammon 1:13-15

13 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of the children of Ammon, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because they have ripped up the women with child of Gilead, that they might enlarge their border:

14 But I will kindle a fire in the wall of Rabbah, and it shall devour the palaces thereof, with shouting in the day of battle, with a tempest in the day of the whirlwind:

15 And their king shall go into captivity, he and his princes together, saith the Lord.

F. For the Transgressions of Moab 2:1-3

2:1 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Moab, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because he burned the bones of the king of Edom into lime:

2 But I will send a fire upon Moab, and it shall devour the palaces of Kirioth: and Moab shall die with tumult, with shouting, and with the sound of the trumpet:

3 And I will cut off the judge from the midst thereof, and will slay all the princes thereof with him, saith the Lord.

G. For the Transgressions of Judah 2:4-5

4 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Judah, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof; because they have despised the law of the Lord, and have not kept his commandments, and their lies caused them to err, after the which their fathers have walked: 5 But I will send a fire upon Judah, and it shall devour the palaces of Jerusalem.

3. For the Transgressions of Israel 2:6-16

6 Thus saith the Lord; For three transgressions of Israel, and for four, I will not turn away the punishment thereof;

A. They Sold the Righteous and the Poor 2:6b-7a

because they sold the righteous for silver, and the poor for a pair of shoes; 7 That pant after the dust of the earth on the head of the poor, and turn aside the way of the meek:

B. Sexual Profanity 2:7b-8

and a man and his father will go in unto the same maid, to profane my holy name: 8 And they lay themselves down upon clothes laid to pledge by every altar, and they drink the wine of the condemned in the house of their god.

C. Though Delivered from Egypt to Conquer the Amorites 2:9-10

9 Yet destroyed I the Amorite before them, whose height was like the height of the cedars, and he was strong as the oaks; yet I destroyed his fruit from above, and his roots from beneath. 10 Also I brought you up from the land of Egypt, and led you forty years through the wilderness, to possess the land of the Amorite.

D. Though Raised Up Prophets and Nazarites that You Corrupted 2:11-12

11 And I raised up of your sons for prophets, and of your young men for Nazarites. Is it not even thus, O ye children of Israel? saith the Lord.

12 But ye gave the Nazarites wine to drink; and commanded the prophets, saying, Prophesy not.

E. Profanity Running Over God 2:13

13 Behold, I am pressed under you, as a cart is pressed that is full of sheaves.

F. The Mighty Will Not Deliver Himself 2:14-16

14 Therefore the flight shall perish from the swift, and the strong shall not strengthen his force, neither shall the mighty deliver himself:

15 Neither shall he stand that handleth the bow; and he that is swift of foot shall not deliver himself: neither shall he that rideth the horse deliver himself.

16 And he that is courageous among the mighty shall flee away naked in that day, saith the Lord.

4. God is Against the Whole Family of Israel 3:1

A. You Were Family to God 3:1-2

3:1 Hear this word that the Lord hath spoken against you, O children of Israel, against the whole family which I brought up from the land of Egypt, saying, 2 You only have I known of all the families of the earth: therefore I will punish you for all your iniquities.

B. Consequences of Knowing but Not Doing the Right - Not Fleeing Danger 3:3-12

1. Not Walking and Agreeing with God 3:3

3 Can two walk together, except they be agreed?

2. Not Fleeing Danger 3:4-6

4 Will a lion roar in the forest, when he hath no prey? will a young lion cry out of his den, if he have taken nothing? 5 Can a bird fall in a snare upon the earth, where no gin is for him? shall one take up a snare from the earth, and have taken nothing at all? 6 Shall a trumpet be blown in the city, and the people not be afraid? shall there be evil in a city, and the Lord hath not done it?

3. The Lord Has Warned His People and the Did Not Heed 3:7

7 Surely the Lord God will do nothing, but he revealeth his secret unto his servants the prophets. 8 The lion hath roared, who will not fear? the Lord God hath spoken, who can but prophesy?

4. The People Know but Do Not Right 3:9-10

9 Publish in the palaces at Ashdod, and in the palaces in the land of Egypt, and say, Assemble yourselves upon the mountains of Samaria, and behold the great tumults in the midst thereof, and the oppressed in the midst thereof.

10 For they know not to do right, saith the Lord, who store up violence and robbery in their palaces.

5. The People Will Be Devoured 3:11-12

11 Therefore thus saith the Lord God; An adversary there shall be even round about the land; and he shall bring down thy strength from thee, and thy palaces shall be spoiled.12 Thus saith the Lord; As the shepherd taketh out of the mouth of the lion two legs, or a piece of an ear; so shall the children of Israel be taken out that dwell in Samaria in the corner of a bed, and in Damascus in a couch.

5. Visitation of God's Judgment on Israel 3:13-4:11

A. Horns of the Altar Cut Off - The Day When Appeals are Over 3:13-14

13 Hear ye, and testify in the house of Jacob, saith the Lord God, the God of hosts,14 That in the day that I shall visit the transgressions of Israel upon him I will also visit the altars of Bethel: and the horns of the altar shall be cut off, and fall to the ground.

B. Luxury is Over 3:15

15 And I will smite the winter house with the summer house; and the houses of ivory shall perish, and the great houses shall have an end, saith the Lord.

C. Oppression is Over 4:1-3

4:1 Hear this word, ye kine of Bashan, that are in the mountain of Samaria, which oppress the poor, which crush the needy, which say to their masters, Bring, and let us drink. 2 The Lord God hath sworn by his holiness, that, lo, the days shall come upon you, that he will take you away with hooks, and your posterity with fishhooks. 3 And ye shall go out at the breaches, every cow at that which is before her; and ye shall cast them into the palace, saith the Lord.

D. Eventual Sacrifice of Thanksgiving 4:4-5

4 Come to Bethel, and transgress; at Gilgal multiply transgression; and bring your sacrifices every morning, and your tithes after three years: 5 And offer a sacrifice of thanksgiving with leaven, and proclaim and publish the free offerings: for this liketh you, O ye children of Israel, saith the Lord God.

E. God Sends Want of Bread but Israel Does Not Turn 4:6-11

6 And I also have given you cleanness of teeth in all your cities, and <u>want of bread</u> in all your places: yet have ye not returned unto me, saith the Lord.

7 And also I have <u>withholden the rain</u> from you, when there were yet three months to the harvest: and I caused it to rain upon one city, and caused it not to rain upon another city: one

piece was rained upon, and the piece whereupon it rained not withered. 8 So two or three cities wandered unto one city, to drink water; but they were not satisfied: yet have ye not returned unto me, saith the Lord.

9 I have smitten you with <u>blasting and mildew</u>: when your gardens and your vineyards and your fig trees and your olive trees increased, the palmerworm devoured them: yet have ye not returned unto me, saith the Lord.

10 I have sent among you the <u>pestilence</u> after the manner of Egypt: your young men have I slain with the sword, and have taken away your horses; and I have made the stink of your camps to come up unto your nostrils: yet have ye not returned unto me, saith the Lord.

11 I have overthrown some of you, as God overthrew Sodom and Gomorrah, and ye were as a <u>firebrand plucked out of the burning</u>: yet have ye not returned unto me, saith the Lord.

6. Prepare to Meet Thy God 4:12-5:27

A. Prepare to Meet Thy God 4:12-13

12 <u>Therefore thus will I do unto thee</u>, O Israel: and because I will do this unto thee, **prepare to meet thy God**, O Israel.

13 For, lo, **he** that formeth the mountains, and createth the wind, and <u>declareth</u> unto man what is his thought, that maketh the morning darkness, and treadeth upon the high places of the earth, The Lord, The God of hosts, is his name.

B. Lamentation for Unresponsive Israel 5:1-3

5:1 <u>Hear ye this word</u> which I take up against you, even a <u>lamentation</u>, O house of Israel. 2 The virgin of Israel is fallen; she shall no more rise: she is forsaken upon her land; <u>there is</u> <u>none to raise her up.</u> 3 For thus saith the Lord God; The city that went out by a thousand shall leave an hundred, and that which went forth by an hundred shall leave ten, to the house of Israel.

C. Seek the Lord, Not a Place 5:4-6

4 For thus saith the Lord unto the house of Israel, <u>Seek ye me, and ye shall live</u>: 5 But <u>seek not</u> Bethel, nor enter into Gilgal, and pass not to Beersheba: for Gilgal shall surely go into captivity, and Bethel shall come to nought. 6 <u>Seek the Lord, and ye shall live</u>; lest he break out like fire in the house of Joseph, and devour it, and there be none to quench it in Bethel.

D. The Creator Judges Those Who Create Judgment to Wormwood 5:7-12

7 Ye who turn judgment to wormwood, and leave off righteousness in the earth,

8 Seek him that maketh the seven stars and Orion, and turneth the shadow of death into the morning, and maketh the day dark with night: that calleth for the waters of the sea, and poureth them out upon the face of the earth: The Lord is his name: 9 That strengtheneth the spoiled against the strong, so that the spoiled shall come against the fortress.

10 <u>They hate him that rebuketh in the gate</u>, and they abhor him that speaketh uprightly. 11 Forasmuch therefore as your <u>treading is upon the poor</u>, and ye take from him burdens of wheat: ye have built houses of hewn stone, but ye shall not dwell in them; <u>ye have planted</u> <u>pleasant vineyards</u>, but ye shall not drink wine of them.

12 For <u>I know your manifold transgressions and your mighty sins</u>: they afflict the just, they take a bribe, and they turn aside the poor in the gate from their right.

E. Instructions to the Prudent 5:14-15

13 Therefore the prudent shall keep silence in that time: for it is an evil time. 14 Seek good, and not evil, that ye may live: and so the Lord, the God of hosts, shall be with you, as ye have spoken. 15 Hate the evil, and love the good, and establish judgment in the gate: it may be that the Lord God of hosts will be gracious unto the remnant of Joseph.

F. Wailing In the Streets 5:16-17

16 Therefore the Lord, the God of hosts, the Lord, saith thus; <u>Wailing shall be in all streets</u>; and they shall say in all the highways, Alas! alas! and they shall call the husbandman to mourning, and such as are skilful of lamentation to wailing. 17 And in all vineyards shall be wailing: for I will pass through thee, saith the Lord.

G. Woe to Those that Desire the Day of the Lord 5:18-20

18 <u>Woe unto you that desire the day of the Lord</u>! to what end is it for you? <u>the day of the Lord is</u> <u>darkness</u>, and not light. 19 As if a man did flee from a lion, and a bear met him; or went into the house, and leaned his hand on the wall, and a serpent bit him. 20 Shall not the day of the Lord be darkness, and not light? even very dark, and no brightness in it?

H. God Despises False Worship 5:21-23

21 I hate, <u>I despise</u> your feast days, and I will not smell in your solemn assemblies. 22 Though ye offer me burnt offerings and your meat offerings, I will not accept them: neither will I regard the peace offerings of your fat beasts. 23 Take thou away from me the noise of thy songs; for I will not hear the melody of thy viols.

I. Call for Judgment to Run Down as Waters Upon Ungodly Worship 5:24-7

24 <u>But let judgment run down as waters, and righteousness as a mighty stream</u>. 25 Have ye offered unto me <u>sacrifices and offerings</u> in the wilderness forty years, O house of Israel? 26 But ye have borne the tabernacle of your Moloch and Chiun your images, the star of your god,

which ye made to yourselves. 27 Therefore will <u>I cause you to go into captivity beyond</u> <u>Damascus</u>, saith the Lord, whose name is The God of hosts.

7. Woe to Those At Ease in Zion 6:1-11

A. Woe to Those at Ease in Zion, Trusting in Their Own Power 6:1-2

6:1 <u>Woe to them that are at ease in Zion</u>, and trust in the mountain of Samaria, which are named chief of the nations, to whom the house of Israel came! 2 Pass ye unto Calneh, and see; and from thence go ye to Hamath the great: then go down to Gath of the Philistines: be they better than these kingdoms? or their border greater than your border?

B. Woe to Those at Ease in Zion Who Do Not Believe the Evil of the Day 6:3-7

3 <u>Ye that put far away the evil day, and cause the seat of violence to come near</u>; 4 That lie upon beds of ivory, and stretch themselves upon their couches, and eat the lambs out of the flock, and the calves out of the midst of the stall; 5 That chant to the sound of the viol, and invent to themselves instruments of musick, like David; 6 That drink wine in bowls, and anoint themselves with the chief ointments: but they are not grieved for the affliction of Joseph. 7 Therefore now shall they go captive with the first that go captive, and the banquet of them that stretched themselves shall be removed.

C. God Abhors the Excellency of Jacob's Palaces 6:8-

8 The Lord God hath sworn by himself, saith the Lord the God of hosts, <u>Labhor the excellency</u> of Jacob, and hate his palaces: therefore will I deliver up the city with all that is therein. 9 And it shall come to pass, if there remain ten men in one house, that they shall die. 10 And a man's uncle shall take him up, and he that burneth him, to bring out the bones out of the house, and shall say unto him that is by the sides of the house, Is there yet any with thee? and he shall say, No. Then shall he say, Hold thy tongue: for we may not make mention of the name of the Lord. 11 For, behold, the Lord commandeth, and <u>he will smite the great house</u> with breaches, and the little house with clefts.

8. A Nation Will Rise Against Your Strength 6:12-14

12 Shall horses run upon the rock? will one plow there with oxen? for ye have turned judgment into gall, and the fruit of righteousness into hemlock: 13 Ye which rejoice in a thing of nought, which say, <u>Have we not taken to us horns by our own strength</u>?

14 But, behold, <u>I will raise up against you a nation</u>, O house of Israel, saith the Lord the God of hosts; and they shall afflict you from the entering in of Hemath unto the river of the wilderness.

9. The Prophet Prophesies Against the Authority of the King 7:1-8:14

A. By Whom Did Jacob/Israel Arise, God 7:1-6

7:1 Thus hath the Lord God shewed unto me; and, behold, he formed grasshoppers in the beginning of the shooting up of the latter growth; and, lo, it was the latter growth after the king's mowings. 2 And it came to pass, that when they had made an end of eating the grass of the land, then I said, O Lord God, forgive, I beseech thee: by whom shall Jacob arise? for he is small. 3 The Lord repented for this: It shall not be, saith the Lord. 4 Thus hath the Lord God shewed unto me: and, behold, the Lord God called to contend by fire, and it devoured the great deep, and did eat up a part. 5 Then said I, O Lord God, cease, I beseech thee: by whom shall Jacob arise? for he is small. 6 The Lord repented for this: This also shall not be, saith the Lord God.

B. The Lord Sets a Measuring Plumbline for Judgment 7:7-9

7 Thus he shewed me: and, behold, the Lord stood upon a wall made by a plumbline, with a plumbline in his hand. 8 And the Lord said unto me, Amos, what seest thou? And I said, A plumbline. Then said the Lord, <u>Behold, I will set a plumbline in the midst of my people Israel</u>: I will not again pass by them any more: 9 And the high places of Isaac shall be desolate, and the sanctuaries of Israel shall be laid waste; and I will rise against the house of Jeroboam with the sword.

C. The Priest and King Rebuke Amos 7:10-13

10 Then <u>Amaziah the priest of Bethel sent to Jeroboam king of Israel, saying, Amos hath</u> <u>conspired against thee in the midst of the house of Israel: the land is not able to bear all his</u> <u>words.</u>

11 For thus Amos saith, Jeroboam shall die by the sword, and Israel shall surely be led away captive out of their own land.

12 <u>Also Amaziah said unto Amos</u>, O thou seer, go, flee thee away into the land of Judah, and there eat bread, and prophesy there: 13 But prophesy not again any more at Bethel: for it is the king's chapel, and it is the king's court.

D. Amos' Authority of a Prophet, the Lord Took Me and Said to Me 7:14-16

14 Then answered Amos, and said to Amaziah, I was no prophet, neither was I a prophet's son; but I was an herdman, and a gatherer of sycomore fruit: 15 And the Lord took me as I followed the flock, and the Lord said unto me, Go, prophesy unto my people Israel. 16 Now therefore hear thou the word of the Lord: Thou sayest, Prophesy not against Israel, and drop not thy word against the house of Isaac.

E. Judgment and Captivity 7:17

17 Therefore thus saith the Lord; Thy wife shall be an harlot in the city, and thy sons and thy daughters shall fall by the sword, and thy land shall be divided by line; and thou shalt die in a polluted land: and Israel shall surely go into captivity forth of his land.

F. Judgment as a Basket of Summer Fruit 8:1-2

8:1 Thus hath the Lord God shewed unto me: and behold a <u>basket of summer fruit</u>. 2 And he said, Amos, what seest thou? And I said, A basket of summer fruit. Then said the Lord unto me, The end is come upon my people of Israel; I will not again pass by them any more.

G. Worship Songs Become Howlings 8:3

3 And the songs of the temple shall be howlings in that day, saith the Lord God: there shall be many dead bodies in every place; they shall cast them forth with silence.

H. Swallowing Up the Needy by Deceit and Religion 8:4-6

4 Hear this, O ye that <u>swallow up the needy</u>, even to make the poor of the land to fail, 5 Saying, When will the new moon be gone, that we may sell corn? and the sabbath, that we may set forth wheat, making the ephah small, and the shekel great, and falsifying the balances by deceit? 6 That we may buy the poor for silver, and the needy for a pair of shoes; yea, and sell the refuse of the wheat?

I. Their Works Bring on Judgment 8:7

7 The Lord hath sworn by the excellency of Jacob, Surely I will never forget any of their works.

J. Trembling of the Land at the Day of the Lord 8:8-9

8 Shall not <u>the land tremble for this</u>, and every one mourn that dwelleth therein? and it shall rise up wholly as a flood; and it shall be cast out and drowned, as by the flood of Egypt. 9 And it shall come to pass in that day, saith the Lord God, that I will cause the sun to go down at noon, and I will darken the earth in the clear day:

K. Feasts Turned Into Mourning 8:10

10 And I will <u>turn your feasts into mourning</u>, and all your songs into lamentation; and I will bring up sackcloth upon all loins, and baldness upon every head; and I will make it as the mourning of an only son, and the end thereof as a bitter day.

L. Famine of the Word of God 8:11-13

11 Behold, the days come, saith the Lord God, that I will send a <u>famine in the land, not a famine</u> <u>of bread, nor a thirst for water, but of hearing the words of the Lord</u>: 12 And they shall wander from sea to sea, and from the north even to the east, they shall run to and fro to seek the word

of the Lord, and shall not find it. 13 In that day shall the fair virgins and young men faint for thirst.

M. The End of False Religion 8:14

14 They that swear by the sin of Samaria, and say, Thy god, O Dan, liveth; and, The manner of Beersheba liveth; even they shall fall, and never rise up again.

10. Amos Sees the Authority of the Lord on the Altar 9:1-10

A. The Lord Standing on the Altar 9:1

9:1 **I saw the Lord standing upon the altar**: and he said, Smite the lintel of the door, that the posts may shake: and cut them in the head, all of them; and I will slay the last of them with the sword: he that fleeth of them shall not flee away, and he that escapeth of them shall not be delivered.

B. Though They Dig Into Hell, the Lord Will Bring them Down 9:2-4

2 <u>Though they dig into hell</u>, thence shall mine hand take them; though they climb up to heaven, thence will I bring them down: 3 And though they hide themselves in the top of Carmel, I will search and take them out thence; and though they be hid from my sight in the bottom of the sea, thence will I command the serpent, and he shall bite them: 4 And though they go into captivity before their enemies, thence will I command the sword, and it shall slay them: and I will set mine eyes upon them for evil, and not for good.

C. The Lord Touches the Land and It Melts 9:5-7

5 And <u>the Lord God of hosts is he that toucheth the land, and it shall melt</u>, and all that dwell therein shall mourn: and it shall rise up wholly like a flood; and shall be drowned, as by the flood of Egypt. 6 It is <u>he that buildeth his stories in the heaven</u>, and hath founded his troop in the <u>earth</u>; <u>he that calleth for the waters of the sea</u>, and poureth them out upon the face of the <u>earth</u>: <u>The Lord is his name</u>. 7 Are ye not as children of the Ethiopians unto me, O children of Israel? saith the Lord. Have not I brought up Israel out of the land of Egypt? and the Philistines from Caphtor, and the Syrians from Kir?

D. The Sinful Kingdom Removed from the Face of the Earth 9:8-10

8 Behold, the eyes of the Lord God are upon the sinful kingdom, and I will destroy it from off the face of the earth; saving that I will not utterly destroy the house of Jacob, saith the Lord. 9 For, Io, I will command, and I will sift the house of Israel among all nations, like as corn is sifted in a sieve, yet shall not the least grain fall upon the earth. 10 All the sinners of my people shall die by the sword, which say, The evil shall not overtake nor prevent us.

11. The Tabernacle of David at the Day of the Lord 9:11-15

11 In that day will I raise up the tabernacle of David that is fallen, and close up the breaches thereof; and I will raise up his ruins, and I will build it as in the days of old:

12 That they may possess the remnant of Edom, and of all the heathen, which are called by my name, saith the Lord that doeth this.

13 Behold, the days come, saith the Lord, that **the plowman shall overtake the reaper**, and the treader of grapes him that soweth seed; and the mountains shall drop sweet wine, and <u>all</u> **the hills shall melt**.

14 And <u>I will bring again the captivity of my people of Israel, and they shall build the waste cities,</u> and inhabit them: and they shall plant vineyards, and drink the wine thereof: they shall also make gardens, and eat the fruit of them. 15 And I will plant them upon their land, and they shall no more be pulled up out of their land which I have given them, saith the Lord thy God. (ref. Isaiah 65)

Obadiah - Knowing Which Side to Rise Up With in Battle

1. A Rumor and An Ambassador to Arise for the Battle 1:1

1 The vision of Obadiah. Thus saith the Lord God concerning Edom; We have heard a rumour from the Lord, and an ambassador is sent among the heathen, Arise ye, and let us rise up against her in battle.

2. You Are Small and Despised 1:2

2 Behold, I have made thee small among the heathen: thou art greatly despised.

3. Deceived by Pride in Your Heart 1:3

3 The pride of thine heart hath deceived thee, thou that dwellest in the clefts of the rock, whose habitation is high; that saith in his heart, Who shall bring me down to the ground? 4 Though thou exalt thyself as the eagle, and though thou set thy nest among the stars, thence will I bring thee down, saith the Lord.

3. You Have Been Robbed - The Things of Esau 1:5-6

5 If thieves came to thee, if robbers by night, (how art thou cut off!) would they not have stolen till they had enough? if the grapegatherers came to thee, would they not leave some grapes? 6 How are the things of Esau searched out! how are his hidden things sought up!

4. Deceived by Those You Align With 1:7

7 All the men of thy confederacy have brought thee even to the border: the men that were at peace with thee have deceived thee, and prevailed against thee; they that eat thy bread have laid a wound under thee: there is none understanding in him.

5. God's Judgment and Destruction of the Wicked 1:8-9

8 Shall I not in that day, saith the Lord, even destroy the wise men out of Edom, and understanding out of the mount of Esau? 9 And thy mighty men, O Teman, shall be dismayed, to the end that every one of the mount of Esau may be cut off by slaughter.

6. Destroyed with the Wicked 1:10-11

10 For thy violence against thy brother Jacob shame shall cover thee, and thou shalt be cut off for ever. 11 In the day that thou stoodest on the other side, in the day that the strangers carried away captive his forces, and foreigners entered into his gates, and cast lots upon Jerusalem, even thou wast as one of them.

7. Destroyed for Not Caring for Your Brother 1:12-14

12 But thou shouldest not have looked on the day of thy brother in the day that he became a stranger; neither shouldest thou have rejoiced over the children of Judah in the day of their destruction; neither shouldest thou have spoken proudly in the day of distress. 13 Thou shouldest not have entered into the gate of my people in the day of their calamity; yea, thou shouldest not have looked on their affliction in the day of their calamity, nor have laid hands on their substance in the day of their calamity; 14 Neither shouldest thou have stood in the crossway, to cut off those of his that did escape; neither shouldest thou have delivered up those of his that did remain in the day of distress.

8. Your Own Reward with the Heathen 1:15-16

15 For the day of the Lord is near upon all the heathen: as thou hast done, it shall be done unto thee: thy reward shall return upon thine own head. 16 For as ye have drunk upon my holy mountain, so shall all the heathen drink continually, yea, they shall drink, and they shall swallow down, and they shall be as though they had not been.

9. Deliverance is With the Lord-Fire and Not Stubble 1:17-19

17 But upon mount Zion shall be deliverance, and there shall be holiness; and the house of Jacob shall possess their possessions. 18 And the house of Jacob shall be a fire, and the house of Joseph a flame, and the house of Esau for stubble, and they shall kindle in them, and devour them; and there shall not be any remaining of the house of Esau; for the Lord hath spoken it. 19 And they of the south shall possess the mount of Esau; and they of the plain the Philistines: and they shall possess the fields of Ephraim, and the fields of Samaria: and Benjamin shall possess Gilead.

10. The Captivity Shall Possess, Be Saved, and the Kingdom is the Lord's 1:20-21

20 And the captivity of this host of the children of Israel shall possess that of the Canaanites, even unto Zarephath; and the captivity of Jerusalem, which is in Sepharad, shall possess the cities of the south.21 And saviours shall come up on mount Zion to judge the mount of Esau; and the kingdom shall be the Lord's.

Jonah - Obedience, Mercy and Anger

1. Arise, Cry Against for Wickedness is Great 1:1-2

1 Now the word of the Lord came unto Jonah the son of Amittai, saying, 2 <u>Arise, go to Nineveh</u>, that great city, and cry against it; for their wickedness is come up before me.

2. But, Jonah's Disobedience 1:3

3 <u>But Jonah</u> rose up to flee unto Tarshish from the presence of the Lord, and went down to Joppa; and he found a ship going to Tarshish: so he paid the fare thereof, and went down into it, to go with them unto Tarshish <u>from the presence of the Lord.</u>

3. But, God Responds to Jonah's Disobedience 1:4-2:10

A. Storm Sent by God 1:4-5

4 But the Lord sent out a great wind into the sea, and there was a mighty tempest in the sea, so that the ship was like to be broken. 5 Then the mariners were afraid, and cried every man unto his god, and cast forth the wares that were in the ship into the sea, to lighten it of them. But Jonah was gone down into the sides of the ship; and he lay, and was <u>fast asleep</u>.

B. Thrown Out of His Own Safety 1:6-16

6 So the shipmaster came to him, and said unto him, What meanest thou, O sleeper? arise, call upon thy God, if so be that God will think upon us, that we perish not. 7 And they said every one to his fellow, Come, and let us cast lots, that we may know for whose cause this evil is upon us. So they cast lots, and the lot fell upon Jonah. 8 Then said they unto him, Tell us, we pray thee,

for whose cause this evil is upon us; What is thine occupation? and whence comest thou? what is thy country? and of what people art thou? 9 And he said unto them, I am an Hebrew; and I fear the Lord, the God of heaven, which hath made the sea and the dry land. 10 Then were the men exceedingly afraid, and said unto him. Why hast thou done this? For the men knew that he fled from the presence of the Lord, because he had told them. 11 Then said they unto him, What shall we do unto thee, that the sea may be calm unto us? for the sea wrought, and was tempestuous. 12 And he said unto them, Take me up, and cast me forth into the sea; so shall the sea be calm unto you: for I know that for my sake this great tempest is upon you. 13 Nevertheless the men rowed hard to bring it to the land; but they could not: for the sea wrought, and was tempestuous against them. 14 Wherefore they cried unto the Lord, and said, We beseech thee, O Lord, we beseech thee, let us not perish for this man's life, and lay not upon us innocent blood: for thou, O Lord, hast done as it pleased thee. 15 So they took up Jonah, and cast him forth into the sea: and the sea ceased from her raging. 16 Then the men feared the Lord exceedingly, and offered a sacrifice unto the Lord, and made **vows**.

C. Swallowed to Cry and Be Saved 1:17-2:9

17 Now the Lord had prepared a great fish to swallow up Jonah. And Jonah was in the belly of the fish three days and three nights. 2:1 Then Jonah prayed unto the Lord his God out of the fish's belly, 2 And said, <u>I cried by reason of mine affliction</u> unto the Lord, and <u>he heard me</u>; out of the belly of hell cried I, and thou heardest my voice. 3 For thou hadst cast me into the deep, in the midst of the seas; and the floods compassed me about: all thy billows and thy waves passed over me. 4 Then I said, I am cast out of thy sight; yet I will look again toward thy holy temple. 5 The waters compassed me about, even to the soul: the depth closed me round about, the weeds were wrapped about my head. 6 I went down to the bottoms of the mountains; the earth with her bars was about me for ever: yet hast thou brought up my life from corruption, O Lord my God. 7 When my soul fainted within me I remembered the Lord: and my prayer came in unto thee, into thine holy temple. 8 They that observe lying vanities forsake their own mercy. 9 But I will sacrifice unto thee with the voice of thanksgiving; I will pay that that I have vowed. Salvation is of the Lord.

D. The Fish Obeys God and Jonah is Saved 2:10

10 And the Lord spake unto the fish, and it vomited out Jonah upon the dry land.

4. Command a Second Time to Cry Against Wickedness 3:1-2

3:1 And the word of the Lord came unto Jonah the second time, saying, 2 <u>Arise, go unto</u> <u>Nineveh</u>, that great city, and preach unto it the preaching that I bid thee.

5. Jonah's Obedience 3:3a

3 So Jonah arose, and went unto Nineveh, according to the word of the Lord.

6. Jonah's Journey of Obedience to Nineveh 3:3b-4

Now Nineveh was an exceeding great city of three days' journey. 4 And Jonah began to enter into the city a day's journey, and he cried, and said, Yet forty days, and Nineveh shall be overthrown.

7. Obedience of Nineveh 3:5-9

5 So the people of Nineveh believed God, and proclaimed a fast, and put on sackcloth, from the greatest of them even to the least of them. 6 For word came unto the king of Nineveh, and he arose from his throne, and he laid his robe from him, and covered him with sackcloth, and sat in ashes. 7 And he caused it to be proclaimed and published through Nineveh by the decree of the king and his nobles, saying, Let neither man nor beast, herd nor flock, taste any thing: let them not feed, nor drink water: 8 But let man and beast be covered with sackcloth, and cry mightily unto God: yea, let them turn every one from his evil way, and from the violence that is in their hands. 9 Who can tell if God will turn and repent, and turn away from his fierce anger, that we perish not?

8. God Sees the Works of Repentance of Nineveh and Responds in Forgiveness and Turns Calamity and Judgment Away from Them 3:10

10 And God saw their works, that they turned from their evil way; and God repented of the evil, that he had said that he would do unto them; and he did it not.

Jonah's Anger and Disagreement with God, Choosing Condemnation Rather than Mercy and Power of Forgiveness 4:1-11

A. Jonah Wants to Hurt Nineveh Because of Anger 4:1-2

4:1 <u>But it displeased Jonah exceedingly, and he was very angry</u>. 2 And he prayed unto the Lord, and said, I pray thee, O Lord, was not this my saying, when I was yet in my country? Therefore I fled before unto Tarshish: for I knew that thou art a gracious God, and merciful, slow to anger, and of great kindness, and repentest thee of the evil.

B. Jonah Wants to Hurt Himself Because of Anger 4:3

3 Therefore now, O Lord, take, I beseech thee, my life from me; for it is better for me to die than to live.

C. God's Response to Anger 4:4

4 Then said the Lord, Doest thou well to be angry?

D. Jonah's Anger Contines by "Pouting" 4:5

5 So Jonah went out of the city, and sat on the east side of the city, and there made him a booth, and sat under it in the shadow, till he might see what would become of the city.

E. God "Knocks" the Anger Out of Jonah and Wakes Him Up from His Anger to Understand God's Way of Mercy, Judgment and Salvation 4:6-11

6 And the Lord <u>God prepared a gourd</u>, and made it to come up over Jonah, that it might be a shadow over his head, to <u>deliver him from his grief</u>. So Jonah was exceeding glad of the gourd. 7 <u>But God prepared a worm</u> when the morning rose the next day, and it smote the gourd that it withered. 8 And it came to pass, when the sun did arise, that <u>God prepared a vehement east</u> <u>wind</u>; and the sun beat upon the head of Jonah, that he fainted, and wished in himself to die, and said, It is better for me to die than to live. 9 And <u>God said to Jonah</u>, <u>Doest thou well to be</u> <u>angry</u> for the gourd? And <u>he said</u>, I do well to be angry, even unto death. 10 <u>Then said the Lord</u>, <u>Thou hast had pity on the gourd</u>, for the which thou hast not laboured, neither madest it grow; which came up in a night, and perished in a night: <u>11 And should not I spare Nineveh</u>, that great city, wherein are more than sixscore thousand persons that cannot discern between their right hand and their left hand: and also much cattle?

Micah - The Lord Treading Upon the High Places

1. The Lord Will Tread Down the High Places of the Earth 1:1-16

A. The Lord Will Tread Down the High Places of the Earth 1:1-3

1 The word of the Lord that came to Micah the Morasthite in the days of Jotham, Ahaz, and Hezekiah, kings of Judah, which he saw concerning Samaria and Jerusalem. 2 Hear, all ye people; hearken, O earth, and all that therein is: and let the Lord God be witness against you, the Lord from his holy temple. 3 For, behold, the Lord cometh forth out of his place, and will come down, and tread upon the high places of the earth.

B. Earth Affected 1:4

4 And the mountains shall be molten under him, and the valleys shall be cleft, as wax before the fire, and as the waters that are poured down a steep place.

C. Judah (Southern Kingdom) and Samaria (Northern Kingdom) Judged1:5

5 For the transgression of Jacob is all this, and for the sins of the house of Israel. What is the transgression of Jacob? is it not Samaria? and what are the high places of Judah? are they not Jerusalem?

D. Judgment on Samaria 1:6-8

6 Therefore I will make Samaria as an heap of the field, and as plantings of a vineyard: and I will pour down the stones thereof into the valley, and I will discover the foundations thereof. 7 And all the graven images thereof shall be beaten to pieces, and all the hires thereof shall be burned with the fire, and all the idols thereof will I lay desolate: for she gathered it of the hire of an harlot, and they shall return to the hire of an harlot. 8 Therefore I will wail and howl, I will go stripped and naked: I will make a wailing like the dragons, and mourning as the owls.

E. Judgment on Judah 1:9-12

9 For her wound is incurable; for <u>it is come unto Judah</u>; he is come unto the gate of my people, even to Jerusalem. 10 Declare ye it not at Gath, weep ye not at all: in the house of Aphrah roll thyself in the dust. 11 Pass ye away, thou inhabitant of Saphir, having thy shame naked: the inhabitant of Zaanan came not forth in the mourning of Bethezel; he shall receive of you his standing. 12 For the inhabitant of Maroth waited carefully for good: but evil came down from the Lord unto the gate of Jerusalem.

F. Bind the Chariot Lachish 1:13-16

13 O thou inhabitant of Lachish [impregnable, a royal Canaanitish city in the Shephelah, or maritime plain of Palestine], bind the chariot to the swift beast: she is the beginning of the sin to the daughter of Zion: for the transgressions of Israel were found in thee. 4 Therefore shalt thou give presents to Moreshethgath: the houses of Achzib shall be a lie to the kings of Israel. 15 Yet will I bring an heir unto thee, O inhabitant of Mareshah: he shall come unto Adullam the glory of Israel. 16 Make thee bald, and poll thee for thy delicate children; enlarge thy baldness as the eagle; for they are gone into captivity from thee.

2. Woe to Those that Work Evil Upon Their Beds 2:1-13

A. Working Evil from Their Beds 2:1

2:1 Woe to them that devise iniquity, and work evil upon their beds! when the morning is light, they practise it, because it is in the power of their hand.

B. Covetousness 2:1-3

2 And they covet fields, and take them by violence; and houses, and take them away: so they oppress a man and his house, even a man and his heritage. 3 Therefore thus saith the Lord;

Behold, against this family do I devise an evil, from which ye shall not remove your necks; neither shall ye go haughtily: for this time is evil.

C. Doleful Lament 2:4-5

4 In that day shall one take up a parable against you, and lament with a doleful lamentation, and say, We be utterly spoiled: he hath changed the portion of my people: how hath he removed it from me! turning away he hath divided our fields. 5 Therefore thou shalt have none that shall cast a cord by lot in the congregation of the Lord.

D. Prophesy Not That Shame Will Not Come 2:6-9

6 Prophesy ye not, say they to them that prophesy: they shall not prophesy to them, <u>that they</u> <u>shall not take shame</u>. 7 O <u>thou that art named the house of Jacob</u>, <u>is the spirit of the Lord</u> <u>straitened</u>? are these his doings? do not my words do good to him that walketh uprightly? 8 Even of late my people is risen up as an enemy: ye pull off the robe with the garment from them that pass by securely <u>as men averse from war</u>. 9 The women of my people have ye cast out from their pleasant houses; from their children have <u>ye taken away my glory for ever</u>.

E. This is Not Your Rest - Spirit, Falsehood and False Prophets 2:10-

10 Arise ye, and depart; for <u>this is not your rest</u>: because it is polluted, it shall destroy you, even with a sore destruction. 11 <u>If a man walking in the spirit and falsehood do lie, saying, I will</u> <u>prophesy unto thee of wine and of strong drink; he shall even be the prophet of this people</u>.

F. God's Assembly Gathering of the Remnant for the Breaker is Come 2:12-13

12 <u>I will surely assemble, O Jacob, all of thee; I will surely gather the remnant of Israel</u>; I will put them together as the sheep of Bozrah, as the flock in the midst of their fold: they shall make great noise by reason of the multitude of men. 13 <u>The breaker is come up before them</u>: they have broken up, and have passed through the gate, and are gone out by it: and their king shall pass before them, <u>and the Lord on the head of them</u>.

3. You Should Know Judgment is Coming 3:1-12

A. You Should Know Because of What You Do 3:1-3

3:1 And I said, Hear, I pray you, O heads of Jacob, and ye princes of the house of Israel; <u>Is it</u> <u>not for you to know judgment?</u> 2 Who hate the good, and love the evil; who pluck off their skin from off them, and their flesh from off their bones; 3 Who also eat the flesh of my people, and flay their skin from off them; and they break their bones, and chop them in pieces, as for the pot, and as flesh within the caldron.

B. When the Lord Doesn't Hear 3:4

4 <u>Then shall they cry unto the Lord, but he will not hear them</u>: he will even hide his face from them at that time, as they have behaved themselves ill in their doings.

C. The Fate of False Prophets 3:5-7

5 Thus saith the Lord concerning <u>the prophets that make my people err</u>, that bite with their teeth, and cry, Peace; and he that putteth not into their mouths, they even prepare war against him. 6 Therefore night shall be unto you, that ye shall not have a vision; and it shall be dark unto you, that ye shall not divine; and the sun shall go down over the prophets, and the day shall be dark over them. 7 Then shall the seers be ashamed, and the diviners confounded: yea, they shall all cover their lips; for there is no answer of God.

D. True Spirit-Filled Prophecy 3:8-12

8 But truly <u>I am full of power by the spirit of the Lord, and of judgment, and of might, to declare</u> unto Jacob his transgression, and to Israel his sin. 9 Hear this, I pray you, ye heads of the house of Jacob, and princes of the house of Israel, that abhor judgment, and pervert all equity. 10 They build up Zion with blood, and Jerusalem with iniquity. 11 The heads thereof judge for reward, and the priests thereof teach for hire, and the prophets thereof divine for money: yet will they lean upon the Lord, and say, Is not the Lord among us? none evil can come upon us. 12 Therefore shall <u>Zion for your sake be plowed as a field</u>, and Jerusalem shall become heaps, and the mountain of the house as the high places of the forest.

4. The Last Days Established in the Mountain and House of the Lord 4:1-13

A. Power in the Mountain/House/Presence of the Lord 4:1-3

4:1 But <u>in the last days</u> it shall come to pass, that the mountain of the house of the Lord shall be established in the top of the mountains, and it shall be exalted above the hills; and people shall flow unto it. 2 And <u>many nations shall come</u>, and say. Come, and let us go up to the mountain of the Lord, and to the house of the God of Jacob; and he will teach us of his ways, and we will walk in his paths: for the law shall go forth of Zion, and the word of the Lord from Jerusalem. 3 And <u>he shall judge</u> among many people, and rebuke strong nations afar off; and they shall beat their swords into plowshares, and their spears into pruninghooks: nation shall not lift up a sword against nation, neither shall they learn war any more.

B. Healing and Pease 4:4-8

4 But they shall sit every man under his vine and under his fig tree; and none shall make them afraid: for the mouth of the Lord of hosts hath spoken it. 5 For all people will walk every one in the name of his god, and we will walk in the name of the Lord our God for ever and ever. 6 In that day, saith the Lord, will I assemble her that halteth, and I will gather her that is driven out,

and her that I have afflicted; 7 And I will make her that halted a remnant, and her that was cast far off a strong nation: and the Lord shall reign over them in mount Zion from henceforth, even for ever. 8 And thou, O tower of the flock, the strong hold of the daughter of Zion, unto thee shall it come, even the first dominion; the kingdom shall come to the daughter of Jerusalem.

C. A Time of Travail 4:9-10

9 Now why dost thou cry out aloud? is there no king in thee? is thy counsellor perished? for pangs have taken thee as a woman in travail. 10 Be in pain, and labour to bring forth, O daughter of Zion, like a woman in travail: for now shalt thou go forth out of the city, and thou shalt dwell in the field, and thou shalt go even to Babylon; there shalt thou be delivered; there the Lord shall redeem thee from the hand of thine enemies.

D. The Lord's People Will Arise 4:11-13

11 Now also many nations are gathered against thee, that say, Let her be defiled, and let our eye look upon Zion. 12 But <u>they know not the thoughts of the Lord</u>, neither understand they <u>his counsel</u>: for he shall gather them as the sheaves into the floor. 13 Arise and thresh, O daughter of Zion: for I will make thine horn iron, and I will make thy hoofs brass: and thou shalt beat in pieces many people: and I will consecrate their gain unto the Lord, and their substance unto the Lord of the whole earth.

5. Gather for the Judge is Destroyed but the Messiah Will Rise 5:1-15

A. The Judge is Smitten 5:1

5:1 Now gather thyself in troops, O daughter of troops: he hath laid siege against us: they shall smite the judge of Israel with a rod upon the cheek.

B. The Ruler Arises Out of Such a Small Place 5:2-4

2 But thou, <u>Bethlehem Ephratah</u>, though thou be little among the thousands of Judah, yet out of thee shall he come forth unto me that is to be ruler in Israel; whose goings forth have been from of old, from everlasting. 3 Therefore will he give them up, until the time that she which travaileth hath brought forth: then the remnant of his brethren shall return unto the children of Israel. 4 And <u>he shall stand and feed in the strength of the Lord</u>, in the majesty of the name of the Lord his God; and they shall abide: for now shall he be great unto the ends of the earth.

C. The Ruler of Peace when the Assyrians and Evil Come 5:5-6

5 And <u>this man shall be the peace</u>, when the Assyrian shall come into our land: and when he shall tread in our palaces, then shall we raise against him seven shepherds, and eight principal men. 6 And they shall waste the land of Assyria with the sword, and the land of Nimrod in the

entrances thereof: thus shall he deliver us from the Assyrian, when he cometh into our land, and when he treadeth within our borders.

D. The Remnant of God's People Overcoming 5:7-

7 And the <u>remnant</u> of Jacob shall be in the midst of many people as a dew from the Lord, <u>as the showers upon the grass</u>, that tarrieth not for man, nor waiteth for the sons of men. 8 And the <u>remnant</u> of Jacob shall be <u>among the Gentiles in the midst of many people as a lion among the beasts of the forest, as a young lion among the flocks of sheep</u>: who, if he go through, both treadeth down, and teareth in pieces, and none can deliver. 9 <u>Thine hand shall be lifted up upon</u> thine adversaries, and all thine enemies shall be cut off. 10 And it shall come to pass in that day, saith the Lord, that I will cut off thy horses out of the midst of thee, and I will destroy thy chariots: 11 And I will <u>cut off the cities of thy land</u>, and <u>throw down all thy strong holds</u>: 12 And I will <u>cut off witchcrafts out off</u>, and thy standing images out of the midst of thee; and thou shalt no more worship the work of thine hands. 14 And I will pluck up thy groves out of the midst of thee: so will I destroy thy cities. 15 <u>And I will execute vengeance in anger and fury upon the heathen</u>, <u>such as they have not heard</u>.

6. The Lord Pleads With His People 6:1-16

A. The Lord Pleads with His People 6:1-5

6:1 Hear ye now what the Lord saith; Arise, contend thou before the mountains, and let the hills hear thy voice. 2 Hear ye, O mountains, the Lord's controversy, and ye strong foundations of the earth: for the Lord hath a controversy with his people, and he will plead with Israel. 3 O my people, what have I done unto thee? and wherein have I wearied thee? testify against me. 4 For I brought thee up out of the land of Egypt, and redeemed thee out of the house of servants; and I sent before thee Moses, Aaron, and Miriam. 5 O my people, remember now what Balak king of Moab consulted, and what Balaam the son of Beor answered him from Shittim unto Gilgal; that ye may know the righteousness of the Lord.

B. In What Way Should I Come Before the Lord 6:6-8

6 Wherewith shall I come before the Lord, and bow myself before the high God? shall I come before him with burnt offerings, with calves of a year old? 7 Will the Lord be pleased with thousands of rams, or with ten thousands of rivers of oil? shall I give my firstborn for my transgression, the fruit of my body for the sin of my soul? 8 He hath shewed thee, O man, what is good; and what doth the Lord require of thee, but to do justly, and to love mercy, and to walk humbly with thy God?

C. The Lord Cries to His People 6:9-16

9 The Lord's voice crieth unto the city, and the man of wisdom shall see thy name: hear ye the rod, and who hath appointed it. 10 Are there yet the treasures of wickedness in the house of the

wicked, and the scant measure that is abominable? 11 Shall I count them pure with the wicked balances, and with the bag of deceitful weights? 12 For the rich men thereof are full of violence, and the inhabitants thereof have spoken lies, and their tongue is deceitful in their mouth.

13 Therefore also will I make thee sick in smiting thee, in making thee desolate because of thy sins.14 Thou shalt eat, but not be satisfied; and thy casting down shall be in the midst of thee; and thou shalt take hold, but shalt not deliver; and that which thou deliverest will I give up to the sword. 15 Thou shalt sow, but thou shalt not reap; thou shalt tread the olives, but thou shalt not anoint thee with oil; and sweet wine, but shalt not drink wine. 16 For the statutes of Omri are kept, and all the works of the house of Ahab, and ye walk in their counsels; that I should make thee a desolation, and the inhabitants thereof an hissing: therefore ye shall bear the reproach of my people.

7. Woe, Wait & Who is Like God 7:1-20

A. Woe is Me 7:1-6

7:1 <u>Woe is me</u>! for I am as when they have gathered the summer fruits, as the grape gleanings of the vintage: there is no cluster to eat: my soul desired the first ripe fruit. 2 The good man is perished out of the earth: and there is none upright among men: they all lie in wait for blood; they hunt every man his brother with a net. 3 That they may do evil with both hands earnestly, the prince asketh, and the judge asketh for a reward; and the great man, he uttereth his mischievous desire: so they wrap it up. 4 The best of them is as a brier: the most upright is sharper than a thorn hedge: the day of thy watchmen and thy visitation cometh; now shall be their perplexity. 5 Trust ye not in a friend, put ye not confidence in a guide: keep the doors of thy mouth from her that lieth in thy bosom. 6 For the son dishonoureth the father, the daughter riseth up against her mother, the daughter in law against her mother in law; a man's enemies are the men of his own house.

B. What Waiting on the Lord is Like 7:7-10

7 Therefore <u>I will look unto the Lord; I will wait for the God of my salvation: my God will hear me</u>. 8 Rejoice not against me, O mine enemy: when I fall, I shall arise; when I sit in darkness, the Lord shall be a light unto me. 9 I will bear the indignation of the Lord, because I have sinned against him, until he plead my cause, and execute judgment for me: he will bring me forth to the light, and I shall behold his righteousness. 10 Then she that is mine enemy shall see it, and shame shall cover her which said unto me, Where is the Lord thy God? mine eyes shall behold her: now shall she be trodden down as the mire of the streets.

C. What the Day of Waiting is Like 7:11-13

11 In the day that thy walls are to be built, in that day shall the decree be far removed. 12 In that day also he shall come even to thee from Assyria, and from the fortified cities, and from the fortress even to the river, and from sea to sea, and from mountain to mountain. 13

Notwithstanding the land shall be desolate because of them that dwell therein, for the fruit of their doings.

D. A Plea to God While Waiting 7:14-17

14 Feed thy people with thy rod, the flock of thine heritage, which dwell solitarily in the wood, in the midst of Carmel: let them feed in Bashan and Gilead, as in the days of old. 15 According to the days of thy coming out of the land of Egypt will I shew unto him marvellous things. 16 The nations shall see and be confounded at all their might: they shall lay their hand upon their mouth, their ears shall be deaf. 17 They shall lick the dust like a serpent, they shall move out of their holes like worms of the earth: they shall be afraid of the Lord our God, and shall fear because of thee.

E. God Responds Because of Who He Is 7:18-20

18 <u>Who is a God like unto thee</u>, that pardoneth iniquity, and passeth by the transgression of the remnant of his heritage? he retaineth not his anger for ever, because he delighteth in mercy. 19 He will turn again, he will have compassion upon us; he will subdue our iniquities; and thou wilt cast all their sins into the depths of the sea. 20 <u>Thou wilt perform the truth</u> to Jacob, <u>and the mercy</u> to Abraham, which thou hast sworn unto our fathers from the days of old.

Nahum - The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power - God Brings Down Bullies

1. The Lord, Slow to Anger, Great in Power 1:1-6

1 The burden of Nineveh. The book of the vision of Nahum the Elkoshite.

<u>2 God is jealous, and the Lord revengeth; the Lord revengeth, and is furious; the Lord will take vengeance on his adversaries, and he reserveth wrath for his enemies.</u>

<u>3 The Lord is slow to anger, and great in power, and will not at all acquit the wicked: the Lord hath his way in the whirlwind and in the storm, and the clouds are the dust of his feet.</u>

4 He rebuketh the sea, and maketh it dry, and drieth up all the rivers: Bashan languisheth, and Carmel, and the flower of Lebanon languisheth.

5 The mountains quake at him, and the hills melt, and the earth is burned at his presence, yea, the world, and all that dwell therein.

<u>6 Who can stand before his indignation?</u> and who can abide in the fierceness of his anger? his fury is poured out like fire, and the rocks are thrown down by him.

2. The Lord, the Stronghold Who Knows Those That Trust in Him 1:7-13

7 <u>The Lord is good, a strong hold in the day of trouble; and he knoweth them that trust in him</u>. 8 But with an overrunning flood he will make an utter end of the place thereof, and <u>darkness</u> <u>shall pursue his enemies</u>.

A. You Cannot Imagine Against the Lord 1:9-10

9 What do ye imagine against the Lord? he will make an utter end: affliction shall not rise up the second time.

10 For while they be folden together as thorns, and while they are drunken as drunkards, they shall be devoured as stubble fully dry.

B. The Wicked Counselor 1:11-14

11 There is one come out of thee, that imagineth evil against the Lord, a wicked counsellor.
12 Thus saith the Lord; Though they be quiet, and likewise many, yet thus shall they be cut down, when he shall pass through. Though I have afflicted thee, I will afflict thee no more.
13 For now will I break his yoke from off thee, and will burst thy bonds in sunder.
14 And the Lord hath given a commandment concerning thee, that no more of thy name be sown: out of the house of thy gods will I cut off the graven image and the molten image: I will make thy grave; for thou art vile.

3. Behold, the One Who Brings Good Tidings 1:15-2:13

15<u>Behold upon the mountains the feet of him that bringeth good tidings</u>, that <u>publisheth peace</u>! O Judah, keep thy solemn feasts, perform thy vows: for the wicked shall no more pass through thee; he is utterly cut off.

A. He is Come Before Your Face 2:1

2:1 He that dasheth in pieces is <u>come up before thy face</u>: keep the munition, watch the way, make thy loins strong, fortify thy power mightily.

B. Your "Excellency" is "Emptied" 2:2-7

2 For the Lord hath turned away the excellency of Jacob, as the excellency of Israel: for the emptiers have emptied them out, and marred their vine branches.

3 The shield of <u>his mighty men</u> is made red, the valiant men are in scarlet: the chariots shall be with flaming torches in the day of his preparation, and the fir trees shall be terribly shaken.

4 <u>The chariots</u> shall rage in the streets, they shall justle one against another in the broad ways: they shall seem like torches, they shall run like the lightnings.

5 He shall recount his worthies: they shall stumble in their walk; they shall make haste to the wall thereof, and the defence shall be prepared.

6 The gates of the rivers shall be opened, and the palace shall be dissolved.

7 And <u>Huzzab [queen of Nineveh at the time when Nahum delivered his prophecy] shall be led</u> <u>away captive</u>, she shall be brought up, and her maids shall lead her as with the voice of doves, tabering upon their breasts.

C. The Pool is Emptied 2:8-10

8 But <u>Nineveh is of old like a pool of water:</u> yet they shall flee away. Stand, stand, shall they cry; but none shall look back.

9 <u>Take ye the spoil</u> of silver, take the spoil of gold: for there is none end of the store and glory out of all the pleasant furniture.

10 She is empty, and void, and waste: and the heart melteth, and the knees smite together, and much pain is in all loins, and the faces of them all gather blackness.

D. Where are Your Lions 2:11-13

11 <u>Where is the dwelling of the lions</u>, and the feedingplace of the young lions, where the lion, even the old lion, walked, and the lion's whelp, and none made them afraid?

12 <u>The lion did tear in pieces enough for his whelps</u>, and strangled for his lionesses, and filled his holes with prey, and his dens with ravin.

13 Behold, I am against thee, saith the Lord of hosts, and <u>I will burn her chariots in the smoke</u>, and the sword shall devour thy young lions: and I will cut off thy prey from the earth, and the voice of thy messengers shall no more be heard.

4. The Bloody Prey City is Over 3:1-19

A. Woe to the Bloody City 3:1-4

3 :1 Woe to the bloody city! it is all full of lies and robbery; the prey departeth not;

2 The noise of a whip, and the noise of the rattling of the wheels, and of the pransing horses, and of the jumping chariots.

3 The <u>horseman</u> lifteth up both the bright sword and the glittering spear: and there is a multitude of slain, and a great number of carcases; and there is none end of their corpses; they stumble upon their corpses:

4 <u>Because of the multitude of the whoredoms of the wellfavoured harlot, the mistress of</u> witchcrafts, that selleth nations through her whoredoms, and families through her witchcrafts.

B. The Lord is Against the Bully 3:5-7

5<u>Behold, I am against thee, saith the Lord of hosts;</u> and I will discover thy skirts upon thy face, and I will shew the nations thy nakedness, and the kingdoms thy shame.

6 And I will cast abominable filth upon thee, and make thee vile, and will set thee as a gazingstock.

7 And it shall come to pass, that all they that look upon thee shall flee from thee, and say, Nineveh is laid waste: who will bemoan her? whence shall I seek comforters for thee?

C. They Thought They Were Better than Others 3:8

8 <u>Art thou better than populous No</u>, that was situate among the rivers, that had the waters round about it, whose rampart was the sea, and her wall was from the sea?

D. What You Thought Was Your Strength is Gone 3:9-11

9 Ethiopia and Egypt were her strength, and it was infinite; Put and Lubim were thy helpers.

<u>10 Yet was she carried away</u>, she went into captivity: her young children also were dashed in pieces at the top of all the streets: and they cast lots for her honourable men, and all her great men were bound in chains.

11 <u>Thou also shalt be drunken</u>: thou shalt be hid, thou also shalt seek strength because of the enemy.

12 <u>All thy strong holds shall be like fig trees with the firstripe figs: if they be shaken</u>, they shall even fall into the mouth of the eater.

E. The Bully is Destroyed 3:12-19

13 Behold, thy people in the midst of thee are women: the gates of thy land shall be set wide open unto thine enemies: the fire shall devour thy bars.

14 Draw thee waters for the siege, fortify thy strong holds: go into clay, and tread the morter, make strong the brickkiln.

15 There shall the fire devour thee: the sword shall cut thee off, it shall eat thee up like the cankerworm: make thyself many as the cankerworm, make thyself many as the locusts.
16 Thou hast multiplied thy merchants above the stars of heaven: the cankerworm spoileth, and fleeth away.

17 Thy crowned are as the locusts, and thy captains as the great grasshoppers, which camp in the hedges in the cold day, but when the sun ariseth they flee away, and their place is not known where they are.

18 <u>Thy shepherds</u> slumber, O king of Assyria: thy nobles shall dwell in the dust: thy people is scattered upon the mountains, and no man gathereth them.

19 There is no healing of thy bruise; thy wound is grievous: all that hear the bruit of thee shall clap the hands over thee: for upon whom hath not thy wickedness passed continually?

Habakkuk - The Just Shall Live by Faith, No Matter How Long

1. O, Lord, How Long? 1:1-17

A. The Burden of Habakkuk 1:1-2

1:1 The burden which Habakkuk the prophet did see.

2 <u>O Lord, how long shall I cry, and thou wilt not hear! even cry out unto thee of violence, and thou wilt not save!</u>

B. Why Do You Cause Me to Grieve 1:3

3 Why dost thou shew me iniquity, and cause me to behold grievance? for spoiling and violence are before me: and there are that raise up strife and contention.

C. Law is Slacked and Judgment Does not Go Out 1:4

4 Therefore the law is slacked, and judgment doth never go forth: for the wicked doth compass about the righteous; therefore wrong judgment proceedeth.

D. God Speaks of the Work He Will Do and You Will Not Believe Though It be Told 1:5-11

5 Behold ye among the heathen, and regard, and wonder marvelously: for <u>I will work a work in</u> your days which ye will not believe, though it be told you.

6 For, lo, I raise up the Chaldeans, that bitter and hasty nation, which shall march through the breadth of the land, to possess the dwellingplaces that are not their's.

7 They are terrible and dreadful: their judgment and their dignity shall proceed of themselves. 8 Their horses also are swifter than the leopards, and are more fierce than the evening wolves: and their horsemen shall spread themselves, and their horsemen shall come from far; they shall fly as the eagle that hasteth to eat.

9 They shall come all for violence: their faces shall sup up as the east wind, and they shall gather the captivity as the sand.

10 And they shall scoff at the kings, and the princes shall be a scorn unto them: they shall deride every strong hold; for they shall heap dust, and take it.

11 Then shall his mind change, and he shall pass over, and offend, imputing this his power unto his god.

E. Habakkuk Declares God Establishes Mighty Correction 1;12-17

12 <u>Art thou not from everlasting, O Lord my God, mine Holy One? we shall not die. O Lord, thou hast ordained them for judgment; and, O mighty God, thou hast established them for correction.</u> 13 <u>Thou art of purer eyes than to behold evil, and canst not look on iniquity: wherefore lookest thou upon them that deal treacherously, and holdest thy tongue when the wicked devoureth the man that is more righteous than he?</u>

14 And <u>makest men as the fishes of the sea</u>, as the creeping things, that have no ruler over them? 15 They take up all of them with the angle, they catch them in their net, and gather them in their drag: therefore they rejoice and are glad. 16 Therefore they sacrifice unto their net, and burn incense unto their drag; because by them their portion is fat, and their meat plenteous. 17 <u>Shall they therefore empty their net</u>, and not spare continually to slay the nations?

2. Lord, I will Watch 2:1

2:1 I will stand upon my watch, and set me upon the tower, and will watch to see what he will say unto me, and what I shall answer when I am reproved.

3. The Lord Answered: Write for Vision Is Appointed and Will not Tarry 2:2-3

2 And the Lord answered me, and said, Write the vision, and make it plain upon tables, that he may run that readeth it.

<u>3 For the vision is yet for an appointed time, but at the end it shall speak, and not lie: though it tarry, wait for it: because it will surely come, it will not tarry.</u>

4. The Just Shall Live by Faith 2:4

4 Behold, his soul which is lifted up is not upright in him: but the just shall live by his faith.

5. The Drunken as Death - A Parable 2:5-8

5 Yea also, because he transgresseth by wine, he is a proud man, neither keepeth at home, who enlargeth his desire as hell, and is as death, and cannot be satisfied, but gathereth unto him all nations, and heapeth unto him all people:

6 Shall not all these take up a <u>parable against him</u>, and a taunting proverb against him, and say, <u>Woe to him that increaseth that which is not his! how long? and to him that ladeth himself with</u> thick clay! 7 Shall they not rise up suddenly that shall bite thee, and awake that shall vex thee, and thou shalt be for booties unto them?

8 Because thou hast spoiled many nations, all the remnant of the people shall spoil thee; because of men's blood, and for the violence of the land, of the city, and of all that dwell therein.

6. Woe to the Covetous 2:9-14

9 <u>Woe to him that coveteth an evil covetousness to his house</u>, that he may set his nest on high, that he may be delivered from the power of evil! 10 Thou hast consulted shame to thy house by cutting off many people, and hast sinned against thy soul. 11 For the stone shall cry out of the wall, and the beam out of the timber shall answer it.

12 Woe to him that buildeth a town with blood, and stablisheth a city by iniquity!

13 Behold, is it not of the Lord of hosts that the people shall labour in the very fire, and the people shall weary themselves for very vanity? 14 For the earth shall be filled with the knowledge of the glory of the Lord, as the waters cover the sea.

7. Woe to the One Who Causes Other to Tempts Others 2:15-17

15 Woe unto him that giveth his neighbour drink, that puttest thy bottle to him, and makest him drunken also, that thou mayest look on their nakedness!

16 <u>Thou art filled with shame for glory</u>: drink thou also, and let thy foreskin be uncovered: the cup of the Lord's right hand shall be turned unto thee, and shameful spewing shall be on thy glory.

17 For the <u>violence of Lebanon shall cover thee</u>, and the spoil of beasts, which made them afraid, <u>because of men's blood</u>, and for the violence of the land, of the city, and of all that dwell therein.

8. Woe to the Idol Maker 2:18-20

18 <u>What profiteth the graven image that the maker thereof hath graven it</u>; the molten image, and a teacher of lies, that the maker of his work trusteth therein, to make dumb idols?
19 <u>Woe unto him that saith to the wood, Awake; to the dumb stone</u>, Arise, it shall teach! Behold, it is laid over with gold and silver, and there is no breath at all in the midst of it.
20 **But the Lord is in his holy temple: let all the earth keep silence before him.**

9. Habakkuk's Summary Prayer - Lord, Revive Me 3:1-17

A. Lord, In Wrath Remember Mercy 3:1-2

3:1 A prayer of Habakkuk the prophet upon Shigionoth. 2 <u>O Lord, I have heard thy speech, and</u> was afraid: O Lord, revive thy work in the midst of the years, in the midst of the years make known; in wrath remember mercy.

B. The Coming of the Lord 3:3-6

3 <u>God came</u> from Teman, and the Holy One from mount Paran. Selah. <u>His glory covered the heavens</u>, and the earth was full of his praise. 4 And his brightness was as the light; he had horns coming out of his hand: and there was the hiding of his power.

5 Before him went the pestilence, and burning coals went forth at his feet. 6 <u>He stood, and</u> <u>measured the earth: he beheld, and drove asunder the nations; and the everlasting mountains</u> <u>were scattered, the perpetual hills did bow: his ways are everlasting</u>.

C. By the Word of the Lord the Earth is Changed 3:7-12

7 I saw the tents of Cushan in affliction: and the curtains of the land of Midian did tremble. 8 Was the Lord displeased against the rivers? was thine anger against the rivers? was thy wrath against the sea, that thou didst ride upon thine horses and thy chariots of salvation? 9 Thy bow was made quite naked, according to the oaths of the tribes, <u>even thy word</u>. Selah. Thou didst cleave the earth with rivers. 10 The mountains saw thee, and they trembled: the overflowing of the water passed by: the deep uttered his voice, and lifted up his hands on high. 11 The sun and moon stood still in their habitation: at the light of thine arrows they went, and at the shining of thy glittering spear.

12 Thou didst march through the land in indignation, thou didst thresh the heathen in anger.

D. The Lord's Salvation 3:13

13 Thou wentest forth for the salvation of thy people, even for salvation with thine anointed [the <u>Messiah</u>]; thou woundedst the head out of the house of the wicked, by discovering the foundation unto the neck. Selah.

E. Rest in the Day of Trouble 3:14-

14 Thou didst strike through with his staves the <u>head of his villages</u>: they came out as a whirlwind to scatter me: their rejoicing was as to devour the poor secretly.15 Thou didst walk through the sea with thine horses, through the heap of great waters.

16 When I heard, my belly trembled; my lips quivered at the voice: rottenness entered into my bones, and I trembled in myself, that I might rest in the day of trouble: when he cometh up unto the people, he will invade them with his troops.

10. Yet, I will Rejoice to the God of My Salvation Who Helps Me Overcome 3:17-19

17 <u>Although the fig tree shall not blossom, neither shall fruit be in the vines; the labour of the olive shall fail, and the fields shall yield no meat; the flock shall be cut off from the fold, and there shall be no herd in the stalls:</u>

<u>18 Yet I will rejoice in the Lord, I will joy in the God of my salvation. 19 The Lord</u> <u>God is my strength, and he will make my feet like hinds' feet, and he will make me</u> <u>to walk upon mine high places. To the chief singer on my stringed instruments.</u>

Zephaniah - The Day of the Lord's Consuming

1. The Lord will Consume All Things From the Land 1:1-3

1:1 The word of the Lord which came unto Zephaniah the son of Cushi, the son of Gedaliah, the son of Amariah, the son of Hizkiah, in the days of Josiah the son of Amon, king of Judah. 2 <u>I will</u> <u>utterly consume all things from off the land, saith the Lord.</u> 3 I will consume man and beast; I will consume the fowls of the heaven, and the fishes of the sea, and the stumbling blocks with the wicked: and I will cut off man from off the land, saith the Lord.

2. The Great Day of the Lord 1:4-18

A. Consume False Worship 1:4-7

4 I will also stretch out mine hand upon Judah, and upon all the inhabitants of Jerusalem; and I will cut off the remnant of Baal from this place, and the name of the Chemarims with the priests; 5 And them that worship the host of heaven upon the housetops; and them that worship and that swear by the Lord, and that swear by Malcham; [The god of the Ammonites and Phoenicians to whom some Israelites sacrificed their infants in the valley of Hinnom] 6 And them that are turned back from the Lord; and those that have not sought the Lord, nor enquired for him. 7 Hold thy peace at the presence of the Lord God: for the day of the Lord is at hand: for the Lord hath prepared a sacrifice, he hath bid his guests.

B. Punish Power 1:8-10

8 And it shall come to pass in the day of the Lord's sacrifice, that I will punish the princes, and the king's children, and all such as are clothed with strange apparel. 9 In the same day also will I punish all those that leap on the threshold, which fill their masters' houses with violence and deceit. 10 And it shall come to pass in that day, saith the Lord, that there shall be the noise of a cry from the fish gate, and an howling from the second, and a great crashing from the hills.

C. Bring Down Commerce and Deception 1:11-13

11 Howl, ye inhabitants of Maktesh, for all the merchant people are cut down; all they that bear silver are cut off.

[Maktesh - A quarter of Jerusalem so named, it is supposed, on account of the configuration of the ground and associated (Zec 1:10,11) with the "fish gate" and MISHNEH (which see) or "second quarter." Most authorities think it was in the northern part of the city, and many consider that the name was derived from the hollowed-out form of that part of the Tyropeon just N. of the walls, where foreign merchants congregated; others have suggested a hollow farther West, now occupied by the muristan and the three long bazaars.]

12 And it shall come to pass at that time, that I will search Jerusalem with candles, and punish the men that are settled on their lees: that say in their heart. The Lord will not do good, neither will he do evil. 13 Therefore their goods shall become a booty, and their houses a desolation: they shall also build houses, but not inhabit them; and they shall plant vineyards, but not drink the wine thereof.

D. The Mighty Voice and Sounds of the Great Day of the Lord 1:14

14 <u>The great day of the Lord is near, it is near, and hasteth greatly, even the voice of the day of the Lord: the mighty man shall cry there bitterly</u>.

E. Helpless Helpless at the Great Day of the Lord 1:15-18

15 <u>That day is a day of wrath, a day of trouble and distress, a day of wasteness and desolation, a day of darkness and gloominess, a day of clouds and thick darkness, 16 A day of the trumpet and alarm against the fenced cities, and against the high towers. 17 And I will bring distress upon men, that they shall walk like blind men, because they have sinned against the Lord: and their blood shall be poured out as dust, and their flesh as the dung. 18 <u>Neither their silver nor their gold shall be able to deliver them in the day of the Lord's wrath</u>; but the whole land shall be devoured by the fire of his jealousy: for he shall make even a speedy riddance of all them that dwell in the land.</u>

2. Seek the Lord Ye Meek for the Mighty will Fall 2:1-3:4

A. Gather and Seek the Lord Ye Meek Before Destruction Comes 2:1-3

2:1 <u>Gather yourselves together, yea, gather together, O nation not desired;</u> 2 <u>Before the decree</u> <u>bring forth</u>, before the day pass as the chaff, before the fierce anger of the Lord come upon you, before the day of the Lord's anger come upon you. 3 <u>Seek ye the Lord, all ye meek of the earth</u>, which have wrought his judgment; seek righteousness, seek meekness: it may be ye shall be hid in the day of the Lord's anger.

B. The Mighty Nations will Fall 2:4-13a

4 For Gaza shall be forsaken, and Ashkelon a desolation: they shall drive out Ashdod at the noon day, and Ekron shall be rooted up. 5 Woe unto the inhabitants of the sea coast, the nation of the Cherethites! the word of the Lord is against you; O Canaan, the land of the Philistines, I will even destroy thee, that there shall be no inhabitant. 6 And the sea coast shall be dwellings and cottages for shepherds, and folds for flocks. 7 And the coast shall be for the remnant of the house of Judah; they shall feed thereupon: in the houses of Ashkelon shall they lie down in the evening: for the Lord their God shall visit them, and turn away their captivity.

8 I have heard the <u>reproach of Moab</u>, and the revilings of the <u>children of Ammon</u>, whereby they have reproached my people, and magnified themselves against their border. 9 Therefore as I live, saith the Lord of hosts, the God of Israel, Surely <u>Moab shall be as Sodom, and the children of Ammon as Gomorrah</u>, even the breeding of nettles, and saltpits, and a perpetual desolation: the residue of my people shall spoil them, and <u>the remnant of my people shall possess them</u>. 10 This shall they <u>have for their pride</u>, <u>because they have reproached and magnified themselves</u> against the people of the Lord of hosts. 11 The Lord will be terrible unto them: for <u>he will famish all the gods of the earth; and men shall worship him, every one from his place, even all the isles of the heathen.</u> 12 Ye <u>Ethiopians</u> also, ye shall be slain by my sword. 13 And he will stretch out his hand against the north, and <u>destroy Assyria;</u>

C. The Mighty City will Fall 2:13b-3:4

and will make Nineveh a desolation, and dry like a wilderness.

14 And flocks shall lie down in the midst of her, all the beasts of the nations: both the cormorant and the bittern shall lodge in the upper lintels of it; their voice shall sing in the windows; desolation shall be in the thresholds; for he shall uncover the cedar work.

15 This is the rejoicing city that dwelt carelessly, that said in her heart, I am, and there is none beside me: how is she become a desolation, a place for beasts to lie down in! every one that passeth by her shall hiss, and wag his hand. 3:1 Woe to her that is filthy and polluted, to the oppressing city! 2 She obeyed not the voice: she received not correction: she trusted not in the Lord: she drew not near to her God. 3 Her princes within her are roaring lions; her judges are evening wolves; they gnaw not the bones till the morrow. 4 Her prophets are light and treacherous persons: her priests have polluted the sanctuary, they have done violence to the law.

3. The Just Lord Is In the Middle of All of Your the Wickedness and Will Bring His Day 3:5-7

5 The just Lord is in the midst thereof; he will not do iniquity: every morning doth he bring his judgment to light, he faileth not; but the unjust knoweth no shame. 6 I have cut off the nations: their towers are desolate; I made their streets waste, that none passeth by: their cities are destroyed, so that there is no man, that there is none inhabitant. 7 I said, Surely thou wilt fear me, thou wilt receive instruction; so their dwelling should not be cut off, howsoever I punished them: but they rose early, and corrupted all their doings.

4. Wait Upon the Lord Until His Day Arises 3:8

8 <u>Therefore wait ye upon me, saith the Lord, until the day that I rise up to the prey</u>: for my determination is to <u>gather the nations</u>, that I may assemble the kingdoms, to pour upon them mine indignation, even all my fierce anger: **for all the earth shall be devoured with the** <u>**fire** of my jealousy</u>.

5. God's Work Among His People in that Day 3:9-13

A. Worship with Pure Language 3:9-10

9 For then will I turn to the people a pure language, that they may all call upon the name of the Lord, to serve him with one consent. 10 From beyond the rivers of Ethiopia my suppliants, even the daughter of my dispersed, shall bring mine offering.

B. Removal of the Proud 3:11

11 <u>In that day shalt thou not be ashamed for all thy doings</u>, wherein thou hast transgressed against me: for then <u>I will take away out of the midst of thee them that rejoice in thy pride, and thou shalt no more be haughty because of my holy mountain</u>.

C. The Remnant the Afflicted and Poor will Trust in the Lord 3:12-13

12<u>I will also leave in the midst of thee an afflicted and poor people, and they shall trust in the name of the Lord.</u> 13 The remnant of Israel shall not do iniquity, nor speak lies; neither shall a deceitful tongue be found in their mouth: for they shall feed and lie down, and none shall make them afraid.

6. Be Glad and Rejoice in the Day of the Lord With All Your Heart 3:14-17

14 Sing, O daughter of Zion; shout, O Israel; <u>be glad and rejoice with all the heart</u>, O daughter of Jerusalem.

15 The Lord <u>hath taken away thy judgments</u>, he hath cast out thine enemy: the king of Israel, even the Lord, is in the midst of thee: thou shalt not see evil any more.

16 In that day it shall be said to Jerusalem, Fear thou not: and to Zion, Let not thine hands be slack.

17 <u>The Lord thy God in the midst of thee is mighty; he will save, he will rejoice over thee with joy; he will rest in his love, he will joy over thee with singing</u>.

7. The Great Gathering of the Lord in that Day 3:18-20

18<u>I will gather them that are sorrowful for the solemn assembly</u>, who are of thee, to whom the reproach of it was a burden. 19<u>Behold, at that time I will undo all that afflict thee</u>: and I will save her that halteth, and <u>gather her that was driven out</u>; and I will get them praise and fame in every land where they have been put to shame. 20 <u>At that time will I bring you again, even in the time that I gather you</u>: for I will make you a name and a praise among all people of the earth, when I turn back your captivity before your eyes, saith the Lord.

Haggai - Building and Shaking

1. God's House Versus Your House 1:1-11

A. Time to Build God's House 1:1-4

1 In the second year of Darius the king, in the sixth month, in the first day of the month, came the word of the Lord by Haggai the prophet unto Zerubbabel the son of Shealtiel, governor of Judah, and to Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest, saying, 2 <u>Thus speaketh the</u> Lord of hosts, saying, This people say, The time is not come, the time that the Lord's house should be built. 3 Then came the word of the Lord by Haggai the prophet, saying, 4 Is it time for you, O ye, to dwell in your cieled houses, and this house lie waste?

B. Consider Your House You Have Sown Into 1:5-6

5 Now therefore thus saith the Lord of hosts; <u>Consider your ways</u>. 6 <u>Ye have sown much, and</u> <u>bring in little; ye eat, but ye have not enough; ye drink, but ye are not filled with drink; ye clothe</u> <u>you, but there is none warm; and he that earneth wages earneth wages to put it into a bag with</u> <u>holes.</u>

C. Consider God's House that is Waste 1:7-9

7 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; <u>Consider your ways</u>. 8 Go up to the mountain, and bring wood, and <u>build the house; and I will take pleasure in it, and I will be glorified</u>, saith the Lord. 9 <u>Ye</u> <u>looked for much, and, lo it came to little; and when ye brought it home, I did blow upon it</u>. Why? saith the Lord of hosts. Because of <u>mine house that is waste, and ye run every man unto his</u> <u>own house</u>.

D. God Will Judge You with the House of Heaven 1:10-11

10 <u>Therefore the heaven over you is stayed from dew, and the earth is stayed from her fruit.</u> 11 And I called for a drought upon the land, and upon the mountains, and upon the corn, and upon the new wine, and upon the oil, and upon that which the ground bringeth forth, and upon men, and upon cattle, and upon all the labour of the hands.

2. The People Obey and Then God Is With Them 1:12-13

12 Then Zerubbabel the son of Shealtiel, and Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest, with all the remnant of the people, <u>obeyed the voice of the Lord their God</u>, and the words of Haggai the prophet, as the Lord their God had sent him, and the people did fear before the Lord. 13 Then spake Haggai the Lord's messenger in the Lord's message unto the people, saying, <u>I am with you</u>, saith the Lord.

3. The Lord Stirs the Spirit of the People to Build as With the Tabernacle in the Wilderness 1:14 (rf Exodus 35)

14 And the <u>Lord stirred up the spirit</u> of Zerubbabel the son of Shealtiel, governor of Judah, and the spirit of Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest, and the spirit of all the remnant of the people; and they came and did work in the house of the Lord of hosts, their God,

4. The Lord Gives Strength for Building 1:15-2:4 (rf Exodus 35)

15 In the four and twentieth day of the sixth month, in the second year of Darius the king. 2:1 In the seventh month, in the one and twentieth day of the month, came <u>the word of the Lord by the prophet Haggai</u>, saying, 2<u>Speak now</u> to Zerubbabel the son of Shealtiel, governor of Judah, and to Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest, and to the residue of the people, saying, 3 Who is left among you that <u>saw this house in her first glory</u>? and <u>how do ye see it now</u>? is it not in your eyes in comparison of it as nothing?

4 <u>Yet now be strong</u>, O Zerubbabel, saith the Lord; and be strong, O Joshua, son of Josedech, the high priest; and be strong, all ye people of the land, saith the Lord, and <u>work: for I am with</u> <u>you, saith the Lord of hosts:</u>

5. The Lord's Endtime Covenant About His People and His House 2:5-9

5 According to the word that I covenanted with you **when ye came out of Egypt**, so my spirit remaineth among you: fear ye not.

6 For thus saith the Lord of hosts; <u>Yet once, it is a little while, and I will shake the heavens, and the earth, and the sea, and the dry land; 7 And I will shake all nations, and the desire of all nations shall come: and I will fill this house with glory, saith the Lord of hosts.</u>

8 The silver is mine, and the gold is mine, saith the Lord of hosts.

9 The glory of this latter house shall be greater than of the former, saith the Lord of hosts: and in this place will I give peace, saith the Lord of hosts.

6. Remain Holy 2:10-19

A. The Requirement of Holiness 2:10-13

10 In the four and twentieth day of the ninth month, in the second year of Darius, <u>came the word</u> <u>of the Lord by Haggai</u> the prophet, saying, 11 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; Ask now <u>the priests</u> concerning the law, saying, 12 If one bear holy flesh in the skirt of his garment, and with his skirt do touch bread, or pottage, or wine, or oil, or any meat, <u>shall it be holy</u>? And the priests

answered and said, No. 13 Then said Haggai, If one that is <u>unclean by a dead body</u> touch any of these, shall it be unclean? And the priests answered and said, It shall be unclean.

14 Then answered Haggai, and said, <u>So is this people, and so is this nation before me, saith the</u> Lord; and so is every work of their hands; and that which they offer there is unclean.

B. Holiness in Your Labour 2:15-17

15 And now, I pray you, <u>consider from this day and upward</u>, from before a stone was laid upon a stone in the temple of the Lord: 16 <u>Since those days were</u>, when one came to an heap of twenty measures, there were but ten: when one came to the pressfat for to draw out fifty vessels out of the press, there were but twenty. 17 I smote you with blasting and with mildew and with hail in all the labours of your hands; yet ye turned not to me, saith the Lord.

C. Consider the Blessing of the Lord 2:18-19

18 <u>Consider now from this day and upward</u>, from the four and twentieth day of the ninth month, even from the day that the foundation of the Lord's temple was laid, consider it. 19 Is the seed yet in the barn? yea, as yet the vine, and the fig tree, and the pomegranate, and the olive tree, hath not brought forth: <u>from this day will I bless you</u>.

7. The Shaking of the Heavens and the Earth in the Day of the Lord 2:20-23

20 And <u>again the word of the Lord</u> came unto Haggai in the four and twentieth day of the month, saying, 21 Speak to <u>Zerubbabel</u>, <u>governor</u> of Judah, saying, <u>I will shake the heavens and</u> the earth; 22 And I will overthrow the throne of kingdoms, and I will destroy the strength of the kingdoms of the heathen; and I will overthrow the chariots, and those that ride in them; and the horses and their riders shall come down, every one by the sword of his brother. 23 In that day, saith the Lord of hosts, will I take thee, O Zerubbabel, my servant, the son of Shealtiel, saith the Lord, and will make thee as a signet: for I have chosen thee, saith the Lord of hosts.

Zechariah - Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You

1. Turn for the Harvest and Judgment of the Lord is Coming 1:1-2:13

A. Turn to the Lord and He Will Turn to You 1:1-3

1:1 In the eighth month, in the second year of Darius, came the word of the Lord unto Zechariah, the son of Berechiah, the son of Iddo the prophet, saying.

2 <u>The Lord hath been sore displeased with your fathers. 3 Therefore say thou unto them,</u> <u>Thus saith the Lord of hosts; Turn ye unto me, saith the Lord of hosts, and I will turn unto</u> <u>you, saith the Lord of hosts.</u>

B. Be Not as Your Fathers 1:4-6

4 <u>Be ye not as your fathers</u>, unto whom the former prophets have cried, saying, Thus saith the Lord of hosts; Turn ye now from your evil ways, and from your evil doings: but they did not hear, nor hearken unto me, saith the Lord. 5 Your fathers, where are they? <u>and the prophets. do they live for ever?</u>

6 <u>But my words and my statutes</u>, which I commanded my servants the prophets, did they not take hold of your fathers? and <u>they returned and said</u>, <u>Like as the Lord of hosts thought to do unto us</u>, according to our ways, and according to our doings, so hath he dealt with us.

C. Vision of the Man on the Red Horse Among the Myrtle Trees (Sign of the Feast of Tabernacles and the Harvest) 1:7-11

7 Upon the four and twentieth day of the eleventh month, which is the month Sebat, in the second year of Darius, came the word of the Lord unto Zechariah, the son of Berechiah, the son of Iddo the prophet, saying,

8 I saw by night, and behold <u>a man riding upon a red horse, and he stood among the myrtle trees that were in the bottom;</u> and <u>behind him were there red horses, speckled, and white</u>.
9 <u>Then said I, O my lord, what are these</u>? And the angel that talked with me said unto me, I will shew thee what these be. 10 <u>And the man that stood among the myrtle trees</u> answered and said, <u>These are they whom the Lord hath sent to walk to and fro through the earth.</u>

11 And they answered the angel of the Lord that stood among the myrtle trees, and said, We have walked to and fro through the earth, and, behold, all the earth sitteth still, and is at rest.

D. The Lord's Mercy and Words of Comfort 1:12-13

12 Then <u>the angel of the Lord answered</u> and said, <u>O Lord of hosts, how long wilt thou not have</u> <u>mercy on Jerusalem and on the cities of Judah, against which thou hast had indignation these</u> <u>threescore and ten years?</u> [70 years of captivity]

13 And the Lord answered the angel that talked with me with good words and comfortable words.

E. God's Jealousy and Mercy for His People and the Building of His House 1:14-17

14 So the angel that communed with me said unto me, <u>Cry thou, saying, Thus saith the Lord of hosts; I am jealous for Jerusalem and for Zion with a great jealousy</u>. 15 And I am very sore

displeased with the heathen that are at ease: for I was but a little displeased, and they helped forward the affliction.

16 <u>Therefore thus saith the Lord; I am returned to Jerusalem with mercies: my house shall be</u> <u>built in it, saith the Lord of hosts, and a line shall be stretched forth upon Jerusalem.</u> 17 Cry yet, saying, Thus saith the Lord of hosts; My cities through prosperity shall yet be spread abroad; and <u>the Lord shall yet comfort Zion, and shall yet choose Jerusalem.</u>

F. Vision of Four Horns 1:18-19

18 Then lifted I up mine eyes, and saw, and <u>behold four horns</u>. 19 And I said unto the angel that talked with me, What be these? And he answered me, These are <u>the horns which have</u> <u>scattered Judah</u>, <u>Israel</u>, <u>and Jerusalem</u>.

G. Vision of Four Carpenters 1:20-21

20 And <u>the Lord shewed me four carpenters</u>. 21 Then said I, What come these to do? And he spake, saying, These are the horns which have scattered Judah, so that no man did lift up his head: but <u>these are come to fray them</u>, to cast out the horns of the Gentiles, which lifted up their <u>horn over the land of Judah to scatter it</u>.

H. Vision of a Man With a Measuring Line and the Habitation of the Jerusalem and Presence of the Lord 2:1-5

2:1 I lifted up mine eyes again, and looked, and <u>behold a man with a measuring line in his hand.</u> 2 Then said I, Whither goest thou? And he said unto me, <u>To measure Jerusalem, to see what is</u> <u>the breadth thereof, and what is the length thereof.</u>

3 And, behold, the angel that talked with me went forth, and <u>another angel went out to meet</u> <u>him</u>, 4 And said unto him, <u>Run</u>, <u>speak to this young man</u>, <u>saying</u>, <u>Jerusalem shall be inhabited</u> <u>as towns without walls for the multitude of men and cattle therein</u>: 5 For <u>I</u>, <u>saith the Lord</u>, <u>will be</u> <u>unto her a wall of fire round about</u>, and will be the glory in the midst of her.

I. Call to God's People to Come Out and Be Delivered 2:6-9

6 Ho, ho, <u>come forth</u>, and flee from the land of the north, saith the Lord: for I have spread you abroad as the four winds of the heaven, saith the Lord.

7 <u>Deliver thyself, O Zion, that dwellest with the daughter of Babylon</u>. 8 For thus saith the Lord of hosts; After the glory hath he sent me unto the nations which spoiled you: for he that toucheth you toucheth the apple of his eye. 9 For, behold, I will shake mine hand upon them, and they shall be a spoil to their servants: and ye shall know that the Lord of hosts hath sent me.

J. Rejoice for the Lord Will Dwell With You 2:10-13

10 Sing and rejoice. O daughter of Zion: for, lo, I come, and I will dwell in the midst of thee, saith the Lord. 11 And many nations shall be joined to the Lord in that day, and shall be my people:

and I will dwell in the midst of thee, and thou shalt know that the Lord of hosts hath sent me unto thee. 12 And the Lord shall inherit Judah his portion in the holy land, and shall choose Jerusalem again. 13 Be silent, O all flesh, before the Lord: for he is raised up out of his holy habitation.

2. The Branch/Messiah Replaces the High Priest 3:1-10

3:1 And he shewed me Joshua the high priest standing before the angel of the Lord, and Satan standing at his right hand to resist him. 2 And the Lord said unto Satan, The Lord rebuke thee, O Satan; even the Lord that hath chosen Jerusalem rebuke thee: is not this a brand plucked out of the fire?

3 Now <u>Joshua was clothed with filthy garments</u>, and stood before the angel. 4 And he answered and spake unto those that stood before him, saying, <u>Take away the filthy garments from him</u>. <u>And unto him he said</u>, <u>Behold</u>, <u>I have caused thine iniquity to pass from thee</u>, and <u>I will clothe</u> <u>thee with change of raiment</u>. 5 And I said, Let them set a fair mitre upon his head. So they set a fair mitre upon his head, and clothed him with garments. And the angel of the Lord stood by.

6 And <u>the angel of the Lord protested unto Joshua</u>, saying, 7 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; If thou wilt walk in my ways, and if thou wilt keep my charge, then thou shalt also judge my house, and shalt also keep my courts, and I will give thee places to walk among these that stand by. 8 Hear now, O Joshua the high priest, thou, and thy fellows that sit before thee: for they are men wondered at: for, **behold, I will bring forth my servant the Branch.**

9 For <u>behold the stone that I have laid before Joshua;</u> upon one stone shall be seven eyes: behold, I will engrave the graving thereof, saith the Lord of hosts, and <u>I will remove the iniquity</u> <u>of that land in one day.</u> 10 <u>In that day, saith the Lord of hosts, shall ye call every man his</u> <u>neighbour under the vine and under the fig tree</u>.

3. The King/Governor Replaced by the Branch/Messiah Ruling All the Earth 4:1-6:8

A. The King/Governor is Replaced - Vision of the Branch Flowing to the Candlesticks, Bowl, Lamps and Pipes 4:1-14

1. The Vision 4:1-3

4:1 And the angel that talked with me came again, and waked me, as a man that is wakened out of his sleep. 2 And said unto me, What seest thou? And I said, I have looked, and **behold a candlestick all of gold**.

<u>with a bowl upon the top of it,</u> <u>and his seven lamps thereon,</u> <u>and seven pipes to the seven lamps, which are upon the top thereof:</u>

3 And two olive trees by it, one upon the right side of the bowl, and the other upon the left side thereof.

2. The Governor/King Used Temporarily But Ultimately by the Spirit of the Lord 4:4-10

4 So I answered and spake to the angel that talked with me, saying, <u>What are these, my lord?</u> 5 Then the angel that talked with me answered and said unto me, <u>Knowest thou not what these</u> <u>be? And I said, No, my lord.</u>

6 Then he answered and spake unto me, saying, <u>This is the word of the Lord unto Zerubbabel</u>, [a governor of the Achaemenid Empire's province of Yehud and the grandson of Jeconiah, penultimate king of Judah.] <u>saying</u>, **Not by might**, **nor by power**, **but by my spirit**, **saith the** <u>Lord of hosts</u>.

7 Who art thou, O great mountain? before Zerubbabel thou shalt become a plain: and he shall bring forth the headstone thereof with shoutings, crying, Grace, grace unto it. 8 Moreover the word of the Lord came unto me, saying, 9 The hands of Zerubbabel have laid the foundation of this house; his hands shall also finish it; and thou shalt know that the Lord of hosts hath sent me unto you.

10 For who hath despised the day of small things? for they shall rejoice, and shall see the plummet in the hand of Zerubbabel with those seven; they are the eyes of the Lord, which run to and fro through the whole earth.

3. The Anointed Branches 4:11-14

11 Then answered I, and said unto him, <u>What are these two olive trees upon the right side of the candlestick and upon the left side thereof?</u> 12 And I answered again, and said unto him, What be these two olive branches <u>which through the two golden pipes empty the golden oil out of themselves?</u> 13 And he answered me and said, <u>Knowest thou not what these be? And I said, No. my lord</u>.

14 Then said he, These are the two anointed ones, that stand by the Lord of the whole earth.

B. Vision of the Flying Roll Over All the Earth Judging the Thief 5:1-4

5:1 Then I turned, and lifted up mine eyes, and looked, and <u>behold a flying roll</u>.

2 And he said unto me, What seest thou? And I answered, I see a flying roll; <u>the length thereof</u> <u>is twenty cubits</u>, and the breadth thereof ten cubits. 3 Then said he unto me, <u>This is the curse</u> <u>that goeth forth over the face of the whole earth: for every one that stealeth shall be cut off as on</u> <u>this side according to it; and every one that sweareth shall be cut off as on that side according to it.</u>

4 I will bring it forth, saith the Lord of hosts, and it shall enter into the house of the thief, and into the house of him that sweareth falsely by my name: and it shall remain in the midst of his house, and shall consume it with the timber thereof and the stones thereof.

C. Vision of the Ephah Judging Wickedness and Idolatry Through All the Earth 5:5-11

5 Then the angel that talked with me went forth, and said unto me, Lift up now thine eyes, and see what is this that goeth forth. 6 And I said, What is it? And he said, <u>This is an ephah [a volume measure, similar to a bushel basket]</u> that goeth forth. He said moreover, <u>This is their resemblance through all the earth.</u>

7 And, behold, there was lifted up a talent of lead: and this is a woman that sitteth in the midst of the ephah. 8 And he said, <u>This is wickedness</u>. And he cast it into the midst of the ephah; and he cast the weight of lead upon the mouth thereof.

9 Then lifted I up mine eyes, and looked, and, <u>behold, there came out two women, and the wind</u> was in their wings; for they had wings like the wings of a stork: and they lifted up the ephah <u>between the earth and the heaven.</u> 10 Then said I to the angel that talked with me, Whither do these bear the ephah? 11 And he said unto me, To build it an house in the land of Shinar: and it shall be established, and set there upon her own base. [indicates an idol on a pedestal that is removed from Judah to the land of Shinar which was in Babylon]

D. Vision of the Four Chariots Judging All the Earth 6:1-8

6:1 And I turned, and lifted up mine eyes, and looked, and, behold, there came four chariots out from between two mountains; and the mountains were mountains of brass.

2 In the <u>first chariot were red horses;</u>
and in the second chariot black horses;
3 And in the third chariot white horses;
and in the fourth chariot grisled and bay horses.

4 Then I answered and said unto the angel that talked with me, What are these, my lord? 5 And the angel answered and said unto me, These are the <u>four spirits of the heavens, which</u> <u>go forth from standing before the Lord of all the earth.</u>

6 The black horses which are therein go forth into the north country: and the white go forth after them; and the grisled go forth toward the south country. 7 And the bay went forth, and sought to go that they might walk to and fro through the earth: and he said. Get you hence, walk to and fro through the earth. 8 Then cried he upon me, and spake unto me, saying, Behold, these that go toward the north country have quieted my spirit in the north country.

4. The Temple Replaced by the Branch 6:9-9:15

A. The Branch will Build the Temple, Receive the Glory, and Rule from His Throne With the Counsel of Peace (the Messiah will Replace the Chief Priest and the King) 6:9-15

9 And the word of the Lord came unto me, saying, 10 Take of them of the captivity, even of Heldai, of Tobijah, and of Jedaiah, <u>which are come from Babylon</u>, and come thou the same day, and go into the <u>house of Josiah the son of Zephaniah</u>;

11 Then take silver and gold, and make crowns, and set them upon the head of Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest: 12 And speak unto him, saying, Thus speaketh the Lord of hosts, saying, Behold the man whose name is **The Branch**; and he shall grow up out of his place, and he shall build the temple of the Lord: 13 Even he shall build the temple of the Lord; and he shall bear the glory, and shall sit and rule upon his throne; and **he shall be a priest upon his throne:** and the counsel of peace shall be between them both.

14 And <u>the crowns shall</u> be to Helem, and to Tobijah, and to Jedaiah, and to Hen the son of Zephaniah, <u>for a memorial in the temple of the Lord</u>. 15 And they that are far off shall come and build in the temple of the Lord, and ye shall know that the Lord of hosts hath sent me unto you. And this shall come to pass, if ye will diligently obey the voice of the Lord your God.

B. Seek the Lord and Not the Temple 7:1-7

7:1 And it came to pass in the fourth year of king Darius, that the word of the Lord came unto Zechariah in the fourth day of the ninth month, even in Chisleu; 2 When they had sent unto the house of God <u>Sherezer and Regemmelech [unknown emissaries]</u>, and their men, to pray before the Lord, 3 And to speak unto the priests which were in the house of the Lord of hosts, and to the prophets, saying, <u>Should I weep in the fifth month</u>, separating myself, as I have done these so many years?

4 Then came the word of the Lord of hosts unto me, saying, 5 Speak unto all the people of the land, and to the priests, saying, When ye fasted and mourned in the fifth and seventh month, even those seventy years, <u>did ye at all fast unto me</u>, <u>even to me</u>? 6 And when ye did eat, and when ye did drink, did not ye eat for yourselves, and drink <u>for yourselves</u>?

7 <u>Should ye not hear the words which the Lord hath cried</u> by the former prophets, when Jerusalem was inhabited and in prosperity, and the cities thereof round about her, when men inhabited the south and the plain?

C. Scattered Hearts of Stone, You Didn't Seek the Lord 7:8-14

8 And the word of the Lord came unto Zechariah, saying, 9 Thus speaketh the Lord of hosts, saying, Execute true judgment, and shew mercy and compassions every man to his brother:

<u>10 And oppress not the widow, nor the fatherless, the stranger, nor the poor; and let none of you imagine evil against his brother in your heart.</u>

11 B<u>ut they refused to hearken</u>, and pulled away the shoulder, and stopped their ears, that they should not hear. 12 Yea, <u>they made their hearts as an adamant stone</u>, lest they should hear the law, and the words which the Lord of hosts hath sent in his spirit by the former prophets: therefore came a great wrath from the Lord of hosts. 13 Therefore it is come to pass, that as he cried, and they would not hear; so they cried, and I would not hear, saith the Lord of hosts: 14 But I scattered them with a whirlwind among all the nations whom they knew not. Thus the land was desolate after them, that no man passed through nor returned: for they laid the pleasant land desolate.

D. The Lord Returns to Zion, It's Not About the Temple and the People Will Be Joyous in the City 8:1-17

8:1 Again the word of the Lord of hosts came to me, saying, 2 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; <u>I</u> was jealous for Zion with great jealousy, and I was jealous for her with great fury.

3 <u>Thus saith the Lord; I am returned unto Zion, and will dwell in the midst of Jerusalem: and</u> <u>Jerusalem shall be called a city of truth; and the mountain of the Lord of hosts the holy</u> <u>mountain.</u> 4 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; There shall yet old men and old women dwell in the streets of Jerusalem, and every man with his staff in his hand for very age.

5 And the streets of the city shall be full of boys and girls playing in the streets thereof.

6 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; If it be marvellous in the eyes of the remnant of this people in these days, should it also be marvellous in mine eyes? saith the Lord of hosts.

7 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; Behold, I will save my people from the east country, and from the west country; 8 And I will bring them, and they shall dwell in the midst of Jerusalem: and they shall be my people, and I will be their God, in truth and in righteousness.

9 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; Let your hands be strong, ye that hear in these days these words by the mouth of the prophets, which were in the day that the foundation of the house of the Lord of hosts was laid, that the temple might be built. **10 For before these days** there was no hire for man, nor any hire for beast; neither was there any peace to him that went out or came in because of the affliction: for <u>I set all men every one against his neighbour</u>. [God gave them over to their desires]

11 But now I will not be unto the residue of this people as in the former days [the days of the Temple], saith the Lord of hosts. 12 For the seed shall be prosperous; the vine shall give her fruit, and the ground shall give her increase, and the heavens shall give their dew; and I will cause the remnant of this people to possess all these things. 13 And it shall come to pass, that

as ye were a curse among the heathen, O house of Judah, and house of Israel; so will I save you, and ye shall be a blessing: fear not, but let your hands be strong.

14 For thus saith the Lord of hosts; As I thought to punish you, when your fathers provoked me to wrath, saith the Lord of hosts, and I repented not: 15 So again have I thought in these days to do well unto Jerusalem and to the house of Judah: fear ye not. 16 These are the things that ye shall do; Speak ye every man the truth to his neighbour; execute the judgment of truth and peace in your gates: 17 And let none of you imagine evil in your hearts against his neighbour; and love no false oath: for all these are things that I hate, saith the Lord.

E. Many Nations Shall Come to Seek the Lord in the New Jerusalem 8:18-23

18 And the word of the Lord of hosts came unto me, saying, 19 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; The fast of the fourth month, and the fast of the fifth, and the fast of the seventh, and the fast of the tenth, shall be to the house of Judah joy and gladness, and cheerful feasts; therefore love the truth and peace.

20 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; It shall yet come to pass, that <u>there shall come people, and the</u> inhabitants of many cities: 21 And the inhabitants of one city shall go to another, saying, Let us go speedily to pray before the Lord, and to seek the Lord of hosts: I will go also. 22 Yea, many people and strong nations shall come to seek the Lord of hosts in Jerusalem, and to pray before the Lord.

23 Thus saith the Lord of hosts; <u>In those days it shall come to pass</u>, that ten men shall take hold out of all languages of the nations, even shall <u>take hold of the skirt of him that is a Jew, saying</u>, <u>We will go with you: for we have heard that God is with you.</u>

F. All the Tribes of the Lord Will Turn to the Lord and Not the Temple 9:1

9:1 The burden of the word of the Lord in the land of Hadrach, and Damascus shall be the rest thereof: when the eyes of man, as of all the tribes of Israel, shall be toward the Lord.

G. Tyre and Sidon will Fall 9:2-4 (Rev. 17-18 The Harlot/Commerce)

2 And Hamath also shall border thereby; Tyrus, and Zidon, though it be very wise. 3 And T<u>yrus did build herself a strong hold,</u> and heaped up silver as the dust, and fine gold as the mire of the streets. 4 Behold, t<u>he Lord will cast her out, and he will smite her power in the sea; and she shall be devoured with fire.</u>

H. Philistines will Follow the Lord 9:5-7

5 <u>Ashkelon shall see it, and fear: Gaza also shall see it</u>, and be very sorrowful, and Ekron; for her expectation shall be ashamed; and the king shall perish from Gaza, and Ashkelon shall not be inhabited. 6 And a bastard shall dwell in <u>Ashdod</u>, and I will cut off the pride of the Philistines.

7 And I will take away his blood out of his mouth, and his abominations from between his teeth: <u>but he that remaineth</u>, even he, shall be for our God, and he shall be as a governor in Judah, and Ekron as a Jebusite.

I. The House/Camp of the Lord will Prevail Against the Army of the Deceived 9:8-15

8 And <u>I will encamp about mine house because of the army</u>, because of him that passeth by, and because of him that returneth: and no oppressor shall pass through them any more: for now have I seen with mine eyes. 9 <u>Rejoice greatly</u>. O daughter of Zion; shout, O daughter of Jerusalem: behold, thy King cometh unto thee: he is just, and having salvation; lowly, and riding upon an ass, and upon a colt the foal of an ass.

10 And I will cut off the chariot from Ephraim, and the horse from Jerusalem, and the battle bow shall be cut off: and he shall speak peace unto the heathen: and his dominion shall be from sea even to sea, and from the river even to the ends of the earth. 11 As for thee also, by the blood of thy covenant I have sent forth thy prisoners out of the pit wherein is no water.

12 Turn you to the strong hold, ye prisoners of hope: even to day do I declare that I will render double unto thee; 13 When I have bent Judah for me, filled the bow with Ephraim, and raised up thy sons, O Zion, <u>against thy sons, O Greece</u>, and made thee as the sword of a mighty man.

14 And the Lord shall be seen over them, and his arrow shall go forth as the lightning: and <u>the</u> <u>Lord God shall blow the trumpet, and shall go with whirlwinds of the south.</u> 15 The Lord of hosts shall defend them; and they shall devour, and subdue with sling stones; and they shall drink, and make a noise as through wine; and they shall be filled like bowls, and as the corners of the altar.

5. Rise of the Shepherd Messiah to Replace Ungodly Shepherds (Completes Christ as King, Priest, Temple & Shepherd) 9:16-11:17

A. The Lord Saves His Flock 9:16-17

16 And the Lord their God shall save them in that day <u>as the flock of his people</u>: for they shall be as the stones of a crown, lifted up as an ensign upon his land. 17 For how great is his goodness, and how great is his beauty! corn shall make the young men cheerful, and new wine the maids.

B. The Latter Rain Will Provide Pasture 10:1-2

10:1 Ask ye of the Lord rain in <u>the time of the latter rain</u>; so the Lord shall make bright clouds, and give them showers of rain, to every one grass in the field [provision of pasture for the flock of the Lord]. 2 For the idols have spoken vanity, and the diviners have seen a lie, and have told

false dreams; they comfort in vain: therefore they <u>went their way as a flock</u>, they were troubled, because there was no shepherd.

C. God's Anger at Evil Shepherds Turning His Flock Into His Horse for Battle 10:3-5

3 Mine anger was kindled against the shepherds, and I punished the goats: for the Lord of hosts hath visited his flock the house of Judah, and hath made them as his goodly horse in the battle. 4 Out of him came forth the corner, out of him the nail, out of him the battle bow, out of him every oppressor together. 5 And they shall be as mighty men, which tread down their enemies in the mire of the streets in the battle: and they shall fight, because the Lord is with them, and the riders on horses shall be confounded.

D. God Strengthens His House 10:6-8

6 And <u>I will strengthen</u> the house of Judah, and I will save the house of Joseph, and <u>I will bring</u> them again to place them: for I have mercy upon them: and they shall be as though I had not cast them off: for I am the Lord their God, and will hear them. 7 And they of Ephraim shall be like a mighty man, and their heart shall rejoice as through wine: yea, their children shall see it, and be glad: their heart shall rejoice in the Lord. 8 I will hiss for them, and gather them; for I have redeemed them: and they shall increase as they have increased.

E. God Gathers His People from Far Countries 10:9-11:2

9 And <u>I will sow them among the people</u>: and <u>they shall remember me in far countries</u>; and they shall live with their children, and turn again. 10 I will bring them again also out of the land of Egypt, and <u>gather them out</u> of Assyria; and I will bring them into the land of Gilead and Lebanon; and place shall not be found for them. 11 And he shall pass through the sea with affliction, and shall smite the waves in the sea, and all the deeps of the river shall dry up: and the pride of Assyria shall be brought down, and the sceptre of Egypt shall depart away. 12 And I will strengthen them in the Lord; and they shall walk up and down in his name, saith the Lord. 11:1 Open thy doors, O Lebanon, that the fire may devour thy cedars. 2 Howl, fir tree; for the cedar is fallen; because the mighty are spoiled: howl, O ye oaks of Bashan; for the forest of the vintage is come down.

F. Evil Shepherds Howl But Their Slaughtered Flock is Fed by the Lord as Shepherd 11:3-17

1. The Howling Shepherds Removed 11:3-6

3 There is a voice of <u>the howling of the shepherds</u>; for their glory is <u>spoiled</u>: a voice of the roaring of young lions; for the pride of Jordan is spoiled. 4 Thus saith the Lord my God; <u>Feed</u> the flock of the slaughter; 5 Whose possessors slay them, and hold themselves not guilty: and they that sell them say, Blessed be the Lord; for I am rich: and their own shepherds pity them not. 6 For I will no more pity the inhabitants of the land, saith the Lord: but, lo, I will deliver the

men every one into his neighbour's hand, and into the hand of his king: and they shall smite the land, and out of their hand I will not deliver them.

2. God Feeds the Slaughtered Flock with Two Staffs, Beauty (the Cut Staff) and Bands, that Cut Off the Evil Shepherds 11:7-9

7 And <u>I will feed the flock of slaughter, even you, O poor of the flock. And I took unto me two</u> staves; the one I called Beauty, and the other I called Bands; and I fed the flock.

8 <u>Three shepherds also I cut off in one month</u>; and my soul lothed them, and their soul also abhorred me. 9 Then said I, <u>I will not feed you: that that dieth, let it die; and that that is to be cut off, let it be cut off; and let the rest eat every one the flesh of another.</u>

3. The Cutting of Both Staffs - The Messiah is Crucified by the Betrayer for 30 Pieces of Silver 11:10-14

<u>10 And I took my staff, even Beauty, and cut it asunder, that I might break my covenant which I had made with all the people. 11 And it was broken in that day: and so the poor of the flock that waited upon me knew that it was the word of the Lord.</u>

12 And I said unto them, If ye think good, give me my price; and if not, forbear. So they weighed for my price thirty pieces of silver. 13 And the Lord said unto me, Cast it unto the potter: a goodly price that I was prised at of them. And I took the thirty pieces of silver, and cast them to the potter in the house of the Lord. 14 Then I cut asunder mine other staff, even Bands, that I might break the brotherhood between Judah and Israel.

4. Foolish Shepherd AntiChrist Idol Shepherd Arises but Will be Destroyed 10:15-17

15 And the Lord said unto me, <u>Take unto thee yet the instruments of a foolish shepherd</u>. 16 For, Io, <u>I will raise up a shepherd in the land, which shall not visit those that be cut off, neither shall seek the young one, nor heal that that is broken, nor feed that that standeth still: but he shall eat the flesh of the fat, and tear their claws in pieces. 17 Woe to the idol shepherd that leaveth the flock! the sword shall be upon his arm, and upon his right eye: <u>his arm shall be clean dried up, and his right eye shall be utterly darkened.</u></u>

6. The Day When All Nations of the Earth Rise Against the City of God and Are Defeated 12:1-14:4

A. The Burden of the Lord of All the Earth and Forming of the Spirit of Man 12:1

12:1 The burden of the word of the Lord for Israel, saith <u>the Lord, which stretcheth forth the</u> <u>heavens</u>, and layeth the foundation of the earth, and formeth the spirit of man within him.

B. The Day of the Lord When the City of God Will Be a Cup of Trembling to all People of the Earth 12:2-13:7

1. The Day When All Nations Gather Against God's People in His City and Are Destroyed (Rev 20:7-10 Battle of Armageddon) 12:2-9

2 Behold, I will make Jerusalem a cup of trembling unto all the people round about, when they shall be in the siege both against Judah and against Jerusalem.

3 And in that day will I make Jerusalem a burdensome stone for all people: all that burden themselves with it shall be cut in pieces, though all the people of the earth be gathered together against it.

4 <u>In that day</u>, saith the Lord, I will smite every horse with astonishment, and his rider with madness: and I will open mine eyes upon the house of Judah, and will smite every horse of the people with blindness. 5 And the governors of Judah shall say in their heart, The inhabitants of Jerusalem shall be my strength in the Lord of hosts their God.

6 <u>In that day</u> will I make the governors of Judah like an hearth of fire among the wood, and like a torch of fire in a sheaf; and they shall devour all the people round about, on the right hand and on the left: and Jerusalem shall be inhabited again in her own place, even in Jerusalem. 7 The Lord also shall save the tents of Judah first, that the glory of the house of David and the glory of the inhabitants of Jerusalem do not magnify themselves against Judah.

8 <u>In that day</u> shall the Lord defend the inhabitants of Jerusalem; and he that is feeble among them at that day shall be as David; and the house of David shall be as God, as the angel of the Lord before them.

9 And it shall come to pass in that day, that I will seek to destroy all the nations that come against Jerusalem.

2. The Day of Grace, Mourning, and Bitterness Providing a Fountain for Sin and Uncleanness (Prophetic of the Cross) 12:10-13:6

10 And <u>I will pour</u> upon the house of David, and upon the inhabitants of Jerusalem, <u>the spirit of</u> grace and of supplications: and **they shall look upon me whom they have pierced, and they shall mourn for him, as one mourneth for his only son, and shall be in bitterness for him, as one that is in bitterness for his firstborn.**

11 <u>In that day</u> shall there be a great mourning in Jerusalem, as the mourning of Hadadrimmon <u>in</u> <u>the valley of Megiddon</u>. 12 And the land shall mourn, every family apart; the family of the house of David apart, and their wives apart; the family of the house of Nathan apart, and their wives apart; 13 The family of the house of Levi apart, and their wives apart; the family of Shimei apart, and their wives apart; 14 All the families that remain, every family apart, and their wives apart.

13:1 In that day there shall be a fountain opened to the house of David and to the inhabitants of Jerusalem for sin and for uncleanness.

2 And it shall come to pass in that day, saith the Lord of hosts, that <u>I will cut off the names of the idols out of the land</u>, and they shall no more be remembered: and also I will cause the prophets and the unclean spirit to pass out of the land. 3 And it shall come to pass, that when any shall yet prophesy, then his father and his mother that begat him shall say unto him, Thou shalt not live; for thou speakest lies in the name of the Lord: and his father and his mother that begat him shall shall thrust him through when he prophesieth.

4 And it shall come to pass <u>in that day</u>, that the prophets shall be ashamed every one of his vision, when he hath prophesied; neither shall they wear a rough garment to deceive: 5 But he shall say, I am no prophet, I am an husbandman; for man taught me to keep cattle from my youth.

6 And <u>one shall say unto him, What are these wounds in thine hands? Then</u> <u>he shall answer, Those with which I was wounded in the house of my</u> <u>friends.</u>

3. The Day When the Shepherd of the Lord is Smitten 13:7

7 **<u>Awake, O sword, against my shepherd</u>**, and against the man that is my fellow, saith the Lord of hosts: smite the shepherd, and the sheep shall be scattered: and I will turn mine hand upon the little ones.

C. The Day of the Lord, the Final Battle, and Fire 13:8-14:4

8 And it shall come to pass, that in all the land, saith the Lord, two parts therein shall be cut off and die; but the third shall be left therein. 9 And <u>I will bring the third part through the fire, and will</u> refine them as silver is refined, and will try them as gold is tried: they shall call on my name, and <u>I will hear them: I will say. It is my people: and they shall say. The Lord is my God.</u>

14:1 Behold, the day of the Lord cometh, and thy spoil shall be divided in the midst of thee.

2 For <u>I will gather all nations against Jerusalem to battle</u>; and the city shall be taken, and the houses rifled, and the women ravished; and half of the city shall go forth into captivity, and the residue of the people shall not be cut off from the city. 3 <u>Then shall the Lord go forth, and fight against those nations, as when he fought in the day of battle</u>.

4 And <u>his feet shall stand in that day upon the mount of Olives, which is before Jerusalem on</u> the east, and the mount of Olives shall cleave in the midst thereof toward the east and toward the west, and there shall be a very great valley; and half of the mountain shall remove toward the north, and half of it toward the south.

7. Second Coming of the Lord, the Day of the Lord, and the New Heaven and New Earth 14:5-11

A. The Lord Coming with the Saints 14:5

5 And ye shall flee to the valley of the mountains; for the valley of the mountains shall reach unto Azal: yea, ye shall flee, <u>like</u> as ye fled from before the earthquake in the days of Uzziah king of Judah: and <u>the Lord my God shall come, and all the saints with thee</u>.

B. The Day of the Lord, the Lord is the Light 14:6-7

6 And it shall come to pass in that day, that the light shall not be clear, nor dark:

7 But it shall be one day which shall be known to the Lord, not day, nor night: but it shall come to pass, that at evening time it shall be light.

C. The Day of the Lord, Living Waters Flowing (rf Rev 22 New Heaven and New Earth and Isaiah 65) 14:8-10

8 And <u>it shall be in that day, that living waters shall go out from Jerusalem;</u> half of them toward the former sea, and half of them toward the hinder sea: in summer and in winter shall it be.

9 And the Lord shall be king over all the earth: in that day shall there be one Lord, and his name one.

10 All <u>the land</u> shall be turned as a plain from Geba to Rimmon south of Jerusalem: and it shall be lifted up, and inhabited in her place, from Benjamin's gate unto the place of the first gate, unto the corner gate, and from the tower of Hananeel unto the king's winepresses. 11 And <u>men shall dwell in it, and there shall be no more utter destruction; but Jerusalem shall be safely inhabited.</u>

8. The Final Judgment (Rev 16 and 20) 14:12-15

12 And this shall be the plague wherewith the Lord will smite all the people that have fought against Jerusalem; Their flesh shall consume away while they stand upon their feet, and their eyes shall consume away in their holes, and their tongue shall consume away in their mouth. (Rev 20 - the Last Battle, Battle of Armageddon)

13 And it shall come to pass in that day, that a great tumult from the Lord shall be among them; and they shall lay hold every one on the hand of his neighbour, and his hand shall rise up against the hand of his neighbour.

14 And Judah also shall fight at Jerusalem; and the wealth of all the heathen round about shall be gathered together, gold, and silver, and apparel, in great abundance.

15 And so shall be the plague of the horse, of the mule, of the camel, and of the ass, and of all the beasts that shall be in these tents, as this plague.

9. The Worship of the Lord in the New Heaven and New Earth - Return to the Myrtle Trees 14:16-21

16 And it shall come to pass, that <u>every one that is left of all the nations</u> which came against Jerusalem shall even go up <u>from year to year to worship the King, the Lord of hosts, and to keep the feast of tabernacles. [the Harvest Feast that was noted with the Myrtle Trees at the beginning of Zechariah]</u>

17 And it shall be, that whoso will not come up of all the families of the earth unto Jerusalem to worship the King, the Lord of hosts, even upon them shall be no rain.

18 And if the <u>family of Egypt</u> go not up, and come not, that have no rain; there shall be the plague, wherewith the Lord will smite the heathen that come not up to keep the feast of tabernacles. 19 This shall be the <u>punishment of Egypt</u>, and the punishment of all nations that come not up to keep the feast of tabernacles.

20 In <u>that day</u> shall there be upon the bells of the horses, <u>Holiness Unto The Lord</u>; and t<u>he pots</u> in the Lord's house shall be like the bowls before the altar. [perhaps Ez 46B and 47A] 21 Yea, <u>every pot</u> in Jerusalem and in Judah shall be holiness unto the Lord of hosts: and all they that sacrifice shall come and take of them, and seethe therein: and in that day there shall be <u>no</u> <u>more the Canaanite in the house of the Lord of hosts</u>.

Malachi - Why Do You Question God's Love When Your Worship, Offerings, and Service are Corrupt

1. Why Do You Question God's Love? 1:1-2a

1 The burden of the word of the Lord to Israel by Malachi. 2 I have loved you, saith the Lord. Yet ye say, Wherein hast thou loved us?

2. God's Love for Jacob and Not Esau 1:2b-4

Was not Esau Jacob's brother? saith the Lord: <u>vet I loved Jacob. 3 And I hated Esau</u>, and laid his mountains and his heritage waste for the dragons of the wilderness. 4 Whereas Edom [descendants of Esau] saith, We are impoverished, but we will return and build the desolate places; thus saith the Lord of hosts, They shall build, but I will throw down; and they shall call

them, The border of wickedness, and, The people against whom the Lord hath indignation for ever.

3. The Glory of the Lord Revealed Despite Unfaithful Priests and Polluted Sacrifices 1:5-14

5 And your eyes shall see, and ye shall say, The Lord will be magnified from the border of Israel.

6 A son honoureth his father, and a servant his master: if then I be a father, where is mine honour? and <u>if I be a master, where is my fear? saith the Lord of hosts unto you</u>, **O priests**, that <u>despise my name</u>. And ye say, Wherein have we despised thy name? 7 Ye offer polluted bread upon mine altar; and ye say, Wherein have we polluted thee? In that ye say, The table of the Lord is contemptible. 8 And if ye offer the blind for sacrifice, is it not evil? and if ye offer the lame and sick, is it not evil? offer it now unto thy governor; will he be pleased with thee, or accept thy person? saith the Lord of hosts.

9 And now, I pray you, beseech God that he will be gracious unto us: this hath been by your means: will he regard your persons? saith the Lord of hosts.

10 Who is there even among you that would shut the doors for nought? neither do ye kindle fire on mine altar for nought. I have no pleasure in you, saith the Lord of hosts, neither will I accept an offering at your hand.

11 For from the rising of the sun even unto the going down of the same <u>my name shall be great</u> <u>among the Gentiles</u>; and in every place incense shall be offered unto my name, and <u>a pure</u> <u>offering</u>: for my name shall be great among the heathen, saith the Lord of hosts. 12 But ye have profaned it, in that ye say, The table of the Lord is polluted; and the fruit thereof, even his meat, is contemptible.

13 Ye said also, Behold, what a weariness is it! and <u>ve have snuffed at it</u>, saith the Lord of hosts; and ye brought that which was torn, and the lame, and the sick; thus ye brought an offering: should I accept this of your hand? saith the Lord. 14 But <u>cursed be the deceiver</u>, which hath in his flock a male, and voweth, and <u>sacrificeth unto the Lord a corrupt thing</u>: for I am a great King, saith the Lord of hosts, and my name is dreadful among the heathen.

4. Commandment and Curse to the Priests Who Do Not Hear and Obey 2:1-9

2:1 And now, <u>O ye priests, this commandment is for you</u>. 2 <u>If ye will not hear, and if ye will not lay it to heart</u>, to give glory unto my name, saith the Lord of hosts, I will even send a curse upon you, and I will <u>curse your blessings</u>: yea, I have cursed them already, because ye do not lay it to heart.

3 Behold, I will corrupt your seed, and spread dung upon your faces, even the dung of your solemn feasts; and one shall take you away with it. 4 And <u>ye shall know that I have sent this commandment unto you</u>,

that <u>my covenant</u> might be with Levi, saith the Lord of hosts. 5 <u>My covenant was with him of life</u> <u>and peace; and I gave them to him for the fear wherewith he feared me, and was afraid before</u> <u>my name.</u> 6 The <u>law of truth</u> was in his mouth, and <u>iniquity was not found in his lips: he walked</u> <u>with me in peace and equity, and did turn many away from iniquity</u>. 7 For the priest's lips should keep knowledge, and they should seek the law at his mouth: for he is the messenger of the Lord of hosts.

8 But ye are departed out of the way; <u>ve have caused many to stumble at the law</u>; ye have corrupted the covenant of Levi, saith the Lord of hosts. 9 Therefore have <u>I also made you</u> contemptible and <u>base before all the people. according as ye have not kept my ways</u>, but have been partial in the law.

5. Have We Not All One Father-Why Are You Treacherous to One Another 2:10-12

10 <u>Have we not all one father</u>? hath not one God created us? <u>why do we deal treacherously</u> <u>every man against his brother</u>, by profaning the covenant of our fathers? 11 Judah hath dealt treacherously, and an abomination is committed in Israel and in Jerusalem; for Judah hath profaned the holiness of the Lord which he loved, and hath married the daughter of a strange god. 12 The Lord will cut off the man that doeth this, the master and the scholar, out of the tabernacles of Jacob, and him that offereth an offering unto the Lord of hosts.

6. Tears On the Altar but Not What the Lord Requires 2:13-

A. Tears but Insincere Offerings of Worship 2:13

13 And this have ye done again, covering the altar of the Lord with tears, with weeping, and with crying out, insomuch that he regardeth not the offering any more, or receiveth it with good will at your hand.

B. Tears but Mistreatment of Spouses 2:14-16

14 Yet ye say, Wherefore? Because the Lord hath been witness between thee and the wife of thy youth, against whom thou hast dealt treacherously: yet is she thy companion, and the wife of thy covenant.

15 And did not he make one? <u>Yet had he the residue of the spirit</u>. And wherefore one? That he might seek a godly seed. Therefore <u>take heed to your spirit</u>, and let none deal treacherously against the wife of his youth. 16 For the Lord, the God of Israel, saith that he hateth putting

away: for one covereth violence with his garment, saith the Lord of hosts: therefore <u>take heed to</u> <u>your spirit</u>, that ye deal not treacherously.

C. The Lord is Tired of Excuses 2:17

17 <u>Ye have wearied the Lor</u>d with your words. <u>Yet ye say</u>, Wherein have we wearied him? When ye say, Every one that doeth evil is good in the sight of the Lord, and he delighteth in them; or,

Where is the God of judgment?

7. The Lord and His Messenger Comes, Insincere Tears are Over 3:1-5

A. To Preserve His Covenant 3:1

3:1 Behold, I will send <u>my messenger</u>, and he shall prepare the way before me: and the Lord, <u>whom ye seek</u>, shall <u>suddenly come to his temple</u>, even the messenger of the <u>covenant</u>, whom ye delight in: behold, he shall come, saith the Lord of hosts.

B. To Refine and Purify 3:2-4

2 But <u>who may abide the day of his coming</u>? and who shall stand when he appeareth? for <u>he is</u> <u>like a refiner's fire, and like fullers' soap:</u> 3 And <u>he shall sit as a refiner and purifier</u> of silver: and he shall purify the sons of Levi, and purge them as gold and silver, that they may offer unto the Lord an offering in righteousness. 4 Then shall <u>the offering of Judah and Jerusalem be pleasant</u> <u>unto the Lord</u>, as in the days of old, and as in former years.

C. For Swift Judgment 3:5

5 And I will come near to you to judgment; and I will be a <u>swift witness against the sorcerers</u>, and against the adulterers, and against false swearers, and against those that oppress the <u>hireling in his wages</u>, the widow, and the fatherless, and that turn aside the stranger from his <u>right</u>, and fear not me, saith the Lord of hosts.

8. Being God's People 3:6-15

A. Are not Consumed 3:6

6 For I am the Lord, I change not; therefore ye sons of Jacob are not consumed.

B. God's People Must Return Unto the Lord 3:7

7 Even from the days of your fathers ye are gone away from mine ordinances, and have not kept them. <u>Return unto me, and I will return unto you</u>, saith the Lord of hosts. But ye said, Wherein shall we return?

C. Not "Rob" God of His Tithes and Offering 3:8-12

8 Will a man rob God? Yet ye have robbed me. But ye say, Wherein have we robbed thee? In tithes and offerings.

1. Cursed for Robbing God 3:9

9 Ye are cursed with a curse: for ye have robbed me, even this whole nation.

2. Tithe for God's Storehouse 3:10a

10 Bring ye all the tithes into the storehouse, that there may be meat in mine house, and

3. God's Blessings for Tithers 3:10b-12

prove me now herewith, saith the Lord of hosts, if I will not open you the windows of heaven, and pour you out a blessing, that there shall not be room enough to receive it. 11 And I will <u>rebuke the devourer for your sakes</u>, and he shall not destroy the fruits of your ground; neither shall your vine cast her fruit before the time in the field, saith the Lord of hosts. 12 And all nations shall call you blessed: for <u>ye shall be a delightsome land</u>, saith the Lord of hosts.

D. Not Use "Stout" Words Against the Lord 3:13-15

13 **Your words have been stout against me**, saith the Lord. Yet ye say, What have we spoken so much against thee?

14 Ye have said, It is **vain** to serve God: and **what profit** is it that we have kept his ordinance, and that we have walked mournfully before the Lord of hosts?

15 And now we call the proud happy; yea, they that work wickedness are set up; yea, they that tempt God are even delivered.

9. The Day of the Lord is the Day of the Book of Remembrance 3:16-4:5

16 Then they that feared the Lord spake often one to another: and the Lord hearkened, and heard it, and <u>a book of remembrance was written</u> before him for them that feared the Lord, and that thought upon his name. 17 And they shall be mine, saith the Lord of hosts, <u>in</u> <u>that day</u> when I make up my jewels; and I will spare them, as a man spareth his own son that serveth him.

18 Then <u>shall ye return, and discern between the righteous and the wicked</u>, between him that serveth God and him that serveth him not.

4:1 For, behold, <u>the day cometh, that shall burn as an oven</u>; and all the proud, yea, and all that do wickedly, shall be stubble: and the day that cometh shall burn them up, saith the Lord of hosts, that it shall leave them neither root nor branch.

2 But unto you that fear my name shall the <u>Sun of righteousness arise with healing in his wings</u>; <u>and ye shall go forth, and grow up as calves of the stall.</u>

3 And <u>ye shall tread down the wicked;</u> for <u>they shall be ashes</u> under the soles of your feet in the day that I shall do this, saith the Lord of hosts.

4 Remember ye the law of Moses my servant, which I commanded unto him in Horeb for all Israel, with the statutes and judgments.

5 Behold, I will send you Elijah the prophet before the coming of the great and dreadful day of the Lord: 6 And he shall turn the heart of the fathers to the children, and the heart of the children to their fathers, lest I come and smite the earth with a curse.